
2012 ANNUAL REPORT



ENGAGED ASSOCIATES

• Delight clients by delivering
more than expected

• Feel empowered to do 
their best work

• Look forward to spending 
their careers at Pinnacle

ENGAGED CLIENTS

• Rely on Pinnacle for 
effective advice

• Rave about distinctive 
service to others

• Become clients for life

ENGAGED SHAREHOLDERS

• Continue to invest 
for the long-term

• Appreciate the focus on 
both growth and soundness  

• Value Pinnacle’s 
dedication to clients 

To be the best financial
services firm and the
best place to work 
in Tennessee

Pinnacle Vision
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Dear Fellow ShareholDerS,

While the U.S. economy rebounded modestly in 2012, there continues to be a
great deal of uncertainty among businesses concerning the pace and sustainability
of the recovery. The turmoil of an election year combined with partisan roadblocks
in Washington, concerns about the global economy and increased regulation
have challenged all businesses, particularly the financial industry.

Despite a very difficult operating environment, 2012 was another successful year
for Pinnacle. We made extraordinary progress on the two primary priorities we
discussed with you last year: aggressively dealing with credit issues and building
the firm’s core earnings capacity. You will see evidence of our progress
throughout this report.

Key asset quality metrics such as credit costs, non-performing loans and “other
real estate owned” all decreased substantially and sequentially quarter after
quarter. While we are not completely at the other shore, the balance sheet
rehabilitation that began in 2009 is largely complete as we believe 2013 will
reflect normalized and sustainable credit metrics consistent with our long-term
profitability targets. 

To build core earnings capacity, we continued to execute on the strategic model 
of organic growth that has served us so well since our founding. We aggressively
recruited a number of top bankers in our markets to deepen and secure new
relationships with targeted businesses and individuals. Double-digit loan and 
core deposit growth, an expanding net interest margin and meaningful growth 
in our fee businesses were significant factors in our success. 
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2012 aCCoMPlIShMeNTS

TarP redemption without shareholder dilution.
In June, Pinnacle redeemed the remaining preferred shares originally issued to the U.S.
Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program in 2008. Pinnacle used a combination 
of existing cash balances and borrowings under a $25 million senior debt facility to redeem
the shares. As we had anticipated, our strong capital position, rapidly improving credit metrics
and accelerating earnings growth allowed us to redeem TARP with no incremental issuance 
of common shares. While short-term investors may have benefited had we redeemed TARP
sooner by issuing common shares, we believe our more patient approach has significantly
enhanced the value for long-term shareholders. 

Margin expansion. 
An intense focus on deposit and loan pricing resulted in a net interest margin that consistently
widened throughout 2012. Our financial advisors relied on a premium level of service 
and effective advice in an increasingly competitive and very difficult rate environment to
improve pricing. 

Continued high client satisfaction. 
Ultimately, the firm’s value is built on our ability to provide service superior to the large regional
banks that presently dominate our markets. Not only have we been recognized again this year by
Greenwich Associates as one of the best banks in the country in terms of “overall client satisfaction”
among small- and middle-market business clients, but also more than 97 percent of respondents
reported on our own client survey that “Pinnacle is recognizably better than the competition.” 

Continued associate engagement. 
Pinnacle was recently recognized in FORTUNE magazine as the fourth best medium-sized
workplace in the country. Given the tepid outlook for economic growth, our vision to be the 
best place to work in Tennessee has and should continue to enable us to recruit and retain the
high-performing financial professionals so critical to our long-term growth and profitability plans.



location. 
Tennessee is widely known for growing existing businesses and attracting new ones. 
And for the second straight year, Chief Executive magazine named Tennessee one
of the top five states for business.

Within Tennessee, Pinnacle has the additional advantage of operating in the state’s
two most dynamic markets, Nashville and Knoxville. Data show that these two
markets continue to outpace the national recovery, particularly as it relates to job
growth and the rate of unemployment. Kiplinger recently named Nashville in the top
eight cities for projected job growth. Knoxville is among the 10 fastest growing U.S.
cities, according to the U.S. Census Bureau.

Intense focus on client relationships.
A key to our success has always been our ability to attract financial advisors who 
have large client bases at competitor institutions. We have continued to recruit 
high-performing producers during 2012. Many of our financial advisors are relatively
early in the process of consolidating their books of business, which should contribute
meaningfully to our growth over the next two or three years.

Vulnerable competition.
Pinnacle continues to take advantage of the weaknesses at the large regional and
national franchises. The third quarter 2012 report by Greenwich Associates showed
Pinnacle has become the lead bank to 16 percent of businesses in Nashville with
annual revenues between $1 million and $500 million. We believe that our primary
competitors are as vulnerable as ever, creating opportunities for us to continue our
growth by taking additional market share.
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PINNaCle’S aDVaNTaGeS 
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M. Terry Turner
President and CEO

Robert A. McCabe, Jr.
Chairman

We believe 2013 will be another challenging year for financial institutions
and will likely magnify distinctions between those firms that have
successfully rehabilitated their balance sheets and rebuilt core earnings
capacity from those that have not. In an uncertain economy, firms that 
win the war for talent and take valuable clients from increasingly vulnerable
competitors are likely to be rewarded. To that end, we are confident that 
our firm is better prepared than most to face the tough challenges and 
take advantage of the many opportunities we see ahead.

As you review the information in this report, we hope you share our
confidence in the future of your investment. Your comments, feedback 
and visits at any time are encouraged.

Sincerely,



The Pinnacle Model
eNGaGeD
aSSoCIaTeS

eNGaGeD
ClIeNTS

eNGaGeD 
ShareholDerS
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PINNACLE’S FORMULA FOR SUCCESS

PINNaCle’S ForMUla For SUCCeSS
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The formula: engaged associates lead to engaged
clients, and engaged clients lead to outsized

shareholder returns.

Yes, we invest in family picnics and anniversary
celebrations for associates. We also offer to
subsidize personal trainers for associates to build
health and stamina. We try to “wow” our associates
from the first day they come to work at Pinnacle
with a breakfast that they have pre-selected and 
a personalized itinerary that reinforces the new
associates’ decision to join us.

Why? According to Joel Manby in Love Works, “the
enthusiasm of the [client] experience can never rise any
higher than the enthusiasm of your own employees.” 
If we are looking for client engagement, and we are, 
the only path is through engaged associates.

Thirty years of research by Great Place to 
Work® Institute further validates our formula.
That firm’s studies show that investing in a 
high-trust workplace culture yields distinct,
tangible business benefits, such as significantly
lower turnover and better financial performance 
than industry peers.

One study in particular, “The Link Between Job
Satisfaction and Firm Value” by Alex Edmans,
found that great places to work generate higher
long-term stock market returns than other firms.

Comparing Great Place to Work’s list of the 
100 Best Companies to Work For to the S&P 
500 and Russell 3000 shows that companies 
with great work environments have returned more
than three times as much for investors since 1997.

Comparative Cumulative Stock Market Returns
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Great
Workplaces

provide 
3 times
the return



Given the strong link between job satisfaction and
firm value, when we started Pinnacle in 2000, we
were very intentional about the kind of culture we
wanted to create. Specifically, we set out to build
the best place to work in Tennessee. It would be
unreasonable to expect our associates to treat 
our clients better than we treat those associates.
And now more than ever, the war for talent is
intense. It’s simply impossible to attract and 
retain the market’s best bankers without building
a great work environment. By every measure 
we have succeeded in accomplishing our goal.

ENGAGED ASSOCIATES
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CreaTING a reMarkaBle CUlTUre

MAY 2012
For the ninth consecutive
year, Pinnacle is a 
winner of the Nashville
Business Journal’s
“Best Places to Work”
award. Pinnacle is 
the only firm that has 
won every year of the
award’s existence.

OCTOBER 2012
Great Place to Work
names Pinnacle one of the
best workplaces in the
United States on its 2012
Best Small & Medium
Workplaces list published in
FORTUNE magazine.
Pinnacle ranked No. 4 out
of 25 on medium-sized list.

DECEMBER 2012
Nashville Business Journal
names Pinnacle a finalist in
its “Healthiest Employers”
award for the second
consecutive year. The
companies were judged
based on wellness
programs for their
employees.

exTerNal awarDS reCoGNIze
PINNaCle aS a GreaT workPlaCe

Throughout our history Pinnacle has consistently been named a “great place to work” in local and
statewide publications. In fact, we have been a winner of the “Best Places to Work in Nashville” award

for nine consecutive years. In 2012 we were recognized on a national level for our uniquely engaging work
environment. Consulting firm Great Place to Work named Pinnacle one of the best workplaces in the
United States on its 2012 Best Small & Medium Workplaces list, which was published in FORTUNE
magazine. Pinnacle ranked No. 4 out of 25 on the medium-sized list—fourth best in the United States.
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STroNG eNGaGeMeNT 
reSUlTS aGaIN IN 2012

Pinnacle’s annual work environment survey
actually measures our intense focus on

engaging associates, which is, of course, the
key to engaging clients. Again in 2012 
Pinnacle saw an increase in associate
engagement—even during a challenging 
period for the banking industry. The firm
received its highest percentage of “top box”
(those who “strongly agree”) ratings ever—
even higher associate engagement levels 
than before the recession began. 

Richard Boyer with ModernThink LLC, 
the company that administers Pinnacle’s 
survey each year, made these observations
about Pinnacle’s 2012 results:

“Pinnacle’s recognition in FORTUNE

magazine's Best Small & Medium

Workplaces program comes as no

surprise to those who know the

Pinnacle story and have first-hand

experience of Pinnacle’s culture.

Pinnacle’s ability to wed ‘wow’ service

with a culture of accountability helps

raise expectations and bring out the

best among its associates. Metrics

matter at Pinnacle, including results 

to their annual Work Environment

Survey. The 2012 survey results build

on what were already truly outstanding

results, demonstrating there’s no

resting on one’s laurels at Pinnacle.”

Great Place to Work measures work environments on
five dimensions: credibility, respect, fairness, pride and
camaraderie. Here are just a few examples of what
Pinnacle does to foster each of these five dimensions
in our workplace.

• CREDiBiliTY. Open and honest communication is the
top priority for Pinnacle President and CEO Terry Turner.
He deals candidly with the firm’s priorities in quarterly 
all-associate meetings, weekly “roadmap” meetings and
frequent posts on his internal blog.

• REspECT. Our flat organizational structure and “open
door” environment make Pinnacle’s Leadership Team
more visible and accessible. The CEO and other key
leaders hold dozens of listening sessions each year in
which associates are encouraged to offer feedback on
issues they’d like addressed.

• FAiRnEss. Every single associate receives restricted
shares, and all non-commissioned associates are 
eligible for annual cash incentives based on the firm’s
asset quality, revenue growth and earnings growth. 
We’re all owners, so our associates act like shareholders.
What’s good for shareholders is good for associates.

• pRiDE. As a firm we specifically target high
performance, whether earning honors for client
satisfaction, community service or shareholder returns.
Everybody loves to be on a winning team. 

• CAMARADERiE. Every new associate goes through 
a three-day orientation led by Terry Turner and other
members of the Leadership Team. We also host a variety
of other activities, such as family picnics, a Thanksgiving
luncheon, a 5K race and a variety of community projects
where associates form deep personal bonds.

how PINNaCle eNGaGeS aSSoCIaTeS
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eNGaGeD aSSoCIaTeS

whaT aSSoCIaTeS ValUe MoST

Nobody can explain Pinnacle’s
special culture and the high

level of job satisfaction better
than the associates themselves.
Every year the annual survey 
asks the open-ended question,
“What do you value most at
Pinnacle?” To the right is just 
a sample of their responses.

“I am so glad that I am able to work for a firm that
appreciates you and the job that you do for them. We are
truly a family in every sense of the word. I just love my
Pinnacle family.”

“I appreciate that everyone is on the same page as far as
what we need to do as a firm to succeed. The leadership
team does a good job in communicating that. This is also
the best place that I have ever worked, and I feel honored
to be given a place here.”

“Our values, communication, culture, brand and family
atmosphere are what I appreciate most. Pinnacle
associates always try to get it right! We are owners.
That’s a cool thing!”

“I value the firm's values and how they play out on a daily
basis. I appreciate the professional atmosphere in which
each individual is encouraged to do their very best to
ensure the firm’s success.”

“The associates at Pinnacle truly want to SHINE in their
respective positions—not just do the work. This type of
environment makes it a pleasure to come to work.”

A key ingredient in creating a 
“wow” experience for our clients is
making sure they are conducting
business with familiar faces. 
That’s why retaining associates 
is so critical to our mission. 
It appears our obsession with
engaging associates is paying 
off. Our associate retention 
rate in 2012 was above 
92 percent, as it has been 
every year of our existence.

a S S o C I aT e   r e T e N T I o N
r aT e  r e C o r D  

Pinnacle’s 
associate retention
rate has been
above 92% every
year of business.



ssociates across the firm share their talents
by serving on the finance and fundraising

committees of philanthropic organizations. 
At tax time, they work in Volunteer Income
Tax Assistance centers to help low-income
individuals prepare their returns without
charge. Others teach financial literacy 
classes for organizations that reach out to
first-time homebuyers or those who have
credit issues. Pinnacle associates also 
serve as mentors in schools that serve 
low- and moderate-income families. 
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C o M M U N I T Y   C o N T r I B U T I o N S

Total of 47,412 volunteer hours 
for 441 not-for-profits in 2012

ParTNerS wITh oUr CoMMUNITIeS

Part of Pinnacle’s stated mission is “to make a
significant impact on the community.” Our

community initiatives focus on supporting quality 
of life through financial contributions and programs 
that bring associates together to make our community
better, because only in a strong community can 
Pinnacle grow and prosper.

In difficult economic times nonprofit organizations
struggle to raise funds even more than usual.
Throughout the economic cycle Pinnacle has continued
our track record of financial support. We give in 
four priority categories: education; health and human
services; arts; and economic development, with
preference given to organizations where our 
associates are actively involved.

An important aspect of Pinnacle’s unique culture 
is encouraging all Pinnacle associates to volunteer 
and serve in leadership roles for their favorite 
causes. Pinnacle associates logged 47,412 hours 
for 441 not-for-profits in 2012.

In March, Pinnacle 
associates dressed up as
“Cat in the Hat” and 

participated in the Read
Across America celebration
of Dr. Seuss’s birthday.

Special Olympics has been a
favorite volunteer project since
the firm’s beginning. Pinnacle
associates and their families
manage the bocce ball 

competition for the Tennessee
Special Olympics held at

Vanderbilt University each spring.

A
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Pinnacle also has a long-standing relationship with Habitat for Humanity.
Our involvement consists of:

• Servicing more than 481 Habitat for Humanity loans with a total value of 
more than $28.8 million at no cost to Habitat or the home owner

Highlights of Pinnacle’s long-term involvement with
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati include:

• Helping secure more than $8.6 million in grants from the
FHLB since 2003

• Providing financing and grant money for 325 new
affordable single-family units, 52 new affordable 
rental units and 112 rehabilitated rental units in total
since 2003

• Providing down-payment assistance for 205 affordable
single-family homes

• Helping more than 150 families remain in their homes
using grant funding and counseling services, such as
dealing with late payment and re-working terms of loans

aFForDaBle hoUSING

Two ToP CoMMUNITY PrIorITIeS
s we allocate our financial and volunteer resources, we are particularly focused on making 
a difference in affordable housing and a dynamic downtown Nashville, our hometown.

Servicing more
than 481 Habitat
for Humanity loans
at no cost to the
home owner 

Helping secure
more than $8.6
million in grants
from the FHLB

P I N N a C l e  h e l P S   D e l I V e r  
T h e   D r e a M   o F   h o M e  o w N e r S h I P

A



• Location of our headquarters in downtown. Pinnacle is a major tenant in The Pinnacle at
Symphony Place, an iconic building that led the way in revitalizing Nashville’s SoBro area.
Projects underway include the Music City Center (pictured above), new hotels and a
renovated Country Music Hall of Fame and Museum.

• Leadership for the Downtown Partnership. Rob McCabe, Pinnacle’s chairman, has
provided pivotal leadership for this coalition of business and community groups that tackles
residential development, new retail, safety and parking in downtown Nashville.

• Support of downtown cultural and entertainment venues. The NHL team’s arena and the
Frist Center for the Visual Arts are just two attractions that Pinnacle supports. One of our
most exciting involvements is as the official bank of the Tennessee Titans, our NFL team.

2012 Annual Report eNGaGeD aSSoCIaTeS
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A significant hallmark of a dynamic city is a downtown that provides compelling amenities,
attractions and services for businesses, residents and visitors. Downtown Nashville is bustling—the
new convention center will open in 2013, new businesses are adding jobs, and more residents are
moving into the urban center. 

As a locally owned bank, Pinnacle supports the importance of downtown Nashville 
to the region in multiple ways:

a DYNaMIC DowNTowN



Our unique work environment and the camaraderie our
associates develop while working on community projects
serve to excite and engage our associates. And our excited
and engaged associates “wow” clients with an experience
they simply can’t find at any of our competitors. Client
feedback validates the importance of staying the course 
with the same key business strategies we’ve employed
since the firm’s inception.

1. Focus primarily on businesses, their owners and 
employees, as well as consumers that desire more 
than just the best price.

2. Hire and retain highly experienced and qualified 
financial services professionals.

3. Provide distinctive service and effective advice 
in exchange for premium pricing.

4. Offer a full line of financial services, including 
investments, mortgage, trust, insurance 
and treasury management.

5. Offer extraordinary convenience.

ENGAGED CLIENTS
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Focus primarily on businesses, their owners and employees, as
well as consumers that desire more than just the best price.

Strategy 1

Our targeted focus on businesses, their owners
and employees has enabled us to achieve

extraordinary penetration of those segments. 
As an example, 89 percent of our demand 
deposit accounts are commercial. Not only that,
but according to independent research, our 
penetration of those businesses’ owners, about 
31 percent, is far greater than the average for 
other banks of 18 percent.

Pinnacle’s own surveys, in addition to independent
research, validate that we are excellent at
delivering distinctive service and effective 
advice to our clients.

2012 GreeNwICh 
exCelleNCe awarDS

Greenwich Associates named Pinnacle a
winner for distinguished service in three

categories. The firm evaluated more than
750 banks across the country, including all
of the largest 50, by conducting thousands
of interviews with their clients. Only about 
5 percent of the financial institutions
evaluated were selected as significantly
better than their peers. Pinnacle’s recognition
includes regional awards for satisfaction in
small business banking, middle market
banking and treasury management.

Bank Average
18%

Pinnacle Financial Partners
(Source: Greenwich Associates)

31%
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hIGh SCoreS oN PINNaCle ClIeNT SUrVeYS

In our own survey we use the same 14 measures of client satisfaction every year to evaluate
current performance and compare to prior years. The chart below shows five of the 14 measures

that best represent client satisfaction. The one we take the most pride in is that more than 
97 percent of respondents indicate that “Pinnacle is recognizably better than its competition.”

2012 Service Quality — Representative Measures

My Financial Advisor…. Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Average

1. Is in touch with me frequently enough to know and meet my needs. 4.70 4.72 4.69 4.70 4.70

2. Demonstrates knowledge and experience necessary to meet my needs. 4.84 4.88 4.83 4.84 4.85

3. Provides timely responses to my requests. 4.85 4.86 4.81 4.85 4.84

4. Ensures accuracy in all our work. 4.85 4.84 4.80 4.83 4.83

5. Is recognizably better than his/her competitors. 4.83 4.80 4.76 4.81 4.80

Clients are asked to rate Pinnacle on a scale of 1 to 5 with 5 indicating “Strongly Agree” 
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Hire and retain highly experienced and qualified 
financial services professionals.

Strategy 2

Fulfilling our brand promise of distinctive
service and effective advice requires

attracting and retaining the best financial
professionals in Nashville and Knoxville.
With an average of 35 years of experience
including their time at Pinnacle, financial
advisors have a track record of success in
serving clients in these markets. Pinnacle’s
retention rate of 92.2 percent gives our clients
confidence that they can expect long-term
relationships with their partners at Pinnacle. 

Though Pinnacle’s earning assets shrank and market share movement slowed during the most recent
economic downturn, we retained virtually all of our financial advisors. And to help meet the
performance goals we set for 2012 and beyond, we hired an additional number of high-profile financial
advisors who also have the opportunity to bring large books of business with them. Their vast
experiences in areas such as specialty lending, private equity and business ownership, as well as 
key leadership positions at other banks, have brought an added depth of experience to our Pinnacle team.
It is our expectation that all of these financial advisors will be highly successful in leveraging their
longstanding personal relationships and Pinnacle’s reputation to consolidate their clients from previous
employers, in much the same way as our financial advisors did from inception until the recession began.

Pre-recession Growth Rate Proves Hiring Strategy
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Talk to any of Pinnacle’s associates, and they can tell you the company’s vision is to be the best
financial services firm and the best place to work in Tennessee. Better yet, they can translate that

vision into what they do every day—delivering distinctive service and effective advice.

According to Greenwich Associates, based on “willingness to recommend,” our business clients in
Nashville are substantially more loyal than those of any of the large national and regional franchises with
whom we compete.

Pinnacle’s clients 
are very likely to 
recommend us —
more than our 
competitors’ clients
are willing to 
recommend them.

Provide distinctive service and effective advice
in exchange for premium pricing.

Strategy 3
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Loyalty – Very Likely to Recommend (%)   

Note: Cross-hairs are set at the mean for lead penetration (Y-axis) and very likely to recommend (X-axis).
Question: On an 11-point scale, from "0" not at all likely to "10" extremely likely, how likely are you to recommend a company with similar needs
to (Lead Bank)? Which bank or non-bank do you consider to be your company's single most important or lead provider or banking services?
Source: 2012 Greenwich Associates Market Tracking Program (Pinnacle Financial - Nashville - $1-500 Million - Rolling 4Q to Q3 2012).

Pinnacle 

P I N N a C l e   C l I e N T S  
M o r e   l o Ya l
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The relationship between Bill Kenny, owner of Kenny
Pipe and Supply Inc., and Pinnacle financial advisor

Steve Uebelhor literally spans decades. Over those years,
Bill and Steve have developed a deep personal relationship
that has stood the test of good and bad economic times.
Steve’s advice that Kenny Pipe exit its smaller markets
ultimately resulted in less leverage against the company’s
balance sheet and a stronger business model. The
company now operates in 12 markets in three states. 

Steve helped Bill look to the future and structure his overall banking relationships and credit lines to
accommodate the company’s growth without any disruptions. Steve has also helped Bill structure some
challenging real estate transactions. “Especially when things don’t go as planned, Steve has come up with
options I would not have thought of,” Bill says. “Counselors are helpful in good times, but they’re really
valuable in tough times. Steve is a counselor to me in a very real sense of the word.”

eFFeCTIVe aDVICe IN aCTIoN

Kenny Pipe and Supply Inc.

Whether it’s “wowing” a veteran who was away by setting up drafts and
following up to ensure bills were paid or arranging a last-minute appraisal 

to make sure a client’s mortgage closed on time, our associates go beyond what
is expected. Our approach to “wowing” clients is to do things that are memorable,
delight them, provide unexpected solutions and anticipate their unspoken needs. 

Additionally, on our 2012 annual survey, 95 percent of clients indicated that 
we provided knowledge and insights they would not have otherwise. The very 
limited number of examples that follow provide some insight into the valuable
service and advice Pinnacle clients receive.
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Several banks in Knoxville wanted to work with
developers Jim Harrison and Budd Cullom on their

latest project, Northshore Town Center. The 133-acre
mixed-use commercial and residential development
was one of the biggest projects in the market at a time
when good real estate deals were few and far
between. After considering what other lenders could
bring to the table, Jim and Budd chose to partner with
Pinnacle financial advisor Tom Vester because of his
deep expertise in real estate transactions. Tom had
worked with both of the lead developers on various deals for 20 years, and they knew they could count on him 
to help navigate through the project. The sheer size was a challenge, and Tom figured out the best way to 
structure the deal, which included a letter of credit, a development loan and a 20-year Tax Increment Financing. 
Tom arranged for participation by another bank in order to provide “one-stop shopping” to the entire financing.
Anchor stores Target and Publix have since opened at Northshore, and the project is moving forward as planned.

Northshore Town Center

The founders of Cumberland Consulting Group, a
healthcare consulting firm in Nashville, used their

backgrounds as Big Six accounting firm executives to
deliver effective advice on a more efficient smaller company
platform. Pinnacle’s similar advice and service model drew
them to financial advisor Eric Kruse. When Cumberland
decided to bring in a private equity partner to fund
additional growth, they continued to work with Eric as 
their primary financial partner. He understood the options

available to the partners when they sold part of the business after the private equity transaction closed, as
well as the challenges that high liquidity posed. Eric introduced the partners to Pinnacle financial consultant
Jamie Hare, who was able to take his knowledge of their situation and future needs to offer advice on
investment structures. The sale of the business complicated the partners’ personal tax returns, but Pinnacle
mortgage advisor Brad Butler understood all of the moving parts and was able to refinance their mortgages.
Pinnacle’s familiarity with Cumberland’s service model and the founders’ personal financial needs helped
the partners transition through the company’s various growth phases.

Cumberland Consulting Group



Pinnacle’s Treasury Management team made 
a significant difference in the way Veronica

Buchanan runs her business, Glorious Wonders
Childcare Center in Murfreesboro. To help
Veronica manage her financial accounts, 
treasury management advisor Wendy Tompkins
recommended new processes using Pinnacle's
ACH services for client payments and employee
direct deposit of payroll. “This process alone has

decreased my security concerns for my employees on site with large deposits and has streamlined my
cash flow by decreasing the instance of late payments and returned checks,” Veronica says. The end
result is a more efficient process that saves money and gives Veronica more time to spend on the
other aspects of her business.

Glorious Wonders Childcare Center
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In 2012 Pinnacle started several Mastermind
Groups, which are small groups of business

owners who meet in focused sessions over two
months to work on their businesses rather than
working in their businesses. Pinnacle small
business financial advisor Kirsten Schriner
facilitated one of the Mastermind Groups, using
the book E-Myth Revisited as the center of their
discussions. The real value of the sessions is
that business owners get the opportunity to discuss and share their experiences. At its conclusion, this 
particular group decided to form an email group so they could continue to share information and draw on
one another’s knowledge. The sessions were so effective that one of the business owners who participated, 
Bill Holt of Aqueduct Irrigation, brought his employees to one of Pinnacle’s Learning Centers and led a
Mastermind Group with them to make some long-term changes in his company.

Mastermind Groups
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Helping clients learn more about the economy,
government priorities and other timely topics

builds on the effective advice our advisors provide.

Small workshops that take place in Pinnacle’s offices
offer insights into a variety of topics from associates
and outside experts. This past year 22 workshops
focused on issues such as information security,
Medicare and estate planning.

The Pinnacle Forum Series gives
participants a chance to hear from
leading outside speakers. Nashville
Mayor Karl Dean kicked off the 
series in February. In April guests
heard from renowned economist 
Art Laffer. Pinnacle partnered with 

the Rutherford County Chamber of Commerce in
December on a luncheon that featured Tennessee 
Gov. Bill Haslam as the speaker.

For clients who can’t attend events in person, Pinnacle’s
online Learning Center (www.pnfp.com/learning-center/)
provides a wealth of information about business
ownership, fraud protection, retirement and other
financial areas. The Pinnacle 5 Podcast series offers 
8-10 minute interviews with financial advisors about
topics such as “5 Ways to Minimize College Costs” 
and “5 Actions to Take Before You Buy a House.”

ClIeNT eNrIChMeNT oPPorTUNITIeS

Forum speakers Art Laffer (top) and Gov. Bill
Haslam (bottom left) answered clients’ 

questions about the economy and politics.
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Offer a full line of financial services, including investments, 
mortgage, trust, insurance and treasury management.

Strategy 4

$636.5 million in
small business loans

P I N N a C l e  T o P  S M a l l  B U S I N e S S
l e N D e r  I N  M I D D l e  T e N N e S S e eWe intentionally chose the name “Pinnacle

Financial Partners” to convey that we are
“more than a bank.” We knew we had to be able to
meet all of a client’s financial needs—whether at
home, at the office or when managing their wealth. 

The firm organizes its comprehensive platform of
financial services around three broad offerings:
personal banking, business banking and wealth
management. Each client has a financial advisor
who acts as the “quarterback” and coordinates 
with the other areas. This gives clients the benefit
of one primary contact who can assemble a team
with a variety of expertise to provide a solution
customized to their unique financial needs. 

Financial advisors for personal banking juggle
many responsibilities. Depending on what the 
client needs on any given day, they may close a
loan, open a line of credit, suggest the best type 
of deposit account or make an introduction to a
mortgage advisor.

P innacle’s business advisors offer a similar range 
of banking services to companies and their

owners. Many of the financial advisors within
business banking have expertise in certain industry 
sectors, such as health care or music; key business
functions, such as treasury management; or certain
market segments, such as owner-managed businesses. 

Our wealth management capabilities best
demonstrate Pinnacle’s intent to be “more than 
a bank.” The associates in wealth management 
are experts in financial planning, investment
management, trust and insurance services. 
Their goal is to help clients grow, manage and
distribute assets.

We have continued to place emphasis on
introducing and involving all of the right
specialists to make sure we offer our clients all
the financial services and products they may
need. Greenwich Associates’ research indicates
that our business clients appreciate the full line 
of financial services we offer. In Nashville, 
on average, our business clients have chosen
Pinnacle as their provider for 4.0 unique financial
services, versus a range of 2.5 to 3.7 products 
for our primary in-market competitors.

(Source:  Nashville Business Journal)
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Pinnacle is the second-largest bank holding 
company headquartered in Tennessee with 29

offices in eight Middle Tennessee counties and three
offices in Knoxville. Pinnacle plans to open a new
office in the Cedar Bluff area of Knoxville in 2013.

In addition to our physical locations, Pinnacle also
offers mobile applications for smart phones so clients
can check their balances and transfer funds on the go.
With these mobile apps, our remote deposit capabilities
for businesses and online banking features, clients can
bank with Pinnacle virtually anytime, anywhere.

Offer extraordinary
convenience.

Strategy 5

New Cedar Bluff location rendering (above) and
mobile app and online banking screens (below)



Throughout our history we have been fortunate to have
committed investors—both individuals and institutions. 

They have applauded our growth phase and provided
support during our turnaround. We began a third phase 
in 2012—one primarily focused on increasing shareholder
value through disciplined growth.

ENGAGED SHAREHOLDERS
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PINNaCle’S Three GrowTh PhaSeS

Assets hit 
$1 billion 

at year end,
all through

organic
growth

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

2000 – 2008
Rapid de Novo Expansion 

PHASE 1  

Pinnacle recognized for
achieving 2nd highest total
shareholder returns over

past five years among
publicly traded banks

(2003-2008)

Pinnacle
opens in
Nashville

Pinnacle
achieves

break even
results in 13

months

Pinnacle's
organic
growth

achieves
$498 million
in assets in
three years
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“Most Trustworthy” Company
Forbes magazine named Pinnacle one

of “America’s Most Trustworthy
Companies” in March. Forbes and
independent corporate governance

analytics firm GMI Ratings published
the list of 100 companies on American

exchanges that are the most
transparent and trustworthy. 

TARP Redemption
In June, Pinnacle redeemed the
remaining outstanding preferred
shares held by the U.S. Treasury

in the TARP Capital Purchase
Program. The firm financed the

redemption through existing cash
balances and a senior debt

facility instead of diluting
shareholder value by issuing

more shares of common stock. 

State Charter Conversion
In the third quarter Pinnacle National Bank,
like a number of high-performing banks
around the country, converted to a state bank
charter. At a time of increasing government
regulation and cost to comply, the move was
intended to simplify communications with
local regulatory authorities that know and
understand our Tennessee markets.

Stock Price
Pinnacle’s share price has
responded to the pace of
recovery and future
outlook. Since September
2010, Pinnacle has
outperformed the key
banks with which we
compete: Bank of America,
Regions, SunTrust and
First Tennessee.

Pinnacle Financial Partners 29
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2012 HIGHLIGHTS

PHASE 3

2009 2010 2011

2009 – 2011
Recession Requires 

New Focus

2012 and BEYOND
Creating Shareholder Value Through 

Disciplined Growth

PHASE 2

Engaging
Associates

Engaging
Clients

Engaging
Shareholders

2012
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In its first eight years, Pinnacle grew
loans and deposits at rates far above 

the industry averages while maintaining
superior credit quality. Pinnacle acquired
two large Middle Tennessee franchises,
Cavalry Bancorp and Mid-America
Bancshares, in 2006 and 2007, respectively.
Also in 2007 Pinnacle launched a de novo
expansion into the Knoxville market. 
From Dec. 31, 2000, to Dec. 31, 2008,
share price grew an average of 33.2 percent
a year, and Pinnacle shareholders enjoyed
the second-highest return of all publicly
traded banks in the United States.

Rapid de Novo
Expansion 2000-2008 

PHASE 1

The tide changed with the severe and
prolonged recession that began in

2008. Pinnacle’s focus turned away 
from growth toward rebuilding the 
core earnings capacity of the firm and
aggressively dealing with troubled 
assets, particularly our concentration 
in residential real estate. Just as
Pinnacle’s strong execution during 
the rapid expansion phase outpaced 
its key competitors, so did Pinnacle’s
execution during the turnaround phase.

eNGaGeD ShareholDerS

Recession Requires 
New Focus 2009-2011

PHASE 2
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Net Charge-Offs to Total Loans 2008-2012

Non-Performing Assets as a Percentage of Loans and ORE
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9.24%

*Q4 2012 figures not available at press time.Source for both charts: SNL Data
Nonperforming assets includes nonperforming loans, troubled debt restructurings, 90+ days past due and OREO. 
The denominator is both loans held for sale and held for investment and OREO. 
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Phase 1 proved that our engaged associates were
excellent at growing the business. Similarly 

during Phase 2, it appears our engaged associates not
only worked through the necessary balance sheet
rehabilitation more quickly than in-market peers, but
they also helped us bring even greater discipline to 
our ongoing processes. Our priority in Phase 3 is
leveraging our engaged associates to create shareholder
value by focusing on long-term profitability targets 
and harvesting the benefits of our attractive markets.

Pinnacle is Progressing Toward Targets

loNG-TerM ProFITaBIlITY TarGeTS

In 2012 we continued to expand relationships with existing clients, brought in additional high-producing
financial advisors with significant client followings and attracted substantial numbers of new clients.

These actions helped us achieve steady progress toward our long-term profitability targets. 

Creating Shareholder Value
Through Disciplined 
Growth 2012 
and Beyond

PHASE 3
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Expanding our net interest margin has
been a priority in the face of increasing

competition for loans from our regional
competitors. Our long-term target is a net interest
margin between 3.70 and 3.90 percent. Net
interest margin ended the year at 3.80 percent,
increasing for the ninth consecutive quarter and
hitting the mid-point of our target range.

We are operating inside the range on each of our
long-term targets except noninterest expense to
average assets. That ratio is currently too high.
We intend to continue lowering targeted
operating costs as well as expenses that have
been elevated in conjunction with the difficult
credit environment over the last four years. 

As a part of our balance sheet rehabilitation,
assets declined by roughly $300 million from 
the peak in 2009. Despite the pull back, we 
made the strategic decision not to cut expenses
associated with revenue generation. And more
than that, we actually increased the number of
financial advisors by roughly 10 percent during
2012, an investment in future growth based on
the market opportunity we see.

So the key to meeting all of our long-term
profitability targets is to grow quality loans

while containing expenses. We believe the
financial advisors who are currently on our
payroll, including the group we hired over the
past 18 months, have the capacity to produce
approximately $1.3 billion in net loan growth
over roughly three years beginning in 2012. 

And with one year down, this tactic for
achieving our long-term profitability is 
yielding good results. Pinnacle’s organic 
growth model regained momentum in 2012, 
as we experienced a 12.8 percent increase in 
net loan growth, roughly one-third of the 
three-year growth target.

Obviously, to produce this kind of asset 
growth while aggressively managing 
operating expenses will transform the
noninterest expense to asset ratio substantially,
along with the profitability of the firm. 

Net loans
grew 12.8
percent in
2012.

Net interest margin
increased for nine
consecutive quarters,
ending the year at
3.80 percent.

l o a N   G r o w T h   a N D   M a r G I N S   a r e   k e Y
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BeNeFITS oF oUr aTTraCTIVe MarkeTS 

Businesses and families find many advantages to living 
in Tennessee, including excellent quality of life, 

moderate climate and numerous tax advantages. In 2012
Chief Executive magazine ranked Tennessee the fourth-best
state for business. Tennessee also was recognized as one of the
top 10 business climates in the United States by Site Selection
magazine. Within Tennessee, Pinnacle operates in the state’s
two top markets—Nashville and Knoxville.  

Pinnacle holds the fourth-largest market share in Nashville 
behind three large regional banks, making us the largest
locally owned alternative for clients. The firm has quickly
grown to be the sixth-largest financial institution in the
Knoxville market after a 2007 de novo expansion into the area.

Tennessee is 
the No. 4 state
for business.

Existing Lenders Have Incremental Capacity to Take Share and Grow Loans

$–

2012

Fa Capacity
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• No. 1 metropolitan area for projected job growth,
Kiplinger

• Fourth-strongest economy in the country, PolICoM

• 10th best U.S. city for business and careers, Forbes

2012 Annual Report eNGaGeD ShareholDerS

Nashville achieved “it city” status in 2012, landing on
several major national publications’ lists of hot spots.
Travel + Leisure named it No. 3 overall in its list of
America’s Best Cities. Nashville was No. 13 on
BloombergBusinessweek’s ranking of America’s 
50 best cities. GQ simply dubbed it “Nowville.”

Nashville’s diverse economy, thriving cultural base and
strong business community are major attractions for
corporations. Unemployment levels fell rapidly in 2012
and reached a two-year low of 5.7 percent, which is more
than two full percentage points below the national average.
Economic development accolades in 2012 include: 

NaShVIlle

• No. 6 best mid-sized city for jobs, Forbes

• No. 8 fastest-growing U.S. city, CNN Money

• No. 10 for economic growth, Business Facilities

Knoxville also enjoys a very healthy and diverse
economy with an excellent transportation and
technology infrastructure. A Brookings Institution
report found that the Knoxville metro area is one of
only three in the United States whose economy has
fully recovered from the impact of the recession.
Among Knoxville’s rankings in 2012:

kNoxVIlle
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Nashville
Knoxville



Another critical factor in creating
long-term shareholder value is aligning
associates’ interests with those of our
shareholders. Three commitments
assure that everyone involved with 
the firm has a stake as an “owner”:

•  Inside ownership, including
directors, is approximately 
8.72 percent. 

•  All associates receive restricted 
shares of stock when they start 
and each year thereafter.

•  All non-commissioned associates
participate in an annual cash
incentive plan that is based primarily
on meeting the firm’s targets for 
loan quality, revenue growth and
earnings per share growth. In 2012
Pinnacle associates earned 102
percent of targeted incentives based
on the firm’s excellent performance,
which says much about the
challenging performance targets 
we set for ourselves, as well as 
our ability to execute in a difficult
operating environment. 

We anticipate that all of our
shareholders will continue to enjoy
benefits from this strong alignment
and the long-term results it should 
continue to deliver.

We also remain confident in our
longstanding formula for success
—that our engaged associates will
continue to engage clients and that
those engaged clients will lead to
outsized shareholder returns. 

SHAREHOLDER
ALIGNMENT
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Certain of the statements in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The words “expect,” “anticipate,” “goal,”
“objective,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” ”should,” “seek,” “estimate” and similar expressions
are intended to identify such forward-looking statements, but other statements not based 
on historical information may also be considered forward-looking. All forward-looking
statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of Pinnacle Financial to differ materially from any
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such risks include, without
limitation, (i) deterioration in the financial condition of borrowers resulting in significant loan
losses and provisions for those losses; (ii) continuation of the historically low, short-term
interest rate environment; (iii) the inability of Pinnacle Financial to grow its loan portfolio in
the Nashville-Davidson-Murfreesboro-Franklin MSA (the “Nashville MSA”) and the Knoxville
MSA; (iv) changes in loan underwriting, credit review or loss reserve policies associated
with economic conditions, examination conclusions, or regulatory developments; (v)
effectiveness of Pinnacle Financial’s asset management activities in improving, resolving or
liquidating lower-quality assets; (vi) increased competition with other financial institutions;
(vii) greater than anticipated adverse conditions in the national or local economies including
the Nashville MSA and the Knoxville MSA, particularly in commercial and residential real
estate markets; (viii) rapid fluctuations or unanticipated changes in interest rates; (ix) the
results of regulatory examinations; (x) the development of any new market other than
Nashville or Knoxville; (xi) a merger or acquisition; (xii) any matter that would cause
Pinnacle Financial to conclude that there was impairment of any asset, including intangible
assets; (xiii) the ability to attract additional financial advisors or to attract customers from
other financial institutions and conversely, the inability to realize the economic benefits of
newly hired financial advisors; (xiv) the ability to retain large, uninsured deposits with the
expiration of the FDIC’s transaction account guarantee program; (xv) further deterioration in
the valuation of other real estate owned and increased expenses associated therewith; (xvi)
inability to comply with regulatory capital requirements; and, (xvii) changes in state and
federal legislation, regulations or policies applicable to banks and other financial service
providers, including regulatory or legislative developments arising out of current unsettled
conditions in the economy, including implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). A more detailed description of these
and other risks is contained in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of our Annual Report on Form 10-k
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. Many of such factors are beyond Pinnacle
Financial’s ability to control or predict, and readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance
on such forward-looking statements. Pinnacle Financial disclaims any obligation to update
or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this release, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. 

Forward looking statements



2012 Annual Report 

Pinnacle Financial Partners 39

TaBle oF CoNTeNTS For FINaNCIalS

Selected financial data ......................................................................................................38

Management’s discussion and analysis ..........................................................................39

Consolidated financial statements ..................................................................................68

Reports of independent registered public accounting firm ........................................113

Management report on internal control 
over financial reporting/Investor information ................................................................115

TaBle oF CoNTeNTS For FINaNCIalS



 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
 ($ in 000s except per share data) 
Statement of Financial Condition Data (as of December 31):      
Total assets $ 5,040,549 $ 4,863,951 $ 4,909,004 $5,128,811 $4,754,075 
Loans, net of unearned income 3,712,162 3,291,351 3,212,440 3,563,382 3,354,907 
Allowance for loan losses 69,417 73,975 82,575       91,959      36,484 
Total securities 707,153 897,292 1,018,637 937,555 849,781 
Goodwill, core deposit  and other intangible assets 249,144 251,919 254,795 257,793 261,032 
Deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,129,855 3,785,931 3,979,352 4,099,064 3,717,544 
Advances from FHLB  75,850 226,069 121,393 212,655 273,609 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 106,158 97,476 97,476 97,476 97,476 
Stockholders’ equity 679,071 710,145 677,457 701,020 627,298 
      Statement of Operations Data:      
Interest income $    185,422 $    188,346 $    203,348 $   205,716 $  206,082 
Interest expense 22,558 36,882 58,975 74,925 91,867 

Net interest income 162,864 151,464 144,373 130,791 114,215 
Provision for loan losses 5,569 21,798 53,695 116,758 11,214 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 157,296 129,666 90,678 14,033 103,001 
Noninterest income 43,397 37,940 36,315 39,651 34,718 
Noninterest expense 138,165 139,107 146,883 118,577 94,478 

Income (loss) before income taxes 62,527 28,499 (19,890) (64,893) 43,241 
Income tax expense(benefit) 20,643 (15,238) 4,410 (29,393) 12,367 
    Net income (loss) 41,884 43,737 (24,300) (35,500)     30,874 
Preferred dividends and accretion on common stock warrants 3,814 6,665 6,142 5,930 309 

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $      38,070 $      37,072 $   (30,442) $  (41,430) $    30,565 
      Per Share Data:      
Earnings (loss) per share available to common stockholders – basic $          1.12 $          1.11 $       (0.93) $      (1.46) $        1.34 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 33,899,667 33,420,015 32,789,871 28,395,618 22,793,699 
Earnings (loss) per common share available to common stockholders – 
diluted $          1.10 $          1.09 $       (0.93) $      (1.46) $        1.27 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 34,487,808 34,060,228 32,789,871 28,395,618 24,053,972 
Book value per common share $        19.57 $        18.56 $        17.22 $       18.41 $      22.40 
Common shares outstanding at end of period 34,696,597 34,354,960 33,870,380 33,029,719 23,762,124 
      Performance Ratios and Other Data:        
Return on average assets 0.78% 0.77% (0.61%) (0.82%) 0.74% 
Return on average stockholders’ equity 5.46% 5.27% (4.37%) (6.10%) 6.13% 
Net interest margin (1) 3.77% 3.55% 3.25% 2.93% 3.17% 
Net interest spread (2) 3.61% 3.33% 2.99% 2.64% 2.78% 
Noninterest income to average assets 0.89% 0.78% 0.72% 0.79% 0.84% 
Noninterest expense to average assets 2.83% 2.88% 2.93% 2.34% 2.30% 
Efficiency ratio (3) 66.99% 73.45% 81.29% 69.57% 63.43% 
Average loan to average deposit ratio 92.78% 86.76% 87.64% 94.51% 97.70% 
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities 131.44% 125.84% 120.27% 117.52% 115.27% 
Average equity to average total assets ratio 14.30% 14.55% 13.90% 13.55% 12.15% 
      Asset Quality Ratios:      
Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans 304.2% 154.6% 102.1% 73.7% 335.95% 
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.87% 2.25% 2.57% 2.58% 1.09% 
Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.82% 1.80% 2.86% 3.01% 0.61% 
Nonperforming assets to total loans and other real estate 1.11% 2.66% 4.29% 4.29% 0.86% 
Net loan charge-offs to average loans 0.29% 0.94% 1.96% 1.71% 0.11% 
      Capital Ratios (Pinnacle Financial):      
Leverage (4) 10.6% 11.4% 10.7% 10.7% 10.5% 
Tier 1 risk-based capital 11.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.1% 12.1% 
Total risk-based capital 13.0% 15.3% 15.4% 14.8% 13.5% 

  
(1) Net interest margin is the result of net interest income for the period divided by average interest earning assets. 
(2) Net interest spread is the result of the difference between the interest earned on interest earning assets less the interest paid on interest 

bearing liabilities. 
(3) Efficiency ratio is the result of noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income. 
(4) Leverage ratio is computed by dividing Tier 1 capital by average total assets for the fourth quarter of each year. 
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MaNaGeMeNT’S DISCUSSIoN aND aNalYSIS

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 
 
The following is a discussion of our financial condition at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and our results of 
operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012.  The purpose of this discussion is 
to focus on information about our financial condition and results of operations which is not otherwise apparent from 
the consolidated financial statements.  The following discussion and analysis should be read along with our 
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere herein.  
 
Overview 
 
General.  During 2012, our focus was to improve our asset quality and grow the core earnings capacity of the firm.  
Our fully diluted net income per common share available to common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 
2012 was $1.10 compared to fully diluted net income (loss) per common share available to common stockholders of 
$1.09 and ($0.93) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Results for the year ended 
December 31, 2011, included a $22.5 million benefit associated with the reversal of the deferred tax valuation 
allowance which was established during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.   
 
Results of operations.  Our net interest income increased to $162.9 million for 2012 compared to $151.5 million for 
2011 and $144.4 million for 2010.   The net interest margin (the ratio of net interest income to average earning 
assets) for 2012 was 3.77% compared to 3.55% for 2011 and 3.25% for 2010.  Our net interest margin was impacted 
favorably in all three years by an increased effort to reduce our cost of funds and our decreased dependency on 
higher priced noncore funding.   
 
Our provision for loan losses was $5.6 million for 2012 compared to $21.8 million in 2011 and $53.7 million in 
2010.  Our net charge-offs were $10.1 million during 2012 compared to $30.4 million in 2011 and $63.1 million in 
2010.  During 2012, we decreased our allowance for loan losses as a percentage of loans from 2.25% at December 
31, 2011 to 1.87% at December 31, 2012 primarily due to the ongoing resolution of non-performing loans, the 
reduction in our net charge-offs, and overall improvements in the asset quality of our loan portfolio during 2012. 
 
Noninterest income for 2012 compared to 2011 increased by $5.5 million, or 14.4%. This growth was primarily 
attributable to increased production in our mortgage origination business as well as in our fee-based products such as 
investments, insurance and trust. Noninterest income for 2011 compared to 2010 increased by $1.6 million, or 4.5%.   
 
Noninterest expense for 2012 compared to 2011 decreased by $942 thousand, or 6.8%, primarily due to decreased 
other real estate owned expenses, which decreased by $5.9 million over the 2011 levels, and lower FDIC insurance 
expense, which decreased by $3.5 million offset by higher salaries and employee benefits expense, which increased 
by $3.6 million.  Noninterest expense for 2011 compared to 2010 decreased by $7.8 million, or 5.3%, primarily due 
to decreased other real estate owned expenses which decreased by $11.8 million from 2010, and lower FDIC 
insurance expense, which decreased by $2.8 million from 2010, offset by higher salaries and employee benefits 
expense, which increased by $9.8 million primarily as a result of $9.4 million of cash incentive compensation in 
2011compared to no cash incentive compensation paid in 2010. The number of full-time equivalent employees 
decreased from 769 at December 31, 2010 to 747 at December 31, 2011.  There were 730.5 full-time equivalent 
employees at December 31, 2012.   
 
Income tax expense for 2012 was $20.6 million compared to an income tax benefit of $15.2 million in 2011 and 
income tax expense of $4.4 million in 2010.  The effective income tax expense rate for the year ended December 31, 
2012 was approximately 33.0%, compared to an income tax benefit rate of 53.5% for the year ended December 31, 
2011 and an effective income tax expense rate of 22.2% for the year ended December 31, 2010.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2012, our effective income tax rate differs from the statutory rates primarily due to our investments in 
bank qualified municipal securities, our real estate investment trust and bank-owned life insurance offset in part by 
meals and entertainment expense and executive compensation expense, portions of which are non-deductible.  For 
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, our income tax expense rate was principally impacted by the reversal 
of the deferred tax valuation allowance in the third quarter of 2011 which had been initially established during the 
second quarter of 2010.   
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Net income available to common stockholders for 2012 was $38.1 million compared to $37.1 million in net income 
in 2011 and $30.4 million in net loss available to common stockholders in 2010.  Fully-diluted net income per 
common share available to common stockholders was $1.10 for 2012 compared to fully-diluted net income per 
common share available to common stockholders of $1.09 for 2011 and fully-diluted net loss per common share 
available to common stockholders of $0.93 for 2010.  Included in net income available to common stockholders for 
the year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately $3.8 million of charges related to preferred stock dividends 
and accretion of the preferred stock discount related to our participation in the U.S. Treasury’s CPP, as compared to 
$6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The 
charges associated with the preferred stock in fiscal 2012 and 2011 included the acceleration of the preferred stock 
discount associated with the early redemption of 23,750 shares of Series A preferred stock during the fourth quarter 
of 2011 and the remaining 71,250 shares during the second quarter of 2012. 
 
Financial Condition.  Our loan balances increased by $420.8 million during 2012 compared to an increase of $78.9 
million in 2011.  The increase in our outstanding loan balances represents a renewed focus on our organic growth 
model.  Loan growth in 2011 was offset by the continued resolution of non-performing loans, specifically loans 
within the construction and development portfolio.  
 
Total deposits increased from $3.654 billion at December 31, 2011 to $4.015 billion at December 31, 2012.  Within 
our deposits, the ratio of core funding to total deposits increased from 83.8% at December 31, 2011 to 89.9% at 
December 31, 2012.  The increase in our core funding percentage contributed to our improved cost of funds during 
2012.  

We believe we have hired experienced relationship managers that have significant client portfolios and longstanding 
reputations within the communities we serve.  As such, we believe they will attract additional loans and deposits 
from new and existing small-and middle-market clients as the economies in our principal markets continue to 
strengthen.  

Capital and Liquidity.  At December 31, 2012 and 2011, our capital ratios, including our bank’s capital ratios, 
exceeded regulatory minimum capital requirements.  From time to time we may be required to support the capital 
needs of Pinnacle Bank. At December 31, 2012, we had approximately $13.7 million of cash at the holding 
company which could be used to support our bank. Although we do not anticipate our bank needing any additional 
capital from us currently, we believe we have various capital raising techniques available to us to provide for the 
capital needs of our bank, if necessary. 

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we issued 95,000 shares of Series A preferred stock for $95 million to the U.S. 
Treasury as part of the U.S. Treasury’s TARP Capital Purchase Program (CPP). Concurrently, we issued warrants to 
acquire 534,910 shares of our common stock to the U.S. Treasury. The warrants had an exercise price of $26.64 
each, were immediately exercisable and expired 10 years from the date of issuance. Subsequently, the number of 
warrants outstanding was reduced by half as a result of our 2009 public stock offering.  During the fourth quarter of 
2011, we repurchased 25% of the shares of Series A preferred stock originally issued to the U.S. Treasury under the 
CPP in a transaction totaling approximately $23.9 million. During the second quarter of 2012, we completed the 
redemption of the remaining 71,250 outstanding preferred shares owned by the U.S. Treasury in a transaction 
totaling $71.6 million.  We accelerated the accretion of the remaining preferred stock discount of approximately 
$1.7 million during the second quarter of 2012. Subsequent to the redemption of the preferred shares, we 
repurchased all of the remaining outstanding warrants held by the U.S. Treasury for $755,000 during the third 
quarter of 2012.   

Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and with general practices within the banking industry.  In connection with the 
application of those principles, we have made judgments and estimates which, in the case of the determination of 
our allowance for loan losses, the valuation of other real estate owned, the assessment of the valuation of deferred 
tax assets and the assessment of impairment of intangibles, has been critical to the determination of our financial 
position and results of operations. 
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Allowance for Loan Losses (allowance).  Our management assesses the adequacy of the allowance prior to the end 
of each calendar quarter.  This assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy and 
appropriateness of the resulting balance.  The level of the allowance is based upon management’s evaluation of the 
loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, current asset quality trends, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, 
adverse situations that may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay the loan (including the timing of future payment), 
the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, industry 
and peer bank loan quality indications and other pertinent factors, including regulatory recommendations.  The level 
of allowance maintained is believed by management to be adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio at the balance sheet date.  The allowance is increased by provisions charged to expense and decreased by 
charge-offs, net of recoveries of amounts previously charged-off.  Allocation of the allowance may be made for 
specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management’s judgment, is deemed to be 
uncollectible.   
 
In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, we also consider the results of our ongoing independent loan review 
process.  We undertake this process both to ascertain those loans in the portfolio with elevated credit risk and to 
assist in our overall evaluation of the risk characteristics of the entire loan portfolio.  Our loan review process 
includes the judgment of management, independent internal loan reviewers, and reviews that may have been 
conducted by third-party reviewers including regulatory examiners. We incorporate relevant loan review results in 
the loan impairment determination. 
 
Our allowance for loan losses is composed of the result of two independent analyses pursuant to the provisions of 
ASC 450-20, Loss Contingencies and ASC 310-10-35, Receivables.  The ASC 450-20 analysis is intended to 
quantify the inherent risk in our performing loan portfolio.  The component of the allowance generated by ASC 310-
10-35 is the result of a loan-by-loan analysis of loans that have been specifically identified as impaired.   
 
The ASC 450-20 component of the allowance for loan losses begins with a process of estimating the probable losses 
based on our internal system of risk ratings and historical loss data for our risk rated portfolio.  Prior to 2010, 
because of our limited loss history, loss estimates were primarily derived from historical loss data by loan categories 
for comparable peer institutions.  During 2010, we incorporated the results of our own historical migration analysis 
of all loans that were charged-off during the prior eight quarters.  The look-back period in our migration analysis 
was extended in 2011 to eleven quarters to continue to include the losses incurred in the second quarter of 2009. 
Subsequently, we have increased our look-back period each quarter to include the most recent quarters’ loss history 
for a total of 15 quarters as of December 31, 2012.  We will likely continue to increase our look-back period to 
eventually incorporate twenty quarters of loss history.   In this current economic environment, we believe the 
extension of our look-back period in our migration analysis is appropriate due to the risks inherent in our loan 
portfolio.  Absent the extension, the early cycle periods in which we experienced significant losses would be 
excluded from the determination of the allowance and its balance would decrease.   This migration analysis assists in 
evaluating loan loss allocation rates for the various risk grades assigned to loans in our portfolio. The results of the 
migration analysis are then compared to other industry factors to determine the loss allocation rates for the risk rated 
loan portfolios.  The loss allocation rates from our migration analysis and the industry loss factors are weighted 75% 
- 25% respectively to determine a weighted average loss allocation rate for these portfolios. 
 
The allowance allocation for non risk-rated portfolios is based on consideration of our actual historical loss rates and 
industry loss rates for those particular segments. Non risk-rated loans are evaluated as a group by category rather 
than on a individual loan basis because these loans are smaller and homogeneous.  We weight the allocation 
methodologies for the non risk-rated loan portfolio and determine a weighted average allocation for these portfolios. 

 
The estimated loan loss allocation for all loan segments is then adjusted for management’s estimate of probable 
losses for a number of environmental factors. The allocation for environmental factors is particularly subjective and 
does not lend itself to exact mathematical calculation.  This amount represents estimated probable inherent credit 
losses which exist, but have not yet been identified, as of the balance sheet date, and is based upon quarterly trend 
assessments in delinquent and nonaccrual loans, unanticipated charge-offs, credit concentration changes, prevailing 
economic conditions, changes in lending personnel experience, changes in lending policies or procedures and other 
influencing factors.  These environmental factors are considered for each of the five loan segments, and the 
allowance allocation, as determined by the processes noted above for each segment, is increased or decreased based 
on the incremental assessment of these various environmental factors.   
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The ASC 450-20 portion of the allowance also includes an unallocated component.  We believe that the unallocated 
amount is warranted for inherent factors that cannot be practically assigned to individual loan categories, such as the 
imprecision in the overall loss allocation measurement process, the volatility of the local economies in the markets 
we serve and imprecision in our credit risk ratings process. 
 
The second component of the allowance for loan losses is determined pursuant to ASC 310-10-35.  Loans are 
impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts 
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Collection of all amounts due according to the 
contractual terms means that both the interest and principal payments of a loan will be collected as scheduled in the 
loan agreement.  This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and 
timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change.  
Loan losses are charged off when management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely.  A loan 
may be partially charged-off after a “confirming event” has occurred which serves to validate that full repayment 
pursuant to the terms of the loan is unlikely.   
 
An impairment allowance is recognized if the fair value of the loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan 
(recorded investment in the loan is the principal balance plus any accrued interest, net of deferred loan fees or costs 
and unamortized premium or discount).  The impairment is recognized through the provision for loan losses and is a 
component of the allowance.  Loans that are impaired are recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or if the loan is collateral dependent, the fair value of the collateral, 
less estimated disposal costs. If the loan is collateral dependent, the principal balance of the loan is charged-off in an 
amount equal to the impairment measurement.  The fair value of collateral dependent loans is derived primarily 
from collateral appraisals performed by independent third-party appraisers.  Management believes it follows 
appropriate accounting and regulatory guidance in determining impairment and accrual status of impaired loans.   
 
Pursuant to the guidance set forth in ASU No. 2011-02, A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuring is a 
Troubled Debt Restructuring, the above impairment methodology is also applied to those loans identified as 
troubled debt restructurings.  
 
We then test the resulting allowance by comparing the balance in the allowance to historical trends and industry and 
peer information.  Our management then evaluates the result of the procedures performed, including the results of 
our testing, and decides on the appropriateness of the balance of the allowance in its entirety.  The audit committee 
of our board of directors reviews and approves the assessment prior to the filing of quarterly and annual financial 
information. 
 
While our policies and procedures used to estimate the allowance for loan losses, as well as the resultant provision 
for loan losses charged to operations, are considered adequate by management and are reviewed from time to time 
by our regulators, they are necessarily approximate and imprecise.  There are factors beyond our control, such as 
conditions in the local and national economy, a local real estate market or particular industry conditions which may 
negatively impact, materially, our asset quality and the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses and, thus, the 
resulting provision for loan losses. 
 
Other Real Estate Owned. Other real estate owned (OREO), consists of properties obtained through foreclosure or 
through deed in lieu of foreclosure in satisfaction of loans, is reported at the lower of cost or fair value based on 
appraised value less selling costs, estimated as of the date acquired, with any loss recognized as a charge-off through 
the allowance for loan losses.  Additional OREO losses for subsequent downward valuation adjustments are 
determined on a specific property basis and are included as a component of other noninterest expense along with 
holding costs. The fair value of other real estate owned is derived primarily from independent appraisers. Our 
internal policies generally require OREO properties to be appraised every nine months.  At December 31, 2012, the 
average age of our OREO appraisals was 7.2 months. Any net gains or losses on disposal realized at the time of 
disposal are reflected in noninterest income or noninterest expense, as applicable.  Significant judgments and 
complex estimates are required in estimating the fair value of other real estate owned, and the period of time within 
which such estimates can be considered current is significantly shortened during periods of market volatility, as 
experienced during the last few years. As a result, the net proceeds realized from sales transactions could differ 
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significantly from appraisals, comparable sales, and other estimates used to determine the fair value of other real 
estate owned.  
 
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation. A valuation allowance is recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based on the weight of 
available evidence, it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The 
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the 
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. In making such judgments, significant weight is 
given to evidence that can be objectively determined. Primarily as a result of credit losses, we entered into a three-
year cumulative pre-tax loss position as of June 30, 2010. A three-year cumulative loss position is considered 
significant negative evidence in assessing the realizability of a deferred tax asset which is difficult to overcome and 
accordingly, we established a valuation allowance against the net deferred tax asset at June 30, 2010. Subsequently, 
we reported several linked-quarters with increasing profitability, demonstrated an improved ability to produce 
reliable projections, and realized an improvement in overall asset quality and related credit metrics. Due to these 
factors, other positive trends, and the relatively short period of time in which we forecast we will be able to exit a 
three-year cumulative tax loss position and utilize our net deferred tax asset, we determined during the quarter ended 
September 30, 2011 that we had sufficient objective positive evidence to reverse the beginning of the year deferred 
tax valuation allowance at September 30, 2011.  At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we did not have a deferred tax 
valuation allowance.  
 
Impairment of Intangible Assets.  Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization, 
such as our core deposit intangible asset, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Recoverability of assets to be held and used is 
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected 
to be generated by the asset.  If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an 
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of 
the asset.  Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of 
the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. There are no such assets to be 
disposed of at December 31, 2012.  
 
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the 
asset might be impaired.  Our annual assessment date is September 30.  An impairment loss is recognized to the 
extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value.    
 
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, regarding testing 
goodwill for impairment. The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to 
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If 
an entity does a qualitative assessment and determines that this is the case, or if a qualitative assessment is not 
performed, it is required to perform a two step goodwill impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment 
and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit (if any). Based on a 
qualitative assessment, if an entity determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is more than its carrying amount, 
the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. We adopted the new guidance beginning January 1, 2012 and 
applied this guidance used in our annual assessment as of September 30, 2012. The results of our qualitative 
assessment indicated that the fair value of our reporting unit was more than its carrying value, and accordingly, the 
two-step goodwill impairment test was not performed. 
 
Should our common stock price decline or other impairment indicators become known, additional impairment 
testing of goodwill may be required. Should it be determined in a future period that the goodwill has become 
impaired, then a charge to earnings will be recorded in the period such determination is made. While we believe that 
the assumptions utilized in our testing were appropriate, they may not reflect actual outcomes that could occur. 
Specific factors that could negatively impact the assumptions used include the following: a change in the control 
premiums being realized in the market or a meaningful change in the number of mergers and acquisitions occurring; 
the amount of expense savings that may be realized in an acquisition scenario;  significant fluctuations in our 
asset/liability balances or the composition of our balance sheet; a change in the overall valuation of the stock market, 
specifically bank stocks; performance of Southeast U.S. Banks; and Pinnacle Financial’s performance relative to 
peers.  Changing these assumptions, or any other key assumptions, could have a material impact on the amount of 
goodwill impairment, if any.  
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Results of Operations  
 
The following is a summary of our results of operations for 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands except per share 
data): 
 

 Years ended 2012-2011 Year ended 2011-2010 
 December 31, Percent December 31, Percent 
 

2012 2011 
Increase 

(Decrease) 2010 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
      
Interest income $  185,422 $ 188,346 (1.6%) $ 203,348 (1.2%) 
Interest expense 22,558 36,882 (38.8%) 58,975 (21.3%) 

Net interest income 162,864 151,464 7.5% 144,373 10.4% 
Provision for loan losses 5,569 21,798 (74.5%) 53,695 (54.0% 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 157,295 129,666 21.3% 90,678 546.2% 
Noninterest income 43,397 37,940 14.4% 36,315 (8.4%) 
Noninterest expense 138,165 139,107 (0.7%) 146,883 23.9% 

Net income (loss) before income taxes 62,527 28,499 119.4% (19,890) (69.3%) 
Income tax expense (benefit) 20,643 (15,238) (235.5%) 4,410 (115.0%) 

Net income (loss) 41,884 43,737 (4.2%) (24,300) (31.5%) 
Preferred dividends and preferred stock discount accretion 3,814 6,665 (42.8%) 6,142 3.6% 

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $    38,070 $ 37,072 2.7% $ (30,442) (26.5%) 
Basic net income (loss) per common share available      

to common stockholders $1.12 $1.11 0.9% $(0.93) (36.4%) 
Diluted net income (loss) per common share available      

to common stockholders $1.10 $1.09 0.9% $(0.93) (36.4%) 
 
Net Interest Income.  Net interest income represents the amount by which interest earned on various earning assets 
exceeds interest paid on deposits and other interest bearing liabilities and is the most significant component of our 
revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded net interest income of $162,864,000, which resulted 
in a net interest margin (net interest income divided by the average balance of interest earning assets) of 3.77%.  For 
the year ended December 31, 2011, we recorded net interest income of $151,464,000, which resulted in a net interest 
margin of 3.55%.  For the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded net interest income of $144,373,000, which 
resulted in a net interest margin of 3.25%. 
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The following table sets forth the amount of our average balances, interest income or interest expense for each 
category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the average interest rate for total interest-
earning assets and total interest-bearing liabilities, net interest spread and net interest margin for each of the years in 
the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 (in thousands): 

 2012 2011 2010 

  
Average 
Balances Interest 

Rates/ 
Yields 

Average 
Balances Interest 

Rates/ 
Yields 

Average 
Balances Interest 

Rates/ 
Yields 

Interest-earning assets:                
Loans (1) $ 3,438,401 $160,037 4.66% $3,218,123 $154,750 4.82% $3,362,024 $162,902 4.85% 
Securities:          

Taxable 612,677 16,931 2.76% 768,063 23,972 3.12% 780,643 30,306 3.88% 
Tax-exempt (2) 182,217 6,577 4.82% 193,397 7,394 5.10% 205,029 7,917 5.09% 

Federal funds sold and other 155,876 1,877 1.33% 167,932 2,232 1.43% 188,091 2,223 1.27% 
Total interest-earning assets 4,389,171 185,422 4.29% 4,347,515 188,348 4.40% 4,535,787 203,348 4.55% 

Nonearning assets:          
    Intangible assets 250,619   253,443   256,379   
    Other nonearning assets 233,764   232,477   221,730   

 $4,873,554   $4,833,435   $5,013,896   
           
Interest-bearing liabilities:          

Interest-bearing deposits:          
Interest checking $   677,632 $2,800 0.41% $   583,212 $    3,522 0.60% $   520,351 $  3,491 0.67% 
Savings and money market 1,575,174 7,884 0.50% 1,597,965 13,773 0.86% 1,368,659 18,310 1.34% 
Certificates of deposit 644,039 6,158 0.96% 876,864 13,293 1.52% 1,419,358 28,056 1.98% 

Total deposits 2,896,845 16,842 0.58% 3,058,041 30,588 1.00% 3,308,368 49,857 1.51% 
Securities sold under agreements to 

repurchase 134,989 455 0.34% 161,845 1,110 0.69% 222,179 1,750 0.79% 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances  202,338 2,237 1.11% 137,466 2,519 1.83% 143,372 4,044 2.82% 
Subordinated debt and other borrowing 105,131 3,024 2.87% 97,476 2,665 2.73% 97,476 3,324 3.41% 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,339,303 22,558 0.68% 3,454,828 36,882 1.07% 3,771,395 58,975 1.56% 
Noninterest-bearing deposits 809,268 - - 650,602 -    - 527,673 -   - 

Total deposits and interest- bearing 
liabilities 4,148,571 22,558 0.54% 4,105,430 36,882 0.90% 4,299,068 58,975 1.37% 

Other liabilities 27,933   24,752   17,842   
Stockholders' equity 697,050   703,253   696,986   
  $4,873,554   $4,833,435   $5,013,896   
Net interest income  $162,864   $151,464   $144,373  

Net interest spread (3)   3.61%   3.33%   2.99% 
Net interest margin (4)   3.77%   3.55%   3.25% 

  
(1) Average balances of nonperforming loans are included in average loan balances.    
(2) Yields based on the carrying value of those tax exempt instruments are shown on a fully tax equivalent basis. 
(3) Yields realized on interest-bearing assets less the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest spread 

calculation excludes   the impact of demand deposits. Had the impact of demand deposits been included, the net interest 
spread for the year ended December 31, 2012 would have been 3.74% compared to a net interest spread for the years 
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 of 3.50% and 3.18%, respectively. 

(4) Net interest margin is the result of net interest income calculated on a tax-equivalent basis divided by average interest 
earning assets for the period.  
 

For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, our net interest spread was 3.61% and 3.33%, respectively, while 
the net interest margin was 3.77% and 3.55%, respectively. The net interest spread and net interest margin were 
2.99% and 3.25%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2010.  The improving net interest margin reflected 
management’s efforts to maximize earnings by focusing on deposit pricing and loan growth.  During the year ended 
December 31, 2012, total funding rates were less than those rates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 
by 36 and 83 basis points, respectively.  The net decrease was largely impacted by the continued shift in our deposit 
mix, as we increased our lower cost transaction account balances and concurrently reduced balances of higher cost 
time deposits.  
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Additionally, lower levels of nonperforming loans positively impacted our net interest margin during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 when compared to the same period in 2011.  Average nonperforming loans were $38.4 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $63.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.  
    
We continue to deploy various asset liability management strategies to manage our risk to interest rate fluctuations.  
We currently believe that short term rates will remain low for an extended period of time.  We believe margin 
expansion over both the short and the long term will be challenging due to continued pressure on earning asset 
yields during this extended period of a low interest rates. Loan pricing for creditworthy borrowers is very 
competitive in our markets and has limited our ability to increase pricing on new and renewed loans over the last 
several quarters and we anticipate that this challenging competitive environment will continue in 2013.   
 
However, we believe our net interest income should increase in 2013 compared to 2012 primarily due to an increase 
in average earning asset volumes, primarily loans. We anticipate funding these increased earning assets by 
continuing to grow our core deposits with limited wholesale funding to achieve the funding required.  
 
Rate and Volume Analysis.  Net interest income increased by $11.4 million between the years ended December 31, 
2011 and 2012 and by $7.1 million between the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011.  The following is an 
analysis of the changes in our net interest income comparing the changes attributable to rates and those attributable 
to volumes (in thousands):   
 

  2012 Compared to 2011 2011 Compared to 2010 
  Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to 

  Rate Volume Net Rate Volume Net 
Interest-earning assets:             

Loans $   (5,149) $ 10,437 $   5,288 $  (1,153) $   (7,012) $     (8,165) 
Securities:       

Taxable (2,765) (4,276) (7,041) (5,925) (409) (6,334) 
Tax-exempt (542) (275) (817) 27 (549) (522) 

Federal funds sold (168) (187) (355) 310 (301) 9 
Total interest-earning assets (8,623) 5,698 (2,925) (6,741) (8,271) (15,012) 

        
Interest-bearing liabilities:       

Interest-bearing deposits:       
Interest checking (1,108) 386 (722) (369) 400 31 
Savings and money market (5,753) (136) (5,889) (6,513) 1,975 (4,538) 
Certificates of deposit (4,910) (2,225) (7,135) (6,538)  (8,224) (14,762) 

Total deposits (11,771) (1,975) (13,746) (13,420) (5,849) (19,269) 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (566) (89) (655) (217) (423) (640) 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (998) 723 (275) (1,409) (123) (1,532) 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 137 215 352 (664) 2 (662) 

Total interest-bearing liabilities (13,198) (1,126) (14,324) (15,710) (6,393) (22,103) 
Net interest income $     4,575 $  6,824 $  11,399 $   8,969 $    (1,878) $  7,091 

  
Changes in net interest income are attributed to either changes in average balances (volume change) or changes in average rates (rate change) for 
earning assets and sources of funds on which interest is received or paid.  Volume change is calculated as change in volume times the previous 
rate while rate change is change in rate times the previous volume.  The change attributed to rates and volumes (change in rate times change in 
volume) is considered above as a change in volume. 
 
Provision for Loan Losses.  The provision for loan losses represents a charge to earnings necessary to establish an 
allowance for loan losses that, in our management’s evaluation, should be adequate to provide coverage for the 
inherent losses on outstanding loans.  The provision for loan losses amounted to approximately $5,569,000, 
$21,798,000, and $53,695,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. 
 
Impacting the provision for loan losses in any accounting period are several factors including the change in 
outstanding loan balances, the level of charge-offs and recoveries, the changes in the amount of impaired loans, 
changes in the risk ratings assigned to our loans, results of regulatory examinations, credit quality comparison to 
peer banks, the industry at large, and, ultimately, the results of our quarterly assessment of the inherent risks of our 
loan portfolio including past loan loss experience.  



2012 Annual Report 

Pinnacle Financial Partners 49

MaNaGeMeNT’S DISCUSSIoN aND aNalYSIS

 

Provision expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 has decreased as compared to 2011 and 2010, primarily 
due to a reduction in both net charge-offs and in the overall amount of the allowance for loan losses. Elevated net-
charge offs,  particularly in our construction and development loan portfolio, and increased non-performing assets 
were the primary reasons for the increased provisioning expense in 2011 and 2010. For substantially all construction 
and development loans, our collateral is our primary source of repayment and as the value of the collateral 
deteriorates, ultimate repayment in full by the borrower becomes increasingly difficult. Net charge-offs for our 
construction and development loans amounted to 13.6%, 28.7% and 39.6% of our total net charge-offs for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, while total construction and development loans comprised 
only 8.5%, 8.3% and 10.3% of our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, 
reflecting a higher loss rate relative to the size of the construction and development portfolio. Positively impacting 
our provision for loan losses in 2012 was a $5.6 million recovery of a loan previously charged-off in 2009. 
 
Based upon management's assessment of the loan portfolio, we adjust our allowance for loan losses to an amount 
deemed appropriate to adequately cover probable losses in the loan portfolio.  Our allowance for loan losses as a 
percentage of loans decreased from 2.25% at December 31, 2011 to 1.87% at December 31, 2012.  Based upon our 
evaluation of the loan portfolio, we believe the allowance for loan losses to be adequate to absorb our estimate of 
probable losses existing in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2012.  While our policies and procedures used to 
estimate the allowance for loan losses, as well as the resultant provision for loan losses charged to operations, are 
considered adequate by management, they are necessarily approximate and imprecise.  There are factors beyond our 
control, such as conditions in the local and national economy, local real estate market or a particular industry or 
borrower which may negatively impact, materially, our asset quality and the adequacy of our allowance for loan 
losses and, thus, the resulting provision for loan losses. 
 
Noninterest Income. Our noninterest income is composed of several components, some of which vary significantly 
between annual periods.  Service charges on deposit accounts and other noninterest income generally reflect our 
growth and market conditions, while investment services and fees from the origination of mortgage loans and gains 
on the sale of securities will often reflect market conditions and fluctuate from period to period.  The opportunities 
for net gains on sales of investment securities may also vary widely from year to year.   
 
The following is our noninterest income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 (in thousands):  
 
  Years ended 2012-2011 Year ended 2011-2010 
  December 31, Percent December 31, Percent 

  2012 2011 
Increase 

(Decrease) 2010 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Noninterest income:        

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 9,918 $ 9,244 7.3% $ 9,592 (3.6%) 
Investment services 6,985 6,246 11.8% 5,050 23.7% 
Insurance sales commissions 4,461 3,999 11.6% 3,864 3.5% 
Trust fees 3,195 3,000 6.5% 2,872 4.5% 
Gains on mortgage loans sold, net 6,699 4,155 61.2% 4,086 1.7% 
Net gains on sale of investment securities 2,151 961 123.8% 2,624 (63.4%) 
Other noninterest income:      

ATM and other consumer fees 6,264 6,381 (1.8%) 5,373 18.8% 
Bank-owned life insurance 919 1,159 (20.7%) 913 27.1% 
Other noninterest income 2,804 2,795 0.3% 1,941 44.0% 

Total other noninterest income 9,987 10,335 (3.4%) 8,227 25.6% 
Total noninterest income $43,396 $37,940 14.4% $36,315 4.5% 

      
 
The increase in service charges on deposit accounts in 2012 compared to 2011 is primarily related to increased 
analysis fees on our commercial client accounts.  The decrease between 2011 and 2010 in consumer depository fees 
was due to regulatory changes required of banks and changes in client spending behavior patterns.   
 
Also included in noninterest income are commissions and fees from investment services at our financial advisory 
unit, Pinnacle Asset Management, a division of Pinnacle Bank.  At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Asset Management 
was receiving commissions and fees in connection with approximately $1.24 billion in brokerage assets held with 
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Raymond James Financial Services, Inc. compared to $1.06 billion at December 31, 2011.  Insurance commissions 
were approximately $4.5 million during 2012 compared to $4.0 million during 2011.  Additionally, at December 31, 
2012, our trust department was receiving fees on approximately $819 million in assets compared to $633 million at 
December 31, 2011.    
 
Gains on mortgage loans sold consists of fees from the origination and sale of mortgage loans.  These mortgage fees 
are for loans originated in both the Middle Tennessee and Knoxville markets that are subsequently sold to third-
party investors.  All of our mortgage loan sales transfer servicing rights to the buyer.  Generally, mortgage 
origination fees increase in lower interest rate environments and more robust housing markets and decrease in rising 
interest rate environments and more challenging housing markets.  As a result, mortgage origination fees may 
fluctuate greatly in different interest rate or housing environments.  Over the last several quarters, the interest rates 
have provided home owners the opportunity to refinance their existing mortgages at very low rates. As a result, we 
experienced a 61.2% growth in mortgage loan origination income in 2012 compared to 2011 compared to a 1.7% 
increase between 2011 and 2010. The fees from the origination and sale of mortgage loans have been netted against 
the commission expense associated with these originations.   
 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, we realized approximately $2.2 million in net gains from the sale of 
$188.6 million of securities available-for-sale. In the first quarter of 2012, twenty relatively smaller sized agency 
securities that had primarily been purchased over time to satisfy certain collateral requirements were sold. We sold 
these securities due to their relatively short terms until maturity. In the second quarter of 2012, we decided to sell 
four underperforming mortgage-backed securities that were determined to be other than temporarily impaired 
(OTTI) during the first quarter. Also in the second quarter of 2012, we sold two securities which were issued by 
municipalities in the state of California because management believed there to be some possibility they could be 
adversely affected by that state’s budgetary issues.  In the third quarter of 2012, we sold one security deemed to be 
OTTI due to its distinct underperformance relative to the interest rate environment. In the fourth quarter of 2012, we 
sold thirty bonds based on their relative underperformance compared to expectations. Also during the fourth quarter, 
we decided to sell four underperforming mortgage-backed securities that were determined to be OTTI. Gains on the 
sale of securities were reduced by this OTTI charge by $171,000. 
 
Included in other noninterest income are miscellaneous consumer fees, such as ATM revenues and other consumer 
fees.  While we are exempt from the cap on debit interchange fees imposed under the Dodd-Frank Act because of 
our current asset size, there has been and we expect that there may continue to be downward pressure on interchange 
fees as debit networks compete for transaction volume.  We believe that this potential reduction in interchange fees 
will likely occur gradually over an extended period of time.   
 
Additionally, noninterest income from increases in the cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance was 
$919,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $1,159,000 in 2011.  We have not purchased any 
additional investments in bank-owned life insurance policies since 2007; however, during the first quarter of 2013, 
Pinnacle Financial purchased approximately $30 million of bank-owned life insurance with terms similar to our 
existing policies.   The assets that support these policies are administered by the life insurance carriers and the 
income or loss we recognize (i.e., increases or decreases in the cash surrender value of the policies) on these policies 
is dependent upon the returns the insurance carriers are able to earn on the underlying investments that support the 
policies.  Earnings on these policies generally are not taxable.  
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Noninterest Expense.  The following is our noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010 (in thousands): 
 

  Years ended 2012-2011 Year ended 2011-2010 
  December 31, Percent December 31, Percent 

  2012 2011 
Increase 

(Decrease) 2010 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Noninterest expense:           

Salaries and employee benefits:           
Salaries $  44,829 $  43,450 3.2% $   44,994 (3.4%) 
Commissions 4,283 3,992 7.3% 2,834 40.9% 
Annual cash incentives 10,314 9,389 9.9% - 100.0% 
Employee benefits and other 18,631 17,594 5.9% 16,801 4.7% 

Total salaries and employee benefits 78,057 74,425 4.9% 64,629 15.2% 
Equipment and occupancy 20,420 19,987 2.2% 21,077 (5.2%) 
Other real estate expense 11,544  17,432  (33.8%) 29,210 (40.3%) 
Marketing and business development 3,636 3,303 10.1% 3,233 2.2% 
Postage and supplies 2,380 2,121 12.2% 2,538 (16.4%) 
Amortization of  intangibles  2,739 2,863 (4.3%) 2,981 (4.0%) 
Other noninterest expense:      

Deposit related expenses 4,856  9,330  (48.0%) 12,507 (25.4%) 
Lending related expenses 3,768 1,707 120.7% 2,175 (21.5%) 
Investment sales expense 240 272 (11.8%) 316 (13.9%) 
Trust expenses 376 376 0.0% 343 9.6% 
FHLB restructuring 2,093 - 100.0% - 0.0% 
Administrative and other expenses 8,056 7,291 10.5% 7,874 (7.4%) 

        Total other noninterest expense 19,389 18,976 2.2% 23,215 (18.3%) 
         Total noninterest expense $138,165 $139,107 (0.7%) $146,883 (5.3%) 

 
The increase in total salaries and employee benefits expense in 2012 over 2011 is primarily related to annual merit 
increases awarded in January of 2012 and an increase in annual cash incentives offset by a reduced number of 
employees in 2012 compared to 2011. 
 
We believe that cash and equity incentives are a valuable tool in motivating an employee base that is focused on 
providing our clients effective financial advice and increasing shareholder value. As a result, and unlike many other 
financial institutions, all of our non-commissioned associates participate in our annual cash incentive plan and all of 
our associates participate in our equity compensation plan. Under the annual cash incentive plan, the targeted level 
of incentive payments requires achievement of a certain soundness threshold, a revenue component and a targeted 
level of earnings (subject to certain adjustments). To the extent that the soundness threshold is met and revenues and 
earnings are above or below the targeted amount, the aggregate incentive payments are increased or decreased. 
Historically, we have paid between 0% and 120% of our targeted bonus. In 2012, our cash incentives represented 
102% of targeted incentive compensation compared to 110% in 2011 and 0% in 2010. 
 
Additionally, included in employee benefits and other expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010, were approximately $4.7 million, $4.4 million and $4.7 million, respectively, of compensation expenses 
related to equity-based awards.  We have approximately $12,000 of unrecognized compensation expense remaining 
on stock options that have not yet vested.  We have not issued stock options since 2009.  
 
Also, we implemented a new restricted share unit structure during the first quarter of 2012 for our leadership team 
members. Because the number of restricted shares that will be issued in settlement of the restricted share units was 
based on our profitability for 2012 and accordingly was not determinable in fiscal 2012, no expense was recognized 
related to these awards in 2012. These restricted share units converted to restricted share awards concurrent with the 
filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  These restricted share units converted to approximately 199,703 
restricted share awards or approximately 88.7% of the amount that was originally eligible and will have 
compensation costs that will be recognized over the next five years subject to the restrictions associated with these 
shares lapsing annually based on certain soundness metrics established by the Human Resources Compensation 
Committee (HRCC) at the beginning of each fiscal year.  
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Also included in employee benefits and other expenses are costs related to salary stock units issued to our senior 
executives. In connection with these awards, the executive officers received salary stock units which were settled in 
our common stock on a one-for-one basis. The program was terminated by the HRCC effective June 30, 2012 
following the redemption of the remaining preferred shares issued pursuant to the CPP.  Concurrently, these senior 
executives’ were eligible to participate in our annual cash incentive plan effective July 1, 2012. For the year ended 
December 31, 2012, approximately $1.0 million in costs were incurred related to the salary stock units issued to our 
senior executives compared to $776,000 for 2011.  
 
Equipment and occupancy expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was 2.2% greater than in 2011 and 3.1% 
greater than in 2010. We expect to add one branch in the Knoxville MSA in 2013.    
 
Other real estate expense was $11.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $17.4 million and 
$29.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Approximately $9.5 million, $12.8 
million, and $25.7 million of the other real estate expense incurred during the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 
and 2010, respectively, were realized losses on dispositions and holding losses due to reduced valuations of OREO 
properties.  The remaining other real estate expense consisted of carrying costs to maintain or improve the 
properties. During 2012, we recorded other real estate owned dispositions of $30.2 million compared to $53.8 
million in 2011 and $64.3 million in 2010.  
 
Until we are able to reduce the absolute level of our other real estate portfolio, other real estate expense for the next 
several quarters will fluctuate depending on market conditions as we maintain and market for sale various foreclosed 
properties. These properties could also be subject to future valuation adjustments as a result of updated appraisal 
information and further deterioration in real estate values, thus causing additional fluctuations in our quarterly other 
real estate expense.  Additionally, we will continue to incur expenses associated with maintenance costs and 
property taxes associated with these assets.   
 
Management’s strategy has been to aggressively pursue disposition of nonperforming loans and other real estate 
owned in order to ultimately reduce the expense associated with carrying these nonperforming assets.  We believe 
this has allowed us to better position the firm for increased future profitability.  Our disposition strategy generally 
has been to negotiate sales of foreclosed properties on a property-by-property basis, although we have also utilized 
both traditional and online auctions.  Our use of online auctions has been primarily limited to individual residential 
homes and lots.  During the fourth quarter of 2012, management utilized a bulk sale to dispose of approximately 
$9.0 million in nonperforming assets which consisted of both nonperforming loans and other real estate.  Although 
we do not anticipate using bulk sales as a recurring strategy, our nonperforming asset disposition strategy is 
reviewed on an on-going basis and could change in the future. 
 
Noninterest expense related to the amortization of intangibles relates primarily to the intangibles acquired in the 
Mid-America and Cavalry mergers.  The core deposit intangibles are being amortized over ten years for Mid-
America and over seven years for Cavalry, in each case using an accelerated method which anticipates the life of the 
underlying deposits to which the intangible is attributable.  Amortization expense associated with these core deposit 
intangibles will approximate $700,000 to $1.2 million per year for the next five years with lesser amounts for the 
remaining amortization period.  Additionally, in connection with our acquisition of an insurance brokerage firm in 
July of 2008, we recorded a customer list intangible of $1,270,000 which is being amortized over 20 years on an 
accelerated basis.  Amortization of the customer list intangible amounted to $103,000 for the year ended December 
31, 2012 and $109,000 and $115,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  
 
Total other noninterest expenses increased by 2.2% to $19.3 million during 2012 when compared to 2011.  
Approximately $2.1 million of this increase relates to charges incurred with the 2012 restructuring of some of our 
borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank as well as an increase in our allowance for off-balance sheet 
exposures.  This increase was offset by a $3.2 million decrease in FDIC assessments.  Also included in total other 
noninterest expenses are expenses related to ATM networks, correspondent bank service charges, check losses, and 
attorney expenses. 
 
Our efficiency ratio (ratio of noninterest expense to the sum of net interest income and noninterest income) was 
67.0% in fiscal year 2012 compared to 73.5% in fiscal year 2011. The efficiency ratio measures the amount of 
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expense that is incurred to generate a dollar of revenue. Our efficiency ratio continued to be adversely impacted by 
other real estate owned expense and other credit related costs, including the increase in associates dedicated to 
problem loan resolution. 
 
Income Taxes.  During the year ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial recorded income tax expense of $20.6 
million.  Our effective income tax rate was 33.0% for the year ended December 31, 2012, which is principally 
impacted by our investments in municipal securities, our real estate investment trust and bank-owned life insurance 
offset in part by non-deductible meals and entertainment and executive compensation.   
 
Preferred Stock Dividends and Preferred Stock Discount Accretion.  Net income (loss) available for common 
stockholders included preferred stock dividends of $1,660,000 in 2012, $4,606,000 in 2011 and $4,816,000 in 2010, 
and the accretion on the preferred stock discount of $2,153,000, $2,058,000, and $1,326,000, for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  On December 12, 2008, we received $95.0 million from the sale 
of preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury as a result of our participation in the CPP. The Series A preferred stock we 
sold the U.S. Treasury paid cumulative dividends quarterly at a rate of 5 percent per annum. Pinnacle Financial 
redeemed the preferred shares issued to the Treasury under the CPP in two payments.   During the fourth quarter of 
2011, Pinnacle Financial redeemed 23,750 of the preferred shares in a transaction totaling approximately $23.9 
million.  As a result of the partial redemption, Pinnacle Financial recognized approximately $719,000 of accelerated 
accretion of the remaining preferred stock discount.  During the second quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial 
completed the redemption of the remaining 71,250 preferred shares outstanding to the Treasury in a transaction 
totaling $71.6 million.  Concurrently, Pinnacle Financial accelerated the accretion of the remaining preferred stock 
discount of approximately $1.7 million during the second quarter of 2012.  
 
Additionally, Pinnacle Financial issued warrants to purchase 534,910 shares of common stock to the U.S. Treasury 
as a condition to its participation in the CPP.  The warrants had an exercise price of $26.64 each, were immediately 
exercisable and expired 10 years from the date of issuance.  On June 16, 2009, Pinnacle Financial completed the sale 
of 8,855,000 shares of its common stock in a public offering, resulting in net proceeds to Pinnacle Financial of 
approximately $109 million.  As a result, and pursuant to the terms of the warrants, the number of shares issuable 
upon exercise of the warrants was reduced by 50%, or 267,455 shares.  During the third quarter of 2012, Pinnacle 
Financial repurchased all of the remaining outstanding warrants held by the U.S. Treasury for $755,000.  

Financial Condition  
 
Our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 reflects an increase of $420.8 million in outstanding loans to 
$3.712 billion and $360.8 million in total deposits to $4.015 billion from December 31, 2011.  Total assets were 
$5.041 billion at December 31, 2012 as compared to $4.864 billion at December 31, 2011.    
 
Loans.  The composition of loans at December 31 for each of the past five years and the percentage (%) of each 
segment to total loans are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands): 

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

 Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent 

Commercial real estate - Mortgage $1,178,196 31.7% $1,110,962 33.8% $1,094,615 34.1% $1,118,068 31.4% $   963,530 28.7% 

Consumer real estate - Mortgage 679,926 18.3% 695,745 21.1% 705,487 22.0% 756,015 21.2% 675,606 20.1% 

Construction and land development 313,552 8.4% 274,248 8.3% 331,261 10.3% 525,271 14.7% 658,799 19.6% 

Commercial and industrial 1,446,578 39.0% 1,145,735 34.8% 1,012,091 31.5% 1,071,444 30.0% 966,563 28.8% 

Consumer and other  93,910 2.5% 64,661 2.0% 68,986 2.1% 92,584 2.7% 90,409 2.8% 

Total loans $3,712,162 100.0% $3,291,351 100.0% $3,212,440 100.0% $3,563,382 100.0% $3,354,907 100.0% 

 
The primary changes within the composition of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2012 reflect an increased 
emphasis on commercial and industrial loans.  The commercial real estate – mortgage category includes owner-
occupied commercial real estate loans.  Owner-occupied commercial real estate is similar in many ways to our 
commercial and industrial lending in that these loans are generally made to businesses on the basis of the cash flows 
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of the business rather than on the valuation of the real estate.  At December 31, 2012, approximately 50.5% of the 
outstanding principal balance of our commercial real estate loans was secured by owner-occupied properties.  
Consumer real estate mortgages consist of first mortgage real estate loans, junior liens and home equity lines of 
credit.  In total, we hold the first mortgage on $522.4 million of the mortgages within this portfolio.  The remaining 
$157.5 million represent second mortgages.  We had net charge-offs of $2.3 million and $392,000 related to 
consumer loan second mortgages during 2012 and 2011, respectively.  At December 31, 2012, we had $715,000 of 
second mortgage consumer loans classified as nonperforming assets compared to $4.0 million at December 31, 
2011. In addition, approximately $286,000 and $82,000 of these second mortgages were past due at December 31, 
2012 and 2011, respectively. Generally, for our second mortgage properties, should it become apparent to us that the 
first mortgage is habitually past due, classified as nonperforming or has other credit weaknesses, we will review our 
second mortgage to determine if the second mortgage should be considered for impairment.  Typically, the second 
mortgage loan will be placed on nonperforming status or charged off if it appears the borrower’s credit status has 
deteriorated.  For borrowers where the first mortgage loan is held by another financial institution, we review credit 
histories of our home equity line of credit borrowers annually to determine if the borrower’s credit score has 
decreased as a result of the borrower’s inability to maintain their credit obligations in a satisfactory manner.     
 
The following table classifies our fixed and variable rate loans at December 31, 2012 according to contractual 
maturities of (1) one year or less, (2) after one year through five years, and (3) after five years.  The table also 
classifies our variable rate loans pursuant to the contractual repricing dates of the underlying loans (dollars in 
thousands):  
 

  Amounts at December 31, 2012     
  Fixed Variable   At December 31, At December 31, 
  Rates Rates Totals 2012 2011 
Based on contractual maturity:         

Due within one year $    253,261 $    805,600 $ 1,058,861 28.5%    29.0% 
Due in one year to five years 772,093 793,960 1,566,053 42.2%    44.4% 
Due after five years 467,050 620,198 1,087,248 29.3%   26.6% 

Totals $ 1,492,404 $ 2,219,758 $ 3,712,162 100.0% 100.0% 
      
Based on contractual repricing dates:      

Daily floating rate(*) $                - $ 1,126,819 $ 1,126,819 30.4%     32.4% 
Due within one year 253,261 754,644 1,007,905 27.2%    32.0% 
Due in one year to five years 772,093 317,198 1,089,291 29.3%   26.4% 
Due after five years 467,050 21,097 488,147 13.1%    9.3% 

Totals $ 1,492,404 $ 2,219,758 $ 3,712,162 100.0% 100.0% 
  
The above information does not consider the impact of scheduled principal payments.   
(*)Daily floating rate loans are tied to Pinnacle Bank’s prime lending rate or a national interest rate index with the underlying loan rates changing 
in relation to changes in these indexes. Included in variable rate loans are $1.346 billion of loans which are currently priced at their contractual 
floors with a weighted average rate of 4.54%. The weighted average contractual rate on these loans is 3.52%. As a result, interest income on these 
loans will not adjust until the contractual rate on the underlying loan exceeds the interest rate floor.  
  
Loan Origination Risk Management. We attempt to maintain lending policies and procedures in place that are 
designed to maximize loan income within an acceptable level of risk. Management reviews and approves these 
policies and procedures on a regular basis. A reporting system supplements the review process by providing 
management with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, loan 
delinquencies and non-performing and potential problem loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio is a means of 
managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.  
 
Underwriting standards are designed to promote relationship banking rather than transactional banking. Our 
management examines current and projected cash flows to determine the expected ability of a borrower to repay its 
obligations as agreed. Commercial and industrial loans are primarily made based on the identified cash flows of the 
borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, 
however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most commercial 
and industrial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets such as accounts receivable, 
inventory or equipment and may incorporate a personal guarantee; however, some short-term loans may be made on 
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an unsecured basis. In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the repayment 
of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its 
customers.  
 
Commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to commercial and 
industrial loans. These loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate. 
Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these loans is 
generally largely dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted 
on the property securing the loan. Commercial real estate loans may be adversely affected by conditions in the real 
estate markets or in the general economy. As detailed in the discussion of real estate loans below, the properties 
securing our commercial real estate portfolio generally are diverse in terms of type and industry. We believe this 
diversity helps reduce our exposure to adverse economic events that affect any single industry or type of real estate 
product. Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on cash flow, collateral, geography 
and risk grade criteria. We also utilize third-party experts to provide insight and guidance about economic conditions 
and trends affecting market areas we serve.  
 
Although we have substantially reduced the amount of residential construction and development loans in our 
portfolio, we continue to pursue sound commercial construction and development projects. Construction loans are 
underwritten utilizing feasibility studies, independent appraisal reviews, sensitivity analysis of absorption and lease 
rates and financial analysis of the developers and property owners. Construction loans are generally based upon 
estimates of costs and value associated with the completed project, which may be inaccurate. Construction loans 
often involve the disbursement of funds with repayment substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate 
project. Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans from approved long-
term lenders, sales of developed property or an interim loan commitment from us until permanent financing is 
obtained. These loans are closely monitored by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other 
real estate loans because their ultimate repayment is sensitive to interest rate changes, governmental regulation of 
real property, general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing.  
 
We also originate consumer loans, including consumer real-estate loans, where we typically use a computer-based 
credit scoring analysis to supplement the underwriting process. To monitor and manage consumer loan risk, policies 
and procedures are developed and modified, as needed, jointly by line and staff personnel. This activity, coupled 
with relatively small loan amounts that are spread across many individual borrowers, seeks to minimize risk. 
Additionally, trend and outlook reports are reviewed by management on a regular basis. Underwriting standards for 
home equity loans are heavily influenced by statutory requirements. 
 
We also maintain an independent loan review department that reviews and validates the credit risk program on a 
periodic basis. Results of these reviews are presented to management and the audit committee. The loan review 
process complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions made by lenders and credit 
personnel, as well as our policies and procedures. 
 
Lending Concentrations.  We periodically analyze our commercial loan portfolio to determine if a concentration of 
credit risk exists to any one or more industries.  We use broadly accepted industry classification systems in order to 
classify borrowers into various industry classifications.  We have a credit exposure (loans outstanding plus unfunded 
commitments) exceeding 25% of Pinnacle Bank’s total risk-based capital to borrowers in the following industries at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands): 
 

 At December 31, 2012  

 

Outstanding 
Principal 
Balances 

Unfunded 
Commitments Total exposure 

Total Exposure at 
December 31, 2011 

     
Lessors of nonresidential buildings $   382,238 $ 57,999 $ 440,237 $ 509,003 
Lessors of residential buildings 191,693 24,206 215,899 177,414 
Land subdividers 92,613 15,670 108,283 119,106 
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We also acquire certain loans from other banks and sell certain loans to other banks.  At December 31, 2012, we had 
acquired approximately $193.2 million of commercial loans which were originated by other banks and sold 
approximately $39.7 million of loans to other banks.  Substantially all of these loans are to Nashville or Knoxville 
based businesses and were acquired in order to potentially develop other business opportunities with these firms. 
Typically, the loans we sell to other banks are sold to balance our exposure to a particular borrower or industry. 
 
Performing Loans in Past Due Status.  The following table is a summary of our accruing loans that were past due 
between 30 and 90 days and greater than 90 days as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in thousands):  
 

  December 31,  December 31, 
     Accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days:  2012 2011 
          Commercial real estate – mortgage $        503 $    5,749 
          Consumer real estate – mortgage 3,870 2,589 
          Construction and land development 3,511 1,572 
          Commercial and industrial 2,549 648 
          Consumer and other 444 526 
              Total accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days $  10,877 $  11,084 
    
     Accruing loans past due 90 days or more:   
          Commercial real estate – mortgage $            - $            - 
          Consumer real estate – mortgage - 254 
          Construction and land development - - 
          Commercial and industrial - 604 
          Consumer and other - - 

      Total accruing loans past due 90 days or more $            - $       858 
    

     Ratios:   

 Accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days as a percentage of total loans  0.29% 0.34% 
 Accruing loans past due 90 days or more as a percentage of total loans  0.00% 0.03% 
 Total accruing loans in past due status as a percentage of total loans  0.29% 0.36% 

 
Potential Problem Loans.  Potential problem loans amounted to approximately $105.4 million, or 2.8% of total 
loans outstanding at December 31, 2012, compared to $135.4 million, or 4.1% of total loans outstanding at 
December 31, 2011.  Potential problem loans, which are not included in nonperforming loans, represent those loans 
with a well-defined weakness and where information about possible credit problems of borrowers has caused 
management to have doubts about the borrower’s ability to comply with present repayment terms.  This definition is 
believed to be substantially consistent with the standards established by Pinnacle Bank’s primary regulators, for 
loans classified as substandard or worse, but not considered nonperforming loans.  Approximately $7.5 million of 
potential problem loans were past due at least 30 but less than 90 days as of December 31, 2012.   
 
Non-Performing Assets and Troubled Debt Restructurings.  At December 31, 2012, we had $41.4 million in 
nonperforming assets compared to $87.6 million at December 31, 2011.  Included in nonperforming assets were 
$22.8 million in nonperforming loans and $18.6 million in other real estate owned at December 31, 2012 and $47.9 
million in nonperforming loans and $39.7 million in other real estate owned at December 31, 2011.   At December 
31, 2012 and 2011, there were $27.5 million and $23.4 million, respectively, of troubled debt restructurings that 
were performing as of the restructured date and remain in a performing status.   
 
All nonaccruing loans are reassigned to a special assets officer who was not responsible for originating the loan.  
The special assets officer is responsible for developing an action plan designed to minimize our future losses.  
Typically, these special assets officers review our loan files, interview prior officers assigned to the relationship, 
meet with borrowers, inspect collateral, reappraise collateral and/or consult with legal counsel.  The special assets 
officer then recommends an action plan to a committee of directors and/or senior associates including lenders and 
workout specialists, which could include foreclosing on collateral, restructuring the loan, issuing demand letters or 
other actions.   
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We discontinue the accrual of interest income when (1) there is a significant deterioration in the financial condition 
of the borrower and full repayment of principal and interest is not expected or (2) the principal or interest is more 
than 90 days past due, unless the loan is both well-secured and in the process of collection. For the three years ended 
December 31, 2012, we recognized $0, $42,000, and $1.3 million, respectively, of interest income from loans that 
were classified as nonperforming, reflecting cash payments received from the borrower and our belief, at the time of 
payment, that the underlying collateral supported the carrying amount of the loans.  
 
Due to the weakening credit status of a borrower, we may elect to formally restructure certain loans to facilitate a 
repayment plan that seeks to minimize the potential losses, if any, that we might incur.  These loans are considered 
troubled debt restructurings. If on nonaccruing status as of the date of restructuring, any restructured loan is included 
in the nonperforming loan balances as discussed above and is classified as an impaired loan.  Loans that have been 
restructured that are performing in accordance with the loan’s restructured terms as of the restructure date are not 
included in nonperforming loans, however, are still considered an impaired loan.   
 
At December 31, 2012, we owned $18.6 million in other real estate which we had acquired, usually through 
foreclosure, from borrowers compared to $39.7 million at December 31, 2011; the majority of this real estate is 
located within our principal markets.  We categorize other real estate owned into four types: new home construction, 
developed lots, undeveloped land, and other.  Included in the “other” category are primarily condominiums, office 
buildings and residential homes that are not new construction.  The following table shows the amounts of our other 
real estate owned in such categories (in thousands):  

 December 31, 
 2012 2011 
New home construction $             - $    2,733 
Developed lots 1,835 7,091 
Undeveloped land 13,285 22,455 
Other  3,460 7,435 
 $  18,580 $  39,714 

 
The following table is a summary of our nonperforming assets and troubled debt restructurings at December 31, 
2012 and 2011 (in thousands):  

 

At  
December 31, 

2011 

Payments,  
Sales and  

Reductions 
(2) 

Foreclosures 
(3) 

Inflows 
(4) 

At  
December 31, 

2012 
Nonperforming assets:      
         Nonperforming loans (1):      
             Commercial real estate – mortgage $     9,962 $(12,721) $  (1,756) $13,805 $     9,291 
             Consumer real estate – mortgage 12,487 (16,315) (3,850) 13,584 5,906 
             Construction and land development 12,965 (7,837) (2,892) 2,273 4,509 
             Commercial and industrial 11,890 (14,987) (46) 6,181 3,038 
             Consumer and other 551 (1,127) (161) 817 79 
                 Total nonperforming loans (1)   47,855 (52,987) (8,705) 36,660 22,823 
         Other real estate owned 39,714 (30,187) 9,053 - 18,580 
                 Total nonperforming assets 87,569 (83,174) 348 36,660 41,403 
 Troubled debt restructurings:      
         Commercial real estate – mortgage 15,378 (9,114) - 14,000 20,264 
         Consumer real estate – mortgage 5,874 (745) - 1,182 6,311 
         Construction and land development 77 (366) - 360 71 
         Commercial and industrial 1,845 (1,023) (194) 59 687 
         Consumer and other 242 (10) (154) 41 119 
             Total troubled debt restructurings   23,416 (11,258) (348) 15,642 27,452 
 Total nonperforming assets and troubled debt restructurings  $  110,985 $(94,432) $           - $52,302 $  68,855 
      
Ratios:      
     Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.45%    0.61% 
     Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estate owned 2.66%    1.11% 
     Nonperforming loans plus troubled debt restructurings to total       
           loans and other real estate owned 2.14%    1.35% 
     Nonperforming assets, potential problem loans and troubled       

debt restructurings to Pinnacle Bank Tier I capital and 
allowance for loan losses 45.15% 31.04%
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______________________ 
(1) Approximately $9.4 million and $25.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, of nonperforming loans 

included above are currently paying pursuant to their contractual terms.   
(2) Payments, sales and reductions in nonperforming loans are primarily attributable to payments we have collected from 

borrowers, charge-offs of recorded balances and nonaccrual loans that have been returned to accruing status during the year 
ended December 31, 2012.  Payments, sales and reductions in other real estate owned represent either the sale, disposition or 
valuation adjustment on properties which had previously been foreclosed upon or acquired by deed in lieu of 
foreclosure.  Payments, sales and reductions in troubled debt restructurings are those loans which were previously restructured 
whereby the borrower has reduced the outstanding balance of the loan or re-defaulted on the terms of the loan and therefore 
been charged-off.  

(3) Foreclosures in nonperforming loans and troubled debt restructurings are representative of transfers of balances to OREO 
during the year ended December 31, 2012. 

(4) Inflows in nonperforming loans are attributable to loans where we have discontinued the accrual of interest at some point 
during the year ended December 31, 2012.  Increases in OREO represent the value of properties that have been foreclosed upon 
or acquired by deed in lieu of foreclosure during 2012.  Increases in troubled debt restructurings are those loans where we have 
granted the borrower a concession due to the deteriorating financial condition of the borrower during 2012.  These concessions 
can be in the form of a reduced interest rate, extended maturity date or other matters. 

  
Allowance for Loan Losses (allowance).  We maintain the allowance at a level that our management deems 
appropriate to adequately cover the probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio.  As of December 31, 2012, and 
2011, our allowance for loan losses was $69.4 million and $74.0 million, respectively, which our management 
deemed to be adequate at each of the respective dates.  The decrease in the allowance for loan losses in 2012 as 
compared to 2011 is primarily the result of improving credit metrics within our portfolio, including the reduction in 
net charge-offs and an increase in our coverage ratio.  Our allowance for loan loss as a percentage of total loans has 
decreased from 2.25% at December 31, 2011 to 1.87% at December 31, 2012. The judgments and estimates 
associated with our allowance determination are described under “Critical Accounting Estimates” above. 
 
The following table sets forth, based on management's best estimate, the allocation of the allowance to types of 
loans as well as the unallocated portion as of December 31 for each of the past five years and the percentage of loans 
in each category to total loans (in thousands): 
 At December 31, 
  2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

  Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent 
Commercial real estate – Mortgage $ 19,634 31.7% $ 23,397 33.8% $ 19,252 34.1% $ 22,505 31.4% $11,523 28.7% 
Consumer real estate – Mortgage 8,762 18.3% 10,302 21.1% 9,898 22.0% 10,725 21.2% 5,149 20.1% 
Construction and land development 9,164 8.5% 12,040 8.3% 19,122 10.3% 23,027 14.7% 7,899 19.6% 
Commercial and industrial 24,738 39.0% 20,789 34.8% 21,426 31.5% 26,332 30.0% 9,966 28.8% 
Consumer and other  1,094 2.5% 1,125 2.0% 1,874 2.1% 2,456 2.7% 1,372 2.8% 
Unallocated 6,025 NA 6,322 NA 11,003 NA 6,914 NA 575 NA 

Total allowance for loan losses $ 69,417 100.0% $ 73,975 100.0% $82,575 100.0% $ 91,959 100.0% $36,484 100.0% 
 
The decrease in the overall allowance for loan losses is due to the improvement of our loan portfolio, and the 
reduction of nonperforming loans and net charge-offs, which is largely influenced by the overall improvement in the 
local economy. The allocation by category is determined based on the assigned risk rating, if applicable, and 
environmental factors applicable to each category of loans. For impaired loans, those loans are reviewed for a 
specific allowance allocation. As we have worked to rehabilitate impaired loans, the specific allocations for 
impaired loans have decreased.  Specific valuation allowances related to impaired loans were approximately $5.6 
million at December 31, 2012 compared to $8.0 million at December 31, 2011.  The decrease in the specific 
allocation for impaired loans between 2011 and 2012 was due to many factors, including the resolution of a 
significant number of troubled assets.  The unallocated category is intended to allow for losses that are inherent in 
our portfolio that we have not yet identified or attributable to a specific risk factor and for modeling imprecision.  
Additional information on the allocation of the allowance between performing and impaired loans is provided in 
Note 6 to the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”   
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The following is a summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses for each of the years in the five year period 
ended December 31, 2012 and the ratio of the allowance for loan losses to total loans as of the end of each period (in 
thousands): 
 

  For the year ended December 31, 
  2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
Balance at beginning of period $73,975 $  82,575 $  91,959 $  36,484 $  28,470 

Provision for loan losses 5,569 21,798 53,695 116,758 11,214 
Charged-off loans:      

Commercial real estate - Mortgage (4,667) (3,044) (9,041) (986) (62) 
Consumer real estate - Mortgage (6,731) (5,076) (6,769) (4,881) (1,144)  
Construction and land development (2,530) (10,157) (27,526) (23,952) (2,172) 
Commercial and industrial  (4,612) (15,360) (23,555) (31,134) (773) 
Consumer and other  (1,117) (1,213) (652) (1,646) (982) 

Total charged-off loans (19,657) (34,850) (67,543) (62,599) (5,133) 
Recoveries of previously charged-off loans:      

Commercial real estate - Mortgage 285 116 343 - 731 
Consumer real estate - Mortgage 818 495 377 622 3 
Construction and land development 1,155 1,530 2,618 139 55 
Commercial and industrial (1) 7,175 2,167 874 258 844 
Consumer and other loans 97 144 252 297 300 

Total recoveries of previously charged-off loans 9,530 4,452 4,464 1,316 1,933 
Net charge-offs  (10,127) (30,397) (63,079) (61,283) (3,200) 

Balance at end of period 69,417 $  73,975 $  82,575 $  91,959 $  36,484 
      
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans outstanding at end of period 1.87% 2.25% 2.57% 2.58% 1.09% 
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans outstanding for the period 0.29% 0.92% 1.96% 1.71% 0.11% 

_________________ 
 

(1) Includes the 2012 $5.6 million recovery of a loan previously charged off in 2009.  

As noted in our critical accounting policies, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance prior to the end of 
each calendar quarter.  This assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy and 
appropriateness of the resulting balance.  The level of the allowance is based upon management’s evaluation of the 
loan portfolios, past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, the views of Pinnacle Bank’s 
regulators, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay (including the timing of future 
payments), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, 
historical loss experience, industry and peer bank loan quality indications and other pertinent factors.  This 
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash 
flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change.   

Investments.  Our investment portfolio, consisting primarily of Federal agency bonds, state and municipal securities 
and mortgage-backed securities, amounted to $707.2 million and $897.3 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.  During 2012, we used cash proceeds from our investment portfolio to partially fund our loan growth. 
Our investment portfolio serves many purposes including serving as a stable source of income, collateral for public 
funds and as a potential liquidity source.  Since December 31, 2010, in part due to an asset liability management 
initiative to reduce our interest rate risk exposure in an anticipated rising interest rate environment as well as provide 
additional liquidity for loan growth, we reduced our securities portfolio from $1.02 billion at December 31, 2010 to 
$707.0 million at December 31, 2012, a reduction of 31%.   
 
A summary of certain aspects of our investment portfolio at December 31, 2012, and 2011 follows: 
 

 December 31,  
 2012 2011 
Weighted average life           4.77 years           4.25 years 
Effective duration 3.16% 2.45% 
Weighted average coupon 3.88% 4.26% 
Tax equivalent yield 3.26% 3.60% 
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The following table shows the carrying value of investment securities according to contractual maturity 
classifications of (1) one year or less, (2) after one year through five years, (3) after five years through ten years, and 
(4) after ten years.  Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities because 
the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or prepaid with or without penalty.  Therefore, these securities 
are not included in the maturity categories but are listed below these categories as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 
(in thousands): 

   

  
U.S. Treasury 

securities 
U.S. government 
agency securities 

State and Municipal 
securities Corporate securities Totals 

  Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield 
At December 31, 2012:                     

Securities available-for-sale:                     
Due in one year or less $         - 0.0%  $             - 0.0% $     3,348 3.6% $    1,176 3.0% $      4,524 3.4% 
Due in one year to five years - 0.0% 6,057 0.6% 29,468 3.5% 615 1.5% 36,140 3.0% 
Due in five years to ten years         - 0.0% 45,329 1.9% 79,010 4.1% 9,605 5.0% 133,944 3.4% 
Due after ten years       - 0.0% 59,066 2.7% 79,901 4.0% - 0.0% 138,967 3.4% 

 $        - 0.0% $ 110,452 2.3% $ 191,727 4.0% $  11,396 4.6% 313,575 3.4% 
      Mortgage-backed securities         375,651 3.3% 
      Asset-backed securities         17,352 1.4% 
        $  706,578 3.3% 
           

Securities held-to-maturity:           
Due in one year or less $        - 0.0% $             - 0.0% $        200 3.0% $             - 0.0% $        200 3.0% 
Due in one year to five years - 0.0% - 0.0% 375 3.5% - 0.0% 375 3.5% 
Due in five years to ten years         - 0.0%         - 0.0%         - 0.0%         - 0.0%         - 0.0% 
Due after ten years       - 0.0%       - 0.0%       - 0.0%       - 0.0%       - 0.0% 

  $        - 0.0% $             - 0.0% $        575 3.3% $             - 0.0% $        575 3.3% 
      Mortgage-backed securities         - 0.0% 

Asset-backed securities         - 0.0% 
Total held-for-sale securities         $        575 3.3% 

           
At December 31, 2011:                     

Securities available-for-sale:                     
Due in one year or less $         - 0.0% $         516 0.6% $           2,483 5.1% $        306 2.2% $         3,304 4.1% 
Due in one year to five years - 0.0% 30,411 1.0% 28,834 4.9% 1,313 3.1% 60,558 2.9% 
Due in five years to ten years         - 0.0% 7,024 3.1% 67,441 5.7% 9,511 5.0% 83,976 5.4% 
Due after ten years       - 0.0% 4,362 3.3% 97,194 5.9% - 0.0% 101,556 5.8% 

 $        - 0.0% $    42,313 1.6% $       195,952 5.7% $   11,130 4.7% 249,394 4.9% 
      Mortgage-backed securities         645,567 3.1% 
        $    894,961 3.6% 
           

Securities held-to-maturity:           
Due in one year or less $        - 0.0% $             - 0.0% $           1,705 4.9% $             - 0.0% $           1,705 4.9% 
Due in one year to five years - 0.0% - 0.0% 625 4.9% - 0.0% 625 4.9% 
Due in five years to ten years         - 0.0%         - 0.0% - 0.0%         - 0.0% - 0.0% 
Due after ten years       - 0.0%       - 0.0% - 0.0%       - 0.0% - 0.0% 

  $        - 0.0% $             - 0.0% $           2,330 4.9% $             - 0.0%      2,330 4.9% 
      Mortgage-backed securities         - 0.0% 

Total held-for-sale securities         $          2,330 4.9% 
     
We computed yields using coupon interest, adding discount accretion or subtracting premium amortization, as appropriate, on a ratable basis over the life of each 
security. We computed the weighted average yield for each maturity range using the acquisition price of each security in that range. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
approximately 80% of our state and municipal securities were generally callable by the issuer. 

 
Deposits and Other Borrowings.  We had approximately $4.015 billion of deposits at December 31, 2012 compared 
to $3.654 billion at December 31, 2011.  Our deposits consist of noninterest and interest-bearing demand accounts, 
savings accounts, money market accounts and time deposits.  Additionally, we entered into agreements with certain 
customers to sell certain of our securities under agreements to repurchase the security the following day.  These 
agreements (which are typically associated with comprehensive treasury management programs for our commercial 
clients and provide the client with short-term returns for their excess funds) amounted to $114.7 million at 
December 31, 2012 and $131.6 million at December 31, 2011.  Additionally, at December 31, 2012, we had 
borrowed $75.9 million in advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLB Cincinnati) compared 
to $226.1 million at December 31, 2011.  At December 31, 2012, we believe we had approximately $329.2 million 
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in additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB Cincinnati; however, incremental borrowings are made via a formal 
request by us and the subsequent approval by the FHLB Cincinnati. 
 
Generally, we have classified our funding as core funding or non-core funding.  Core funding consists of all deposits 
other than time deposits issued in denominations of $250,000 or greater.  All other funding is deemed to be non-
core.  Non-core is further segmented between relationship based non-core funding and wholesale funding.  The 
following table represents the balances of our deposits and other funding and the percentage of each type to the total 
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands): 
 

 December 31,  December 31,  
  2012 Percent 2011 Percent 
Core funding:       

Noninterest-bearing deposit accounts $  985,689 22.9% $     717,379 17.5% 
Interest-bearing demand accounts 760,787 17.6% 637,203 15.5% 
Savings and money market accounts 1,662,256 38.6% 1,585,260 38.6% 
Time deposit accounts less than $250,000  467,013 10.8% 501,705 12.2% 

Total core funding 3,875,745 89.9%   3,441,547 83.8% 
Non-core funding:     
   Relationship based non-core funding:     

Reciprocating time deposits (1) 52,239 1.2% 108,507 2.6% 
Other time deposits 87,204 2.0% 104,284 2.5% 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 114,667 2.7% 131,591 3.2% 

Total relationship based non-core funding 254,110 5.9% 344,382 8.4% 
  Wholesale funding:     

Public funds - 0.0% - 0.0% 
Brokered deposits - 0.0% - 0.0% 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 75,850 1.8% 226,069 5.5% 
Holding Company loan 23,682 0.6% - 0.0% 
Subordinated debt – Pinnacle Bank - 0.0% 15,000 0.3% 
Subordinated debt – Pinnacle Financial 82,476 1.8% 82,476 2.0% 
  Total wholesale funding 182,008 4.2% 323,545 7.8% 

Total non-core funding 436,118 10.1% 667,927 16.2% 
Totals $ 4,311,863 100.0% $  4,109,474 100.0% 

(1) The reciprocating time deposit category consists of deposits we receive from a bank network (the CDARS network) in connection 
with deposits of our customers in excess of our FDIC coverage limit that we place with the CDARS network. 
 

Our funding policies limit the amount of non-core funding we can utilize.  Periodically, we may exceed our policy 
limitations, at which time management will develop plans to bring our core funding ratios back within compliance.  
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we were in compliance with our core funding policies. As noted in the table above, 
our core funding as a percentage of total funding increased from 83.8% at December 31, 2011 to 89.9% at 
December 31, 2012.  Continuing to grow our core deposit base is a key strategic objective of our firm. Our current 
growth plans contemplate that we may increase our non-core funding amounts from current levels, but we do not 
currently anticipate that such increases will exceed our internal policies. 
 
The amount of time deposits as of December 31, 2012 amounted to $606.5 million. The following table, which 
includes core, non-core and reciprocal deposits, shows our time deposits in denominations of under $250,000 and 
those of denominations of $250,000 and greater by category based on time remaining until maturity of (1) three 
months or less, (2) over three but less than six months, (3) over six but less than twelve months and (4) over twelve 
months and the weighted average rate for each category (in thousands): 
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 Balances Weighted Avg. Rate 
Denominations less than $250,000   
Three months or less $ 136,903 0.80% 
Over three but less than six months 132,630 0.53% 
Over six but less than twelve months 106,578 0.72% 
Over twelve months 143,141 1.14% 
 $ 519,252 0.81% 
Denomination $250,000 and greater   
Three months or less $   16,553 0.73% 
Over three but less than six months 25,175 0.59% 
Over six but less than twelve months 21,817 0.79% 
Over twelve months 23,659 1.41% 
 $   87,204 0.89% 
Totals $ 606,456 0.82% 

 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings.  Pinnacle Bank is a member of the FHLB Cincinnati.  As a result, Pinnacle 
Bank receives advances from the FHLB, pursuant to the terms of various borrowing agreements, which assist it in 
the funding of its home mortgage and commercial real estate loan portfolios.  Under the borrowing agreements with 
the FHLB, Pinnacle Bank has pledged certain qualifying residential mortgage loans and, pursuant to a blanket lien, 
all qualifying commercial mortgage loans as collateral.  At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank had received 
advances from the FHLB totaling $75.6 million at the following rates and maturities (in thousands): 
 

 

Scheduled 
Maturities 

Weighted 
Average 
Interest 
Rates(1) 

   
2013 $ 25,000 0.21% 
2014 35,000 1.79% 
2015 - 0.00% 
2016 15,000 2.87% 
2017 - 0.00% 
Thereafter 609 2.48% 
 $ 75,609  
Weighted average interest rate  1.49% 

 
   (1) Some FHLB advances include variable interest rates and could increase in the future.  The table reflects rates in effect as of 

December 31, 2012. 
 

As part of our asset liability policy, we seek to manage our interest rate risk and we utilize various strategies in order 
to achieve our goals. During 2012, we restructured approximately $60.0 million of FHLB advances to reduce our 
ongoing funding costs.  This restructuring was undertaken because the weighted average interest rate on those FHLB 
advances was 1.91%, significantly higher than the rate for replacement funding.  Other than the interest rates 
associated with the individual advances, the terms of the replacement advances were similar to those of the advances 
restructured.  In conjunction with this restructuring, we incurred a one-time charge of $2.1 million during the fourth 
quarter of 2012.  

We have four wholly-owned subsidiaries that are statutory business trusts. We are the sole sponsor of the Trusts and 
acquired each Trust’s common securities. The Trusts were created for the exclusive purpose of issuing 30-year 
capital trust preferred securities and used the proceeds to acquire junior subordinated debentures (Subordinated 
Debentures) issued by Pinnacle Financial.  The sole assets of the Trusts are the Subordinated Debentures.  At 
December 31, 2012, our $2,476,000 investment in the Trusts is included in other investments in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets and our $82,476,000 obligation is reflected as subordinated debt.  
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Date 

Established Maturity  
Common 
Securities 

Subordinated 
Debentures 

Floating Interest 
Rate 

Interest Rate at 
December 31, 2012 

Trust I December 29, 2003 December 30, 2033 $  310,000 $  10,000,000 Libor + 2.80% 3.11% 
Trust II September 15, 2005 September 30, 2035   619,000 20,000,000 Libor + 1.40% 1.71% 
Trust III September 7, 2006 September 30, 2036   619,000 20,000,000 Libor + 1.65% 1.96% 
Trust IV October 31, 2007 September 30, 2037   928,000 30,000,000 Libor + 2.85% 3.16% 

 
The securities bear a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR which is set each quarter.  
Distributions are payable quarterly.  The Trust Preferred Securities are subject to mandatory redemption upon 
repayment of the Subordinated Debentures at their stated maturity date or their earlier redemption in an amount 
equal to their liquidation amount plus accumulated and unpaid distributions to the date of redemption.  We 
guarantee the payment of distributions and payments for redemption or liquidation of the Trust Preferred Securities 
to the extent of funds held by the Trusts.  Pinnacle Financial’s obligations under the Subordinated Debentures 
together with the guarantee and other back-up obligations, in the aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional 
guarantee by Pinnacle Financial of the obligations of the Trusts under the Trust Preferred Securities.  
   
The Subordinated Debentures are unsecured; bear interest at a rate equal to the rates paid by the Trusts on the Trust 
Preferred Securities and mature on the same dates as those noted above for the Trust Preferred Securities.  Interest is 
payable quarterly.  We may defer the payment of interest at any time for a period not exceeding 20 consecutive 
quarters provided that the deferral period does not extend past the stated maturity.  During any such deferral period, 
distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities will also be deferred and our ability to pay dividends on our common 
shares will be restricted.  
 
The Trust Preferred Securities may be redeemed prior to maturity at our option.  The Trust Preferred Securities may 
also be redeemed at any time in whole (but not in part) in the event of unfavorable changes in laws or regulations 
that result in (1) the Trust becoming subject to federal income tax on income received on the Subordinated 
Debentures, (2) interest payable by the parent company on the Subordinated Debentures becoming non-deductible 
for federal tax purposes, (3) the requirement for the Trust to register under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as 
amended, or (4) loss of the ability to treat the Trust Preferred Securities as “Tier I capital” under the Federal Reserve 
capital adequacy guidelines.  
   
On August 5, 2008, we entered into a $15 million subordinated term loan with an unaffiliated bank.  During the third 
quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Bank repaid this subordinated term loan.  
 
On June 15, 2012, Pinnacle Financial entered into a loan agreement with an unaffiliated bank for $25 
million.  Pinnacle Financial’s borrowings under the Loan Agreement bear interest at rates that, at our option, can be 
either: 
  
     ! A base rate generally defined as the sum of (i) the highest of (x) the lender’s “base” or “prime” rate, 

(y) the average overnight federal funds effective rate plus one-half percent (0.50%) per annum or (z) 
one-month LIBOR plus one percent (1%) per annum and (ii) an applicable margin as noted below; or 

  
  ! A LIBOR rate generally defined as the sum of (i) the average of the offered rates of interest quoted in 

the London Inter-Bank Eurodollar Market for U.S. Dollar deposits with prime banks (as published by 
Reuters or other commercially available source) for one, two or three months (all as selected by the 
Company), and (ii) an applicable margin. 

  
The applicable margin under the Loan Agreement ranges from 2.25% (225 basis points) to 3.00% (300 basis points) 
depending on the total aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Loan Agreement. The initial applicable 
margin for both base rate and LIBOR rate loans is 3.00% (300 basis points). 
  
We are required to make quarterly principal payments of $625,000 beginning on September 30, 2012, and the loan 
matures on June 15, 2017. We are permitted to prepay all or a portion of the principal amount outstanding under the 
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Loan Agreement without penalty (in minimum aggregate amounts of $100,000) at any time so long as no event of 
default or unmatured event of default has occurred and is continuing.

 
Capital Resources. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, our stockholders’ equity amounted to $679.1 million and 
$710.1 million, respectively.  Substantially all of the decrease in stockholders’ equity resulted from the redemption 
of the remaining preferred shares outstanding, offset by our net income in 2012. 

On December 12, 2008, we issued 95,000 shares of preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury for $95 million pursuant to 
the CPP.  Additionally, we issued 534,910 common stock warrants to the U.S. Treasury as a condition to our 
participation in the CPP.  Proceeds from this sale of preferred stock were contributed to Pinnacle Bank for general 
corporate purposes, including its lending activities.  On June 16, 2009, we completed the sale of 8,855,000 shares of 
our common stock in a public offering, resulting in net proceeds to Pinnacle Financial of approximately $109.0 
million. As a result, and pursuant to the terms of the warrant issued to the U.S. Treasury in connection with our 
participation in the CPP, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the warrant issued to the U.S. Treasury in 
connection with the CPP was reduced by 50%, or 267,455 shares. 

During the fourth quarter of 2011, Pinnacle Financial repurchased 25% of the preferred shares originally issued to 
the U.S. Treasury under the CPP in a transaction totaling approximately $23.9 million. During the second quarter of 
2012, Pinnacle Financial redeemed the remaining 71,250 of the preferred shares originally issued to the U.S. 
Treasury under the CPP in a transaction totaling approximately $71.6 million. The accrued dividend costs and the 
accretion of the discount recorded on the preferred stock totaled $3,814,000 and $6,665,000 during the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  During the third quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial repurchased, for 
$755,000, the common stock warrants issued to the U.S. Treasury in connection with our participation in the 
CPP.  At the time of the repurchase, the warrants had a carrying value of $3.3 million, therefore, our additional paid 
in capital increased $2.5 million due to the difference between the initial valuation and the repurchase amount. At 
December 31, 2012, Pinnacle’s Bank’s Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 11.8%, the total risk-based capital ratio 
was 13.0% and the leverage ratio was 10.6%, compared to 13.8%, 15.3% and 11.4% at December 31, 2011, 
respectively. 
 
Dividends.  Under Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to 
Pinnacle Financial which are similar to those applicable to national banks.  Prior to the repurchase of the preferred 
stock, Pinnacle Financial was subject to limits on payment of dividends to its shareholders by its participation in the 
CPP.  Pursuant to Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank may not, without the prior consent of the TDFI, pay any 
dividends to Pinnacle Financial in a calendar year in excess of the total of Pinnacle Bank’s net profits for that year 
plus the retained profits for the preceding two years.  As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank could pay 
approximately $39.1 million of dividends to Pinnacle Financial without prior TDFI approval. Pinnacle Financial has 
not paid any cash dividends on its common stock since inception, however, our growth plans may provide the 
opportunity for us to consider a sustainable dividend program at some point in the future. Our future dividend policy 
will depend on our earnings, capital position, financial condition and other factors, including new regulatory capital 
requirements, as they become known to us.  
 
Market and Liquidity Risk Management 
 
Our objective is to manage assets and liabilities to provide a satisfactory, consistent level of profitability within the 
framework of established liquidity, loan, investment, borrowing, and capital policies.  Our Asset Liability 
Management Committee (ALCO) is charged with the responsibility of monitoring these policies, which are designed 
to ensure acceptable composition of asset/liability mix.  Two critical areas of focus for ALCO are interest rate 
sensitivity and liquidity risk management. 
 
Interest Rate Sensitivity.  In the normal course of business, we are exposed to market risk arising from fluctuations 
in interest rates.  ALCO measures and evaluates the interest rate risk so that we can meet customer demands for 
various types of loans and deposits.  ALCO determines the most appropriate amounts of on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet items.  Measurements which we use to help us manage interest rate sensitivity include an earnings 
simulation model and an economic value of equity model.  These measurements are used in conjunction with 
competitive pricing analysis. 



2012 Annual Report 

Pinnacle Financial Partners 65

MaNaGeMeNT’S DISCUSSIoN aND aNalYSIS

 

 
   • Earnings simulation model. We believe that interest rate risk is best measured by our earnings simulation 

modeling.  Earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities, and off-balance sheet financial instruments are combined 
with ALCO forecasts of interest rates for the next 12 months and are combined with other factors in order to 
produce various earnings simulations.  To limit interest rate risk, we have guidelines for our earnings at risk 
which seek to limit the variance of net interest income in both gradual and instantaneous changes to interest 
rates.  For changes up or down in rates from management’s flat interest rate forecast over the next twelve 
months, limits in the decline in net interest income are as follows: 

   • -10.0% for a gradual change of 400 basis points; -20.0% for an instantaneous change of 400 basis 
points 

   • -7.5% for a gradual change of 300 basis points; -15.0% for an instantaneous change of 300 basis 
points 

   • -5.0% for a gradual change of 200 basis points; -10.0% for an instantaneous change of 200 basis 
points 

   • -2.5% for a gradual change of 100 basis points; -5.0% for an instantaneous change of 100 basis 
points 

 
   • Economic value of equity. Our economic value of equity model measures the extent that estimated 

economic values of our assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items will change as a result of interest rate 
changes.  Economic values are determined by discounting expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and 
off-balance sheet items, which establishes a base case economic value of equity.  To help limit interest rate 
risk, we have a guideline stating that for an instantaneous 400 basis point change in interest rates up or 
down, the economic value of equity should not decrease by more than 40 percent from the base case; for a 
300 basis point instantaneous change in interest rates up or down, the economic value of equity should not 
decrease by more than 30 percent; for a 200 basis point instantaneous change in interest rates up or down, 
the economic value of equity should not decrease by more than 20 percent; and for a 100 basis point 
instantaneous change in interest rates up or down, the economic value of equity should not decrease by 
more than 10 percent. 

 
At December 31, 2012, our ALCO modeling indicated that we are in compliance with the policies noted above. Our 
model results also indicated that our balance sheet is slightly liability sensitive to parallel shifts in interest rates in 
increments of 100 to 200 basis points.  The slight liability sensitivity present at the 100 to 200 bps increment level is 
primarily attributable to loan floors which will prevent the rise in yields on our loan portfolio from out-pacing the 
potential rise in deposit costs.  We become asset-sensitive once those rate increments reach 200 to 250 basis points 
as we break through interest rate floors placed on variable and floating rate loans at a more substantial level.  Absent 
any other asset liability strategies an interest rate increase of a 200 to 250 basis point level could result in slightly 
increased margins. Over time, we expect to reduce our slight liability sensitivity as we engage in initiatives to bring 
our firm toward an interest rate neutral position over the next several quarters. 
 
Each of the above analyses may not, on its own, be an accurate indicator of how our net interest income will be 
affected by changes in interest rates.  Income associated with interest-earning assets and costs associated with 
interest-bearing liabilities may not be affected uniformly by changes in interest rates.  In addition, the magnitude and 
duration of changes in interest rates may have a significant impact on net interest income.  For example, although 
certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees 
to changes in market interest rates.  Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities fluctuate in advance of 
changes in general market rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in general market 
rates.  In addition, certain assets, such as adjustable rate mortgage loans, have features (generally referred to as 
interest rate caps and floors) which limit changes in interest rates.  Prepayment and early withdrawal levels also 
could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the maturity of certain instruments. The ability of 
many borrowers to service their debts also may decrease during periods of rising interest rates.  ALCO reviews each 
of the above interest rate sensitivity analyses along with several different interest rate scenarios as part of its 
responsibility to provide a satisfactory, consistent level of profitability within the framework of established liquidity, 
loan, investment, borrowing, and capital policies. 
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We may also use derivative financial instruments to improve the balance between interest-sensitive assets and 
interest-sensitive liabilities and as one tool to manage our interest rate sensitivity while continuing to meet the credit 
and deposit needs of our customers.  We also enter into interest rate swaps (swaps) to facilitate customer 
transactions and meet their financing needs.  These swaps qualify as derivatives, but are not designated as hedging 
instruments. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had not entered into any derivative contracts designated as 
hedging instruments to assist managing our interest rate sensitivity. 
 
Liquidity Risk Management.  The purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure that there are sufficient cash 
flows to satisfy loan demand, deposit withdrawals, and our other needs.  Traditional sources of liquidity for a bank 
include asset maturities and growth in core deposits.  A bank may achieve its desired liquidity objectives from the 
management of its assets and liabilities and by internally generated funding through its operations.  Funds invested 
in marketable instruments that can be readily sold and the continuous maturing of other earning assets are sources of 
liquidity from an asset perspective.  The liability base provides sources of liquidity through attraction of increased 
deposits and borrowing funds from various other institutions. 
  
Changes in interest rates also affect our liquidity position.  We currently price deposits in response to market rates 
and our management intends to continue this policy.  If deposits are not priced in response to market rates, a loss of 
deposits could occur which would negatively affect our liquidity position. 
  
Scheduled loan payments are a relatively stable source of funds, but loan payoffs and deposit flows fluctuate 
significantly, being influenced by interest rates, general economic conditions and competition. Additionally, debt 
security investments are subject to prepayment and call provisions that could accelerate their payoff prior to stated 
maturity.  We attempt to price our deposit products to meet our asset/liability objectives consistent with local market 
conditions.  Our ALCO is responsible for monitoring our ongoing liquidity needs.  Our regulators also monitor our 
liquidity and capital resources on a periodic basis. 
 
As noted previously, Pinnacle Bank is a member of the FHLB Cincinnati and, pursuant to a borrowing agreement 
with the FHLB Cincinnati, has pledged certain assets pursuant to a blanket lien.  As such, Pinnacle Bank may use 
the FHLB Cincinnati as a source of liquidity depending on the firm’s ALCO strategies.  Additionally, we may 
pledge additional qualifying assets or reduce the amount of pledged assets with the FHLB Cincinnati to increase or 
decrease our borrowing capacity at the FHLB Cincinnati.  At December 31, 2012, we believe we had approximately 
$329.2 million in additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB Cincinnati.  However, incremental borrowings are 
made via a formal request by Pinnacle Bank and the subsequent approval by the FHLB Cincinnati. 
  
Pinnacle Bank also has accommodations with upstream correspondent banks for unsecured short-term advances 
which aggregate $155.0 million.  These accommodations have various covenants related to their term and 
availability, and in most cases must be repaid within less than a month.  There were no outstanding borrowings 
under these agreements at December 31, 2012, or during the year then ended under such agreements.  Pinnacle Bank 
also has approximately $1.0 billion in available Federal Reserve discount window lines of credit. 
  
At December 31, 2012, and 2011, excluding any reciprocating time deposits issued through the CDARS network, 
we had no brokered certificates of deposit.  Historically, we have issued brokered certificates through several 
different brokerage houses based on competitive bid.  Typically, these funds have been for varying maturities of up 
to two years and were issued at rates which were competitive to rates we would be required to pay to attract similar 
deposits within our local markets as well as rates for FHLB advances of similar maturities.  Although we consider 
these deposits to be a ready source of liquidity under current market conditions, we anticipate that these deposits will 
represent an insignificant percentage of our total funding in 2013 as we seek to maintain a higher level of core 
deposits. 
 
At December 31, 2012, we had no significant commitments for capital expenditures although we are constructing a 
branch facility in the Knoxville MSA which is tentatively set to open in the first half of 2013.   
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Our short-term borrowings (borrowings which mature within the next fiscal year) consist primarily of securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase (these agreements are typically associated with comprehensive treasury 
management programs for our clients and provide them with short-term returns on their excess funds) and FHLB 
Cincinnati advances.  Information concerning our short-term borrowings as of and for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2012 is as follows (in thousands): 
 

 At December 31,  
 2012 2011 2010 
Amounts outstanding at year-end:    

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 114,667 $ 131,591 $   146,294 
Federal funds purchased - - - 
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term  advances 25,000 115,000 10,000 

    
Weighted average interest rates at year-end:    

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.21% 0.44% 0.75% 
Federal funds purchased - - - 
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term  advances 0.21% 0.12% 1.90% 

    
Maximum amount of borrowings at any month-end:    

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 153,327 $ 244,233 $  284,323 
Federal funds purchased - - - 
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term  advances 160,000 115,000 75,980 

    
Average balances for the year:    

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 134,989 $ 161,845 $  222,179 
Federal funds purchased 1,325 - 260 
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term  advances 96,250 31,250 30,288 

    
Weighted average interest rates for the year:    

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.34% 0.69% 0.79% 
Federal funds purchased 0.49% 0.94% 1.04% 
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term  advances 0.18% 0.12% 2.66% 

 
The following table presents additional information about our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2012, 
which by their terms have contractual maturity and termination dates subsequent to December 31, 2012 (in 
thousands): 
 

 At December 31, 2012 

 Next 12 months 
13-36 

 months 
37-60 

months 
More than 
60 months Totals 

Contractual obligations:      
Certificates of deposit $ 439,470 $ 119,861 $ 47,125 $             - $ 606,456 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 114,667 - - - 114,667 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances  25,000 35,000 15,000 609 75,609 
Subordinated debt - - - 82,476 82,476 
Minimum operating lease commitments  3,665 7,149 7,071 30,191 48,076 

Totals $ 582,802 $ 162,010 $ 69,196 $ 113,276 $ 927,284 
 

Our management believes that we have adequate liquidity to meet all known contractual obligations and unfunded 
commitments, including loan commitments and reasonable borrower, depositor, and creditor requirements over the 
next twelve months.  Our operating lease commitments are primarily related to our branch and headquarters 
facilities. The terms of these leases expire at various points ranging from 2017 through 2039. At December 31, 
2011, our total minimum operating lease commitment was $50,895.   
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.  At December 31, 2012, we had outstanding standby letters of credit of $74.7 
million and unfunded loan commitments outstanding of $1.0 billion.  Because these commitments generally have 
fixed expiration dates and many will expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment level does not 



2012 Annual Report 

68 Pinnacle Financial Partners 

MaNaGeMeNT’S DISCUSSIoN aND aNalYSIS

 

necessarily represent future cash requirements.  If needed to fund these outstanding commitments, Pinnacle Bank 
has the ability to liquidate Federal funds sold or securities available-for-sale, or on a short-term basis to borrow and 
purchase Federal funds from other financial institutions.  The following table presents additional information about 
our unfunded commitments as of December 31, 2012, which by their terms, have contractual maturity dates 
subsequent to December 31, 2012 (in thousands): 
 

 At December 31, 2012 

 
Next 12 
months 

13-36 
months 

37-60 
months 

More than 
60 months Totals 

Unfunded commitments:      
Lines of credit $ 535,472 $ 183,630 $ 127,364 $184,258 $ 1,030,724 
Letters of credit 69,754 4,856 69 - 74,679 

Totals $ 605,226 $ 188,486 $ 127,433 $ 184,258 $ 1,105,403 
 

We follow the same credit policies and underwriting practices when making these commitments as we do for on-
balance sheet instruments.  Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the amount of 
collateral obtained, if any, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.  However, should the 
commitments be drawn upon and should our customers default on their resulting obligation to us, our maximum 
exposure to credit loss, without consideration of collateral, is represented by the contractual amount of those 
instruments.  At December 31, 2012, we had accrued $1,898,000 for the inherent risks associated with off balance 
sheet commitments. 
 
Impact of Inflation 
 
The consolidated financial statements and related consolidated financial data presented herein have been prepared in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and practices within the banking industry which 
require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering 
the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, 
virtually all the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a 
more significant impact on a financial institution's performance than the effects of general levels of inflation. 
 
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements    

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-08, Intangibles—Goodwill and 
Other, regarding testing goodwill for impairment. The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform a 
qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less 
than its carrying amount. If an entity determines that this is the case, it is required to perform the currently 
prescribed two-step goodwill impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of 
goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit (if any). Based on the qualitative assessment, if an 
entity determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is more than its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill 
impairment test is not required. The new guidance was effective for Pinnacle Financial beginning January 1, 2012. 
As a result of applying this new guidance, the two-step goodwill impairment test was not deemed necessary in 2012 
based on the results of the qualitative assessment.  

 
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income, new disclosure guidance related to the 
presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This guidance eliminates the current option to report other 
comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes in equity and requires presentation of 
reclassification adjustments on the face of the income statement. Pinnacle Financial has adopted this accounting 
standard upon its effective date for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011.  This adoption did not have 
any impact on our financial position or results of operations but has impacted our financial statement presentation. 

 
In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and 
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (Topic 820)-Fair Value 
Measurement (ASU 2011-04), to provide a consistent definition of fair value and ensure that the fair value 
measurement and disclosure requirements are similar between U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting 
Standards. ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair value measurement principles and enhances the disclosure 
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requirements particularly for level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2011-04 was adopted by Pinnacle Financial in 
its first quarter of fiscal 2012.  
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements    
 
Other than those pronouncements discussed above which have been recently adopted, there were no other recently 
issued accounting pronouncements that are expected to impact Pinnacle Financial.  
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 December 31, 
ASSETS 2012 2011 
   
Cash and noninterest-bearing due from banks $      51,946,542 $        63,015,997 
Interest-bearing due from banks 111,535,083 108,422,470 
Federal funds sold and other 1,807,044 724,573 

Cash and cash equivalents 165,288,669 172,163,040 
   

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 706,577,806 894,962,246 
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $583,212 and $2,369,118 at  
          December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively) 574,863 2,329,917 
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 41,194,639 35,363,038 
   
Loans 3,712,162,430 3,291,350,857 
Less allowance for loan losses (69,417,437) (73,974,675) 

Loans, net 3,642,744,993 3,217,376,182 
   

Premises and equipment, net 75,804,895 77,127,361 
Other investments 26,962,890 44,653,840 
Accrued interest receivable 14,856,615 15,243,366 
Goodwill 244,040,421 244,076,492 
Core deposits and other intangible assets 5,103,273 7,842,267 
Other real estate owned 18,580,097 39,714,415 
Other assets 98,819,455 113,098,540 
         Total assets $  5,040,548,616 $   4,863,950,704 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   
   
Deposits:   

Non-interest-bearing $     985,689,460     $     717,378,933 
Interest-bearing 760,786,247 637,203,420 
Savings and money market accounts 1,662,256,403 1,585,260,139 
Time 606,455,873 714,496,974 

Total deposits 4,015,187,983 3,654,339,466 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 114,667,475 131,591,412 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 75,850,390 226,068,796 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 106,158,292 97,476,000 
Accrued interest payable 1,360,598 2,233,330 
Other liabilities 48,252,519 42,097,132 

Total liabilities 4,361,477,257 4,153,806,136 

Stockholders’ equity:    
Preferred stock, no par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 71,250 shares 

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 - 69,096,828 
Common stock, par value $1.00; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 34,696,597 

and 34,354,960 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011 34,696,597 34,354,960 
Common stock warrants - 3,348,402 
Additional paid-in capital 543,760,439 536,227,537 
Retained earnings 87,386,689 49,783,584 
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes 13,227,634 17,333,257 

Total stockholders’ equity 679,071,359 710,144,568 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $  5,040,548,616 $    4,863,950,704 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

CoNSolIDaTeD FINaNCIal STaTeMeNTS
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 2010 
Interest income:    

Loans, including fees $  160,036,709 $  154,748,491 $     162,901,763 
Securities:    

Taxable 16,931,417 23,971,787 30,306,189 
Tax-exempt 6,576,701 7,394,134 7,916,596 

Federal funds sold and other 1,876,731 2,232,423 2,223,816 
Total interest income 185,421,558 188,346,835 203,348,364 

    Interest expense:    
Deposits 16,842,852 30,588,033 49,856,815 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 455,499 1,110,078 1,749,905 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings 5,258,749 5,184,313 7,368,258 

Total interest expense 22,557,100 36,882,424 58,974,978 
Net interest income 162,864,458 151,464,411 144,373,386 

Provision for loan losses 5,568,830 21,797,613 53,695,454 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 157,295,628 129,666,798 90,677,932 

    Noninterest income:    
Service charges on deposit accounts 9,917,754 9,244,165 9,591,543 
Investment services 6,984,970 6,246,414 5,050,105 
Insurance sales commissions 4,461,404 3,999,153 3,864,340 
Gains on mortgage loans sold, net  6,698,618 4,155,137 4,085,657 
Gain on sale of investment securities, net 2,150,605 960,763 2,623,674 
Trust fees 3,195,950 2,999,731 2,872,490 
Other noninterest income 9,987,335 10,334,847 8,227,237 

Total noninterest income 43,396,636 37,940,210 36,315,046 
    

Noninterest expense:    
Salaries and employee benefits 78,056,564 74,424,851 64,628,991 
Equipment and occupancy 20,420,333 19,986,976 21,077,223 
Other real estate expense 11,544,067 17,431,926 29,210,197 
Marketing and other business development 3,635,810 3,303,151 3,233,224 
Postage and supplies 2,379,730 2,120,722 2,538,021 
Amortization of intangibles 2,738,994 2,862,837 2,980,986 
Other noninterest expense 19,389,368 18,976,865 23,214,670 

Total noninterest expense 138,164,866 139,107,328 146,883,312 
Income (loss) before income taxes 62,527,398 28,499,680 (19,890,334) 

Income tax expense (benefit)  20,643,517 (15,237,687) 4,410,158 
Net income (loss) 41,883,881 43,737,367 (24,300,492) 

Preferred stock dividends 1,660,868 4,606,493 4,815,973 
Accretion on preferred stock discount 2,153,172 2,058,146 1,326,049 

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $   38,069,841 $   37,072,728 $    (30,442,514) 
    

Per share information:    
Basic net income (loss) per common share available to  
      common stockholders $1.12 $1.11 ($0.93) 
Diluted net income (loss) per common share available to  
      common stockholders $1.10 $1.09 ($0.93) 
Weighted average common shares outstanding:    

Basic 33,899,667 33,420,015 32,789,871 
Diluted  34,487,808 34,060,228 32,789,871 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

 

 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 2010 
Net income (loss):  $ 41,883,881 $ 43,737,367 $ (24,300,492) 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:        

(Decrease) increase in net gains on securities available-for-sale, 
net of deferred tax expense (benefit)  (4,105,623) 

 
11,708,657  (1,815,481) 

Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 37,778,258 $ 55,446,024 $ (26,115,973) 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 
For the each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 

 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

  

 
Preferred 

Stock Common Stock 
Common 

Stock 
Additional 

Paid-in Retained 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Total 

Stockholders’ 
 Amount Shares Amount Warrants Capital Earnings Income  Equity 

Balances,  December 31, 2009 $ 89,462,633 33,029,719 $  33,029,719 $  3,348,402 $ 524,366,603 $  43,372,743 $  7,440,081 $701,020,181 
Exercise of employee common stock options, 

stock appreciation rights, common stock 
warrants and related tax benefits - 601,023 601,023 - 2,884,789 - - 3,485,812 

Issuance of restricted common shares, net of 
forfeitures - 252,053 252,053 - (252,053) - - - 

Restricted shares withheld for taxes - (12,415) (12,415) - (151,333) - - (163,748) 
Compensation expense for restricted shares - - - - 2,303,720 - - 2,303,720 
Compensation expense for stock options - - - - 1,677,293 - - 1,677,293 
Accretion on preferred stock discount 1,326,049 - - - - (1,326,049) - - 
Preferred dividends paid - - - - - (4,750,000) - (4,750,000) 
Net loss - - - - - (24,300,492) - (24,300,492) 
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - - (1,815,481) (1,815,481) 
Balances,  December 31, 2010 $  90,788,682 33,870,380 $  33,870,380 $  3,348,402 $ 530,829,019 $  12,996,202 $  5,624,600 $ 677,457,285 
Exercise of employee common stock options, 

stock appreciation rights, common stock 
warrants and related tax benefits - 163,829 163,829 - 1,014,653 - - 1,178,482 

Repurchase of preferred stock (23,750,000) - - - - - - (23,750,000) 
Issuance of restricted common shares, net of 

forfeitures - 299,715 299,715 - (299,715) - - - 
Issuance of salary stock units - 54,526 54,526  722,292   776,818 
Restricted shares withheld for taxes - (33,490) (33,490) - (474,448) - - (507,938) 
Compensation expense for restricted shares - - - - 3,239,677 - - 3,239,677 
Compensation expense for stock options - - - - 1,196,059 - - 1,196,059 
Accretion on preferred stock discount 2,058,146 - - - - (2,058,146) - - 
Preferred dividends paid - - - - - (4,891,839) - (4,891,839) 
Net income - - - - - 43,737,367 - 43,737,367 
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 11,708,657 11,708,657 
Balances, December 31, 2011 $ 69,096,828 34,354,960 $  34,354,960 $  3,348,402 $ 536,227,537 $  49,783,584 $  17,333,257 $ 710,144,568 
Exercise of employee common stock options, 

stock appreciation rights, common stock 
warrants and related tax benefits - 245,229 245,229 - 1,455,969 - - 1,701,198 

Repurchase of preferred stock (71,250,000) - - - - - - (71,250,000) 
Issuance of restricted common shares, net of 

forfeitures - 102,119 102,119 - (102,119) - - - 
Issuance of salary stock units - 57,508 57,508 - 942,565 - - 1,000,073 
Restricted shares withheld for taxes - (63,219) (63,219) - (1,021,409) - - (1,084,628) 
Compensation expense for restricted shares - - - - 3,270,028 - - 3,270,028 
Compensation expense for stock options - - - - 394,466 - - 394,466 
Cancellation of outstanding warrants - - - (3,348,402) 2,593,402 - - (755,000) 
Accretion on preferred stock discount 2,153,172 - - - - (2,153,172) - - 
Preferred dividends paid - - - - - (2,127,604) - (2,127,604) 
Net income - - - - - 41,883,881 - 41,883,881 

Other comprehensive loss - - - - - - (4,105,623) (4,105,623) 
Balances, December 31, 2012 $                  - 34,696,597 $  34,696,597 $                   - $ 543,760,439 $  87,386,689 $  13,227,634 679,071,359 
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 

 

 
 
 

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 2010 
Operating activities:    

Net income (loss) $   41,883,881 $  43,737,367 $   (24,300,492) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

operating activities:    
Net amortization/accretion of premium/discount on securities 7,291,775 7,702,123 5,667,069 
Depreciation and amortization 10,207,638 10,950,434 11,500,075 
Provision for loan losses 5,568,830 21,797,613 53,695,454 
Gains on sales of investment securities, net (2,150,605) (960,763) (2,623,674) 
Gain on mortgage loans sold, net (6,698,618) (4,155,137) (4,085,657) 

      Stock-based compensation expense 4,414,452 5,018,294 3,981,013 
      Deferred tax expense (benefit)  1,547,626 (23,395,052) 17,822,071 
      Losses on disposition of other real estate and other investments 9,608,358 14,081,857 25,459,851 

Excess tax benefit from stock compensation  (36,071) (13,819) (16,776) 
Mortgage loans held for sale:    

Loans originated (486,930,709) (394,020,876) (444,833,043) 
Loans sold 487,798,601 378,996,474 445,227,014 

Decrease in other assets 36,400,237 42,346,579 27,366,049 
Increase in other liabilities 5,372,270 11,004,661 14,730,158 

Net cash provided by operating activities 114,277,665 113,089,755 129,589,112 
    Investing activities:    

Activities in securities available-for-sale:    
Purchases (222,831,813) (268,141,975) (548,916,132) 
Sales 188,586,154 166,415,738 146,082,535 
Maturities, prepayments and calls 210,732,980 233,622,196 322,414,157 

Activities in securities held-to-maturity:    
Sales - - 954,388 
Maturities, prepayments and calls 1,755,000 1,975,000 1,235,612 

(Increase) decrease in loans, net (440,508,548) (144,581,478) 194,133,354 
Purchases of premises and equipment and software (5,864,452) (2,031,265) (9,587,707) 
Decrease (increase) in other investments 17,743,227 (407,504) (1,878,676) 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (250,387,452) (13,149,288) 104,437,531 
    Financing activities:    

Net increase (decrease) in deposits 360,848,517 (178,660,721) 9,688,996 
Net (decrease) increase in repurchase agreements (16,923,937) (14,702,967) (129,170,717) 
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank:    

Issuances 520,000,000 215,000,000 90,000,000 
Payments (670,141,606) (110,236,705) (181,149,655) 

Net increase in other borrowings  8,682,292 - - 
(Repurchase) exercise of common stock warrants (755,000) - 285,000 
Exercise of common stock options and stock appreciation rights 866,683 864,805 3,037,064 
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation  36,071 13,819 16,776 
Preferred dividends paid (2,127,604) (4,891,839) (4,750,000) 
Repurchase of preferred shares outstanding (71,250,000) (23,750,000) - 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 129,235,416 (116,363,608) (212,042,536) 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,874,371) (16,423,141) 21,984,107 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 172,163,040 188,586,181 166,602,074 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $    165,288,669 $  172,163,040 $ 188,586,181 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Nature of Business — Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (Pinnacle Financial) is a bank holding company whose primary business is 
conducted by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinnacle Bank (Pinnacle Bank).  Pinnacle Bank is a commercial bank headquartered in 
Nashville, Tennessee. Pinnacle Bank provides a full range of banking services, including investment, mortgage, and insurance 
services, and comprehensive wealth management services, in its primary market areas of the Nashville-Davidson-Murfreesboro-
Franklin, Tennessee and Knoxville, Tennessee Metropolitan Statistical Areas.  

 
Basis of Presentation — These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Financial and its wholly-owned 

subsidiaries. PNFP Statutory Trust I, PNFP Statutory Trust II, PNFP Statutory Trust III, and PNFP Statutory Trust IV are affiliates of 
Pinnacle Financial and are included in these consolidated financial statements pursuant to the equity method of accounting.  
Significant intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation. 

 
Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the 
near term include the determination of the allowance for loan losses, determination of any impairment of intangible assets, the 
valuation of other real estate owned and the valuation of deferred tax assets. 

 
Impairment — Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization, such as core deposit intangible 

assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may 
not be recoverable.  Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to 
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.  If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the 
fair value of the asset.  Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the 
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. 

 
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least annually and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset 

might be impaired.  That annual assessment date for Pinnacle Financial is September 30.  An impairment loss is recognized to the 
extent that the carrying amount exceeds fair value.    

 
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, regarding testing goodwill for 

impairment. The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more 
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity does a qualitative assessment and 
determines that this is the case, or if a qualitative assessment is not performed, it is required to perform a two step goodwill 
impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for 
that reporting unit (if any). Based on a qualitative assessment, if an entity determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is more than 
its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. The new guidance was adopted by Pinnacle Financial 
beginning January 1, 2012 and was used in its annual assessment as of September 30, 2012. The results of the qualitative assessment 
indicated that the fair value of Pinnacle Financial’s reporting unit was more than its carrying value, and accordingly, the two-step 
goodwill impairment test was not performed. 
 

Should Pinnacle Financial’s common stock price decline or other impairment indicators become known, additional impairment 
testing of goodwill may be required. Should it be determined in a future period that the goodwill has become impaired, then a charge 
to earnings will be recorded in the period such determination is made. 
 

Cash Equivalents and Cash Flows — Cash on hand, cash items in process of collection, amounts due from banks, Federal funds 
sold, short-term discount notes and securities purchased under agreements to resell, with original maturities within ninety days, are 
included in cash and cash equivalents.  The following supplemental cash flow information addresses certain cash payments and 
noncash transactions for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 as follows: 
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Securities — Securities are classified based on management’s intention on the date of purchase. All debt securities classified as 

available-for-sale are recorded at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss), net of the deferred income tax effects. Securities that Pinnacle Financial has both the positive intent and ability to hold to 
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at historical cost and adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of 
discounts.  
 

Interest and dividends on securities, including amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts calculated under the effective 
interest method, are included in interest income.  For certain securities, amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is 
computed based on the anticipated life of the security which may be shorter than the stated life of the security.  Realized gains and 
losses from the sale of securities are determined using the specific identification method, and are recorded on the trade date of the sale. 

 
Other-than-temporary Impairment — A decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost 

that is deemed to be other-than-temporary results in a reduction in the carrying amount of the security.  To determine whether 
impairment is other-than-temporary, management considers whether the entity expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the 
security by reviewing the present value of the future cash flows associated with the security.  The shortfall of the present value of the 
cash flows expected to be collected in relation to the amortized cost basis is referred to as a credit loss and is deemed to be other-than-
temporary impairment. If a credit loss is identified, the credit loss is recognized as a charge to earnings and a new cost basis for the 
security is established.  If management concludes that a decline in fair value of a security is temporary and, a full recovery of principal 
and interest is expected and it is not more-likely-than-not that it will be required to sell the security before maturity, then the security 
is not other-than-temporarily impaired and the shortfall is recorded as a component of equity.    
 

Mortgage loans held-for-sale — Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair 
value as determined on a loan-by-loan basis.  Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to 
income.  Realized gains and losses are recognized when legal title to the loans has been transferred to the purchaser and payments 
have been received and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations in gains on mortgage loans sold, net of 
related costs such as compensation expenses.  Pinnacle Financial does not securitize mortgage loans and does not retain the servicing 
for loans sold.   
 

Loans — Pinnacle Financial has five loan segments: commercial, commercial real estate, construction and development, 
consumer and consumer real estate that are determined based on the underlying collateral utilized to secure each loan. These 
classifications are consistent with those utilized in the Quarterly Report of Condition and Income filed with the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC).    

 
Loans are reported at their outstanding principal balances, net of the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs on 

originated loans. Interest income on loans is accrued based on the principal balance outstanding.  Loan origination fees, net of certain 
loan origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment to the related loan yield using a method which approximates the 
interest method.  At December 31, 2012 and 2011, net deferred loan fees of $1,000,000 and $315,000 respectively, were included in 
loans on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.   
 

As part of our routine credit monitoring process, commercial loans receive risk ratings by the assigned financial advisor and are 
subject to validation by our independent loan review department.  Risk ratings are categorized as pass, special mention, substandard, 
substandard-impaired or doubtful-impaired.  Pinnacle Financial believes that our categories follow those outlined by Pinnacle Bank’s 
primary federal regulator.  At December 31, 2012, approximately 77% of our loan portfolio was assigned a specifically assigned risk 
rating in the allowance for loan loss assessment.  Certain consumer loans and commercial relationships that possess certain qualifying 
characteristics are generally not assigned an individual risk rating but are evaluated collectively for credit risk as a homogenous pool 
of loans and individually as either accrual or nonaccrual based on the performance of the loan.   

 

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 2010 
Cash Payments:  

Interest $23,506,632 $  39,991,746 $   60,675,865 
Income taxes paid (refunded) 10,249,106 3,988,414 (4,722,776) 

Noncash Transactions:    
Loans charged-off to the allowance for loan losses 19,657,061 34,849,910 67,543,395 
Loans foreclosed upon with repossessions transferred to other real estate 9,052,792 34,580,351 92,873,551 
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Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when there is a significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower, which 
generally is the case but is not limited to when the principal or interest is more than 90 days past due, unless the loan is both well-
secured and in the process of collection.  Generally, all interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status 
is reversed against current interest income.  Interest income is subsequently recognized only if certain cash payments are received 
while the loan is classified as nonaccrual, but interest income recognition is reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine if the 
payment should be applied to interest or principal pursuant to regulatory guidelines.  A nonaccrual loan is returned to accruing status 
once the loan has been brought current as to principal and interest and collection is reasonably assured or the loan has been “well-
secured” through other techniques.   
 

All loans that are placed on nonaccrual status are further analyzed to determine if they should be classified as impaired loans.  At 
December 31, 2012, there were no loans classified as nonaccrual that were not also deemed to be impaired.  A loan is considered to be 
impaired when it is probable Pinnacle Financial will be unable to collect all principal and interest payments due in accordance with the 
contractual terms of the loan. This determination is made using a variety of techniques, which include a review of the borrower’s 
financial condition, debt-service coverage ratios, global cash flow analysis, guarantor support, other loan file information, meetings 
with borrowers, inspection or reappraisal of collateral and/or consultation with legal counsel as well as results of reviews of other 
similar industry credits (e.g. builder loans, development loans, church loans, etc.).  
 

Loans are charged off when management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely.  As such, a loan may be 
partially charged-off after a “confirming event” has occurred which serves to validate that full repayment pursuant to the terms of the 
loan is unlikely.   

 
Allowance for Loan Losses — The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management believes to be adequate to 

absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
they are known. Subsequent recoveries are credited to the allowance.  Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance 
is based on an evaluation of the portfolio, current economic conditions, volume, growth, composition of the loan portfolio, 
homogeneous pools of loans, risk ratings of specific loans, internal and external historical loss experience, identified impaired loans 
and other factors related to the portfolio. This evaluation is performed quarterly and is inherently subjective, as it requires material 
estimates that are susceptible to significant change including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on 
any impaired loans.  

 
In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, we also consider the results of our ongoing independent loan review process.  We 

undertake this process both to ascertain whether there are loans in the portfolio whose credit quality has weakened over time and to 
assist in our overall evaluation of the risk characteristics of the entire loan portfolio.  Our loan review process includes the judgment of 
management, independent loan reviewers, and reviews that may have been conducted by third-party reviewers. We incorporate 
relevant loan review results in the loan impairment determination. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their 
examination process, will periodically review Pinnacle Financial’s allowance for loan losses and may require Pinnacle Financial to 
record adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations.  

 
In addition to the independent loan review process, the aforementioned risk ratings are subject to continual review by the loan 

officer to determine that the appropriate risk ratings are being utilized in our allowance for loan loss process.  At least annually, and in 
many cases twice per year, our credit policy requires that each risk-rated loan is subject to a formal credit risk review to be performed 
by the responsible financial advisor.  Each risk rating is also subject to review by our independent loan review department.  Currently, 
our independent loan review department targets reviews of a significant portion of our risk rated portfolio annually.  Included in the 
coverage are independent loan reviews of loans in targeted higher-risk portfolio segments such as certain commercial and industrial 
loans, land loans, loans assigned to a particular lending officer and/or loan types in certain geographies.   
 

All of the above factors are utilized in the determination of the allowance for loan losses which is composed of the results of two 
distinct impairment analyses pursuant to the provisions of both ASC 450-20 (formerly SFAS 5) and ASC 310-10-35 (formerly SFAS 
114) as discussed below.   

 
ASC 450-20, Loss Contingencies — The ASC 450-20 component of the allowance for loan losses begins with a process of 

estimating the probable losses based on our internal system of risk ratings and historical loss data for our risk rated portfolio.  Prior to 
2010, because of Pinnacle Financial’s limited loss history, loss estimates were primarily derived from historical loss data by loan 
categories for comparable peer institutions.  During 2010, we incorporated the results of Pinnacle Bank’s own historical migration 
analysis of all loans that were charged-off during the prior eight quarters.  The look-back period in our migration analysis was 
extended each quarter since and at December 31, 2012 is fifteen quarters which continues to include the losses incurred by Pinnacle 
Financial in 2009 when the internal historical migration analysis was first adopted. In this current economic environment, we believed 
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the extension of our look-back period in our migration analysis was appropriate due to the risks inherent in our loan portfolio.  Absent 
the extension, the early cycle periods in which we experienced significant losses would have been excluded from the determination of 
the allowance for loan losses.  This migration analysis assists in evaluating loan loss allocation rates for the various risk grades 
assigned to loans in our portfolio. The results of the migration analysis are then compared to other industry factors to determine the 
loss allocation rates for the risk rated loan portfolios.  The loss allocation rates from our migration analysis and the industry loss 
factors are weighted 75% to 25%, respectively, to determine a weighted average loss allocation rate for these portfolios. 

 
  The allowance allocation for non risk-rated portfolios is based on consideration of our actual historical loss rates and industry loss 

rates for those particular segments. Non risk-rated loans are evaluated as a group by category rather than on an individual loan basis 
because these loans are smaller and homogeneous.  We weight the internally and externally-based allocation methodologies for the 
non risk-rated loan portfolio and determine a weighted average loss allocation rate for these portfolios. 

 
The estimated loan loss allocation for all loan segments is then adjusted for management’s estimate of probable losses for several 

environmental factors. The allocation for environmental factors is particularly subjective and does not lend itself to exact 
mathematical calculation.  This amount represents estimated probable inherent credit losses which exist, but have not yet been 
identified, as of the balance sheet date, and is based upon quarterly trend assessments in delinquent and nonaccrual loans, 
unanticipated charge-offs, credit concentration changes, prevailing economic conditions, changes in lending personnel experience, 
changes in lending policies or procedures and other influencing factors.  These environmental factors are considered for each of the 
five loan segments, and the allowance allocation, as determined by the processes noted above for each segment, is increased or 
decreased based on the incremental assessment of these various environmental factors.  The environmental factors accounted for 
approximately 18.6% of the allocated allowance for loan losses under ASC 450-20 at December 31, 2012 compared to 8.8% at 
December 31, 2011.   

 
The ASC 450-20 portion of the allowance also includes an unallocated component.  We believe that the unallocated amount is 

warranted for inherent factors that cannot be practically assigned to individual loan categories, such as the imprecision in the overall 
loss allocation measurement process, the volatility of the local economies in the markets we serve and imprecision in our credit risk 
ratings process. 

 
ASC 310-10-35, Receivables — The ASC 310-10-35 component of the allowance for loan loss is the allowance for impaired 

loans and troubled debt restructurings.  Generally, loans with an identified weakness and principal balance of $250,000 or more are 
subject to an individual determination of the amount of impairment that exists for a particular loan. The amount of the impairment is 
measured based on the present value of expected payments using the loan’s original effective rate as the discount rate, the loan’s 
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. If the recorded investment in the impaired 
loan exceeds the measure of fair value, a specific valuation allowance is established as a component of the allowance for loan losses 
or, in the case of collateral dependent loans or any loan with a confirming event, the excess is charged off.   Changes to the valuation 
allowance are recorded as a component of the provision for loan losses.  Any subsequent adjustments to present value calculations for 
impaired loan valuations as a result of the passage of time, such as changes in the anticipated payback period for repayment, are 
recorded as a component of the provision for loan losses.   

 
For impaired loans less than $250,000, Pinnacle Financial assigns a valuation allowance to these loans utilizing an allocation rate 

equal to the allocation rate calculated for loans of a similar type greater than $250,000.  In addition, Pinnacle Financial reviews 
impaired collateral dependent loans less than $250,000 to determine if any amounts should be charged-off pursuant to regulatory 
requirements.  At December 31, 2012, the principal balance of these small impaired loans was $5.0 million, which represented 9.9% 
of all impaired loans.  At December 31, 2011, the principal balance of these small impaired loans was $10.3 million, which 
represented 14.3% of all impaired loans.   

 
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements —  In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued 

Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure 
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (Topic 820)-Fair Value Measurement (ASU 2011-04), 
to provide a consistent definition of fair value and ensure that the fair value measurement and disclosure requirements are similar 
between U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair value measurement 
principles and enhances the disclosure requirements particularly for level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2011-04 was effective for 
Pinnacle Financial during the first quarter of fiscal 2012 and was applied prospectively.  

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income — Presentation of Comprehensive Income. This ASU 
eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of stockholders’ equity. 
Rather, it gives an entity the choice to present the components of net income and other comprehensive income in either a single 
continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements. The components of comprehensive income and timing of 
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reclassification of an item to net income do not change with this update. ASU 2011-05 requires retrospective application and is 
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Pinnacle Financial adopted this ASU in the first quarter 
of 2012 and has presented a separate Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.  

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, regarding testing goodwill for 
impairment. The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more 
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity does a qualitative assessment and 
determines that this is the case, or if a qualitative assessment is not performed, it is required to perform a two step goodwill 
impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for 
that reporting unit (if any). Based on a qualitative assessment, if an entity determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is more than 
its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. The new guidance was adopted by Pinnacle Financial 
beginning January 1, 2012 and was used in its annual assessment as of September 30, 2012. The results of the qualitative assessment 
indicated that the fair value of Pinnacle Financial’s reporting unit was more than its carrying value, and accordingly, the two-step 
goodwill impairment test was not performed. 
 

Transfers of Financial Assets — Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
surrendered or in the case of a loan participation, a portion of the asset has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed 
to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from Pinnacle Financial, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of 
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) Pinnacle Financial 
does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before maturity.  
 

Premises and Equipment and Leaseholds — Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the expected lease terms 
for leasehold improvements, whichever is shorter. Useful lives for all premises and equipment range between three and thirty years.  

 
Pinnacle Bank is the lessee with respect to several office locations.  All such leases are being accounted for as operating leases 

within the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  Several of these leases include rent escalation clauses.  Pinnacle Bank 
expenses the costs associated with these escalating payments over the life of the expected lease term using the straight-line method.  
At December 31, 2012, the deferred liability associated with these escalating rentals was approximately $2,015,000 and is included in 
other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 

Other Investments — Pinnacle Financial is required to maintain certain minimum levels of equity investments with certain 
regulatory and other entities in which Pinnacle Bank has outstanding borrowings (Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati). At 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the cost of these investments was $14,176,000 and $32,861,000, respectively.  Pinnacle Financial 
determined that cost approximates the fair value of these investments.  Additionally, Pinnacle Financial has recorded certain 
investments in other entities, at fair value, of $4,214,000 and $3,400,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  During 2012 
and 2011, Pinnacle Financial recorded losses of $70,000 and gains of $314,000, respectively, due to changes in the fair value of these 
investments.  As more fully described in footnote 10, Pinnacle Financial has an investment in four Trusts valued at $2,476,000 as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011. The Trusts were established to issue subordinated debentures. Also, as part of our compliance with the 
Community Reinvestment Act, we had investments in low income housing entities totaling $6,096,000 and $5,917,000, net, as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These investments are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in other 
investments. 

 
Other Real Estate Owned — Other real estate owned (OREO) represents real estate foreclosed upon or acquired by deed in lieu of 

foreclosure by Pinnacle Bank through loan defaults by customers.  Substantially all of these amounts relate to lots, homes and 
residential development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of construction for which Pinnacle Financial 
believes it has adequate collateral.  Upon its acquisition by Pinnacle Bank, the property is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value, 
based on appraised value, less selling costs estimated as of the date acquired. The difference from the loan balance is recognized as a 
charge-off through the allowance for loan losses.  Additional OREO losses for subsequent downward valuation adjustments are 
determined on a specific property basis and are included as a component of noninterest expense.  Net gains or losses realized at the 
time of disposal are reflected in noninterest income or noninterest expense, as applicable.   
 

Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 is $26,793,000 of OREO with related property-
specific valuation allowances of $8,213,000. At December 31, 2011, OREO totaled $52,711,000 with related property-specific 
valuation allowances of $12,997,000.  During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Pinnacle Financial incurred 
$11,544,000, $17,432,000, and $29,210,000, respectively, of foreclosed real estate expense, of which $9,470,000, $12,806,000, and 
$25,732,000 were realized losses on dispositions and holding losses on valuations of OREO properties during 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.   
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Other Assets — Included in other assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is approximately $1,336,000 and $1,318,000, 

respectively, of computer software related assets, net of amortization. This software supports Pinnacle Financial’s primary data 
systems and relates to amounts paid to vendors for installation and development of such systems. These amounts are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over periods of three to seven years. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, Pinnacle Financial’s 
amortization expense was approximately $901,000, $818,000, and $754,000, respectively. Software maintenance fees are capitalized 
in other assets and amortized over the term of the maintenance agreement.  

 
Pinnacle Bank is the owner and beneficiary of various life insurance policies on certain key executives and certain directors, 

including policies that were acquired in its merger with Cavalry.   Collectively, these policies are reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets at their respective cash surrender values.  At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the aggregate cash surrender 
value of these policies, which is reflected in other assets, was $49,802,000 and $48,883,000, respectively. Noninterest income related 
to these policies was $919,000, $1,159,000, and $913,000, during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.   

 
Also included in other assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is $468,000 and $498,000, respectively, which is related to loan 

participations which have been sold to correspondent banks prior to 2010.  These amounts represent the present value, net of 
amortization, of the future net cash flows retained by Pinnacle Financial which is referred to as the loan participation interest rate 
spread.  These amounts are amortized against net interest income over the life of the loan.  Amortization of these amounts was 
$30,000, $68,000, and $91,000, for each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. 

 
In November 2009, the FDIC issued a rule that required all insured depository institutions, with limited exceptions, to prepay 

their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2012.  At December 31, 
2012, Pinnacle Financial has approximately $4.1 million in pre-paid deposit insurance that is included in other assets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet that will be applied to future FDIC assessment periods.    

 
Derivative Instruments — In accordance with ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging, all derivative instruments are recorded on 

the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at their respective fair values.  The accounting for changes in fair value (i.e., gains or 
losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and if so, 
on the reason for holding it.  If the derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative 
instrument are recognized in earnings in the period of change.  None of the derivatives utilized by Pinnacle Financial have been 
designated as a hedge. 

 
Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase — Pinnacle Financial routinely sells securities to certain treasury management 

customers and then repurchases these securities the next day.  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected as a 
secured borrowing in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at the amount of cash received in connection with each 
transaction. 
 

Investment Services and Trust Fees — Investment services and trust fees are recognized when earned.  As of December 31, 2012 
and 2011, Pinnacle Financial had accumulated approximately $1.24 billion and $1.06 billion, respectively, in brokerage assets under 
management.  Additionally, the trust department had accumulated approximately $819 million and $633 million at December 31, 2012 
and 2011, respectively, in trust assets under management. 

 
Insurance Sales Commissions — Insurance sales commissions are recognized as of the effective date of the policy, which is 

underwritten by a third-party insurance company, when the premium due under the policy can be reasonably estimated and when the 
premium is billable to the client, less a provision for commission refunds in the event of policy cancellation prior to termination date. 

 
Advertising — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses are included as a component of marketing and 

other business development and totaled $447,000, $339,000, and $259,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, 
respectively.   

 
Income Taxes — ASC 740, Income Taxes, defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial 

statements as “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing authority.  This section also provides guidance on the 
derecognition, measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties, and includes 
guidance concerning accounting for income tax uncertainties in interim periods. As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had no 
unrecognized tax benefits related to Federal or State income tax matters and does not anticipate any material increase or decrease in 
unrecognized tax benefits relative to any tax positions taken prior to December 31, 2012.  
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between carrying amounts 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates.  The net deferred tax asset is reflected as a component of other 
assets on the consolidated balance sheet. A valuation allowance is required for deferred tax assets if, based on available evidence, it is 
more likely than not that all or some portion of the asset may not be realized due to the inability to generate sufficient taxable income 
in the period and/or of the character necessary to utilize the benefit of the deferred tax asset.    

 
Income tax expense or benefit for the year is allocated among continuing operations and other comprehensive income (loss), as 

applicable. The amount allocated to continuing operations is the income tax effect of the pretax income or loss from continuing 
operations that occurred during the year, plus or minus income tax effects of (a) changes in certain circumstances that cause a change 
in judgment about the realization of deferred tax assets in future years, (b) changes in income tax laws or rates, and (c) changes in 
income tax status, subject to certain exceptions.  The amount allocated to other comprehensive income (loss) is related solely to 
changes in the valuation allowance on items that are normally accounted for in other comprehensive income (loss) such as unrealized 
gains or losses on available-for-sale securities.  

 
Pinnacle Financial and its subsidiaries file consolidated U.S. Federal and State of Tennessee income tax returns. Each entity 

provides for income taxes based on its contribution to income or loss of the consolidated group. Pinnacle Financial has a Real Estate 
Investment Trust subsidiary that files a separate federal tax return, but its income is included in the consolidated group’s return as 
required by the federal tax laws. The IRS concluded its examination of the 2008, 2009 and 2010 federal tax returns during the second 
quarter of 2011.    Pinnacle Financial remains open to audit under the statute of limitations by the IRS for the years ended December 
31, 2008 through 2012 and the state of Tennessee for the years ended December 31, 2009 through 2012.   
 

As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial has accrued no interest and no penalties related to uncertain tax positions. Pinnacle 
Financial’s policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. 
 

Income (Loss) Per Common Share — Basic net income (loss) per share available to common stockholders (EPS) is computed by 
dividing net income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding for the period.  
Weighted average common shares outstanding for the period does not include unearned restricted shares that have been issued to 
associates and outside directors.  Diluted EPS reflects the dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common 
stock were exercised or converted.  The difference between basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding is attributable to 
common stock options, common stock appreciation rights, warrants, and restricted stock awards. The dilutive effect of outstanding 
options, common stock appreciation rights, warrants, and restricted stock awards with is reflected in diluted EPS by application of the 
treasury stock method. 

 
As of December 31, 2012, there were approximately 1,311,000 stock options and 7,300 stock appreciation rights outstanding to 

purchase common shares.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, Pinnacle Financial had 267,445 outstanding warrants to purchase 
common shares.  These warrants were issued in conjunction with Pinnacle Financial’s participation in the U.S. Treasury’s Capital 
Purchase Program (CPP) as more fully discussed in Note 3. During 2012, these warrants were repurchased.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, approximately 588,000 and 640,000 of dilutive stock options, restricted stock awards with 
time-based criteria, stock appreciation rights and warrants were included in the diluted earnings per share calculation.  For the year 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were common stock options and warrants of 730,300 and 1,208,332, respectively 
outstanding which were considered anti-dilutive and thus have not been considered in the fully-diluted share calculations below.  Due 
to the net loss available to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2010, no potentially dilutive shares related to these 
stock options, stock appreciation rights, and warrants were included in the loss per share calculations, as including such shares would 
have an anti-dilutive effect on loss per share.    
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The following is a summary of the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation for each of the years in the three-year period 

ended December 31, 2012: 
 

 2012 2011 2010 
Basic earnings per share calculation:    

Numerator - Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 38,069,841 $   37,072,728 $   (30,442,514) 
    
Denominator – Weighted average common shares outstanding 33,899,667 33,420,015 32,789,871 

Basic net income (loss) per common share available to common stockholders $             1.12 $              1.11 $              (0.93) 
    
Diluted earnings per share calculation:    

Numerator - Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 38,069,841 $   37,072,728 $   (30,442,514) 
    

Denominator – Weighted average common shares outstanding 33,899,667 33,420,015 32,789,871 
Dilutive shares contingently issuable 588,141 640,213 - 
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 34,487,808 34,060,228 32,789,871 
Diluted net income (loss) per common share available to common stockholders $            1.10 $              1.09 $              (0.93) 

 
Stock-Based Compensation — Stock-based compensation expense recognized is based on the fair value of the portion of stock-

based payment awards that are ultimately expected to vest, reduced for estimated forfeitures. ASC 718-20 Compensation – Stock 
Compensation Awards Classified as Equity requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in 
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.  Service based awards with multiple vesting periods are expensed 
over the entire requisite period as if the award were a single award.   For awards with performance vesting criteria, anticipated 
performance is projected to determine the number of awards expected to vest, and the corresponding aggregate expense is adjusted to 
reflect the elapsed portion of the performance period. 

  
Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) consists of the total of all components of comprehensive income 

(loss) including net income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income (loss) but excluded from net income (loss). Currently, 
Pinnacle Financial’s other comprehensive income (loss) consists solely of unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, 
net of deferred tax expense (benefit). 

 
Fair Value Measurement — ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a 

framework for measuring fair value in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements.  ASC 820 applies only to fair-value measurements that are already required or permitted by other accounting standards 
and is expected to increase the consistency of those measurements.  The definition of fair value focuses on the exit price, i.e., the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, not the entry price, (i.e., the price that would be paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability at the 
measurement date).  The statement emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement; not an entity-specific measurement.  
Therefore, the fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing 
the asset or liability.   

 
Pinnacle Financial has an established process for determining fair values. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where 

available. If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models or processes that use 
primarily market-based or independently-sourced market data, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and third party 
information such as prices of similar assets of liabilities. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are 
recorded at fair value. Furthermore, while Pinnacle Financial believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other 
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments 
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. 

 
Subsequent Events — ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, as amended by ASU No. 2010-09, establishes general standards of 

accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued.  Pinnacle 
Financial evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 31, 2012, through the date of the issued financial 
statements.  During this period there were no material recognizable subsequent events that required recognition or disclosures in the 
December 31, 2012 financial statements.   
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Note 2.  Acquisitions and Intangibles 

 
Acquisition – Mid-America Bancshares, Inc.  On November 30, 2007, we consummated a merger with Mid-America Bancshares, 

Inc. (Mid-America), a two-bank holding company located in Nashville, Tennessee. Pinnacle Financial recognized $9.4 million as a 
core deposit intangible.  This identified intangible is being amortized over ten years using an accelerated method which anticipates the 
life of the underlying deposits to which the intangible is attributable.  For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 
approximately $987,000, $1,026,000, and $1,062,000, respectively, was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of 
operations as amortization of intangibles.  Amortization expense associated with this identified intangible will approximate $700,000 
to $1.2 million per year for the next five years. 

 
Acquisition – Cavalry Bancorp, Inc.  On March 15, 2006, Pinnacle Financial consummated its merger with Cavalry, a one-bank 

holding company located in Murfreesboro, Tennessee. Pinnacle Financial recognized $13.2 million as a core deposit intangible.  This 
identified intangible is being amortized over seven years using an accelerated method which anticipates the life of the underlying 
deposits to which the intangible is attributable.  For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 approximately $1.6 million, 
$1.7 million, and $1.8 million, respectively, was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as 
amortization of intangibles.  Amortization expense associated with this identified intangible will approximate $273,000 during fiscal 
2013. 

 
Acquisition - Beach & Gentry. During the third quarter of 2008, Pinnacle Bank acquired Murfreesboro, Tennessee based Beach & 

Gentry Insurance LLC (Beach & Gentry).  Concurrently, Beach & Gentry merged with Miller & Loughry Insurance & Services Inc., a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pinnacle Bank, also located in Murfreesboro.  In connection with this acquisition, Pinnacle Financial 
recorded a customer list intangible of $1,270,000 which is being amortized over 20 years on an accelerated basis.  Amortization of this 
intangible amounted to $103,000, $109,000, and $115,000, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.   

 
Note 3. Participation in U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program  
 

On December 12, 2008, Pinnacle Financial issued 95,000 shares of preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury (the Treasury) for $95 
million pursuant to the CPP.  For the time the CPP preferred stock was outstanding, the CPP preferred stock was non-voting, other 
than having class voting rights on certain matters, and paid cumulative dividends quarterly at a rate of 5% per annum. Pinnacle 
Financial redeemed the preferred shares issued to the Treasury under the CPP in two transactions.   During the fourth quarter of 2011, 
Pinnacle Financial redeemed 23,750 of the preferred shares in a transaction totaling approximately $23.9 million, including accrued 
but unpaid dividends of $142,000.  During the second quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial completed the redemption of the remaining 
71,250 preferred shares outstanding in a transaction totaling $71.6 million which included accrued but unpaid dividends of $346,000.  
Concurrently, Pinnacle Financial accelerated the accretion of the remaining preferred stock discount of approximately $1.7 million 
during the second quarter of 2012.  

Additionally, Pinnacle Financial issued warrants to purchase 534,910 shares of common stock to the Treasury as a condition to its 
participation in the CPP.  The warrants had an exercise price of $26.64 each, were immediately exercisable and expired 10 years from 
the date of issuance.  On June 16, 2009, Pinnacle Financial completed the sale of 8,855,000 shares of its common stock in a public 
offering, resulting in net proceeds to Pinnacle Financial of approximately $109 million.  As a result, and pursuant to the terms of the 
warrants, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants was reduced by 50%, or 267,455 shares.  During the third 
quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial repurchased all of the remaining outstanding warrants held by the Treasury for $755,000.  

Note 4.  Restricted Cash Balances 
 
 Regulation D of the Federal Reserve Act requires that banks maintain reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank based 
principally on the type and amount of their deposits.  At its option, Pinnacle Financial maintains additional balances to compensate for 
clearing and other services.  For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the average daily balance maintained at the Federal 
Reserve was approximately $107,609,000 and $112,863,000, respectively. 
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Note 5.  Securities  
 

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are 
summarized as follows (in thousands): 

 

December 31, 2012: Amortized Cost 

Gross  
Unrealized  

Gains 

Gross  
Unrealized 

Losses 
Fair 

Value 
Securities available-for-sale:     

U.S. Government agency securities $ 110,817 $         49  $         414 $  110,452 
Mortgage-backed securities 360,504 15,770 623 375,651 
State and municipal securities 177,364 14,489 126 191,727 
Agency-backed securities 17,361 - 9 17,352 
Corporate notes 9,881 1,519 4 11,396 
 $ 675,927 $ 31,827 $      1,176 $  706,578 

Securities held-to-maturity:     
State and municipal securities 575 8 - 583 
 $        575 $           8 $              -           $          583 

December 31, 2011:     
Securities available-for-sale:     

U.S. Government agency securities $   41,978 $       344 $             9 $      42,313 
Mortgage-backed securities 623,684 22,254 371 645,567 
State and municipal securities 182,206 13,768 22 195,952 
Corporate notes 9,687 1,443 - 11,130 
 $ 857,555 $  37,809 $         402 $    894,962 

Securities held-to-maturity:     
State and municipal securities 2,330 39 - 2,369 
 $     2,330 $         39 $              -           $        2,369 

 
At December 31, 2012, approximately $612.1 million of Pinnacle Financial’s investment portfolio was pledged to secure public 

funds and other deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. 
 
The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities as of December 31, 2012 by contractual maturity are shown below. Actual 

maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities since the mortgages underlying the securities may be 
called or prepaid with or without penalty. Therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categories in the following 
summary (in thousands): 

 
 Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity 

 
Amortized 

 Cost 
Fair 

Value 
Amortized 

Cost 
Fair 

Value 
Due in one year or less $      4,480 $     4,524 $  200 $  201 
Due in one year to five years 34,791 36,140 375 382 
Due in five years to ten years 125,863 133,944 - - 
Due after ten years 132,928 138,967 - - 
Mortgage-backed securities 360,504 375,651 - - 
Asset-backed securities 17,361 17,352 - - 
 $ 675,927 $ 706,578 $  575 $  583 
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 At December 31, 2012 and 2011, included in securities were the following investments with unrealized losses.  The information 
below classifies these investments according to the term of the unrealized loss of less than twelve months or twelve months or longer 
(in thousands): 

 

 

Investments with an 
Unrealized Loss of  
less than 12 months 

Investments with an  
Unrealized Loss of  

12 months or longer 

Total Investments  
with an  

Unrealized Loss 

 Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses 
At December 31, 2012:       
       
U.S. government agency securities $     78,899 $   414 $           - $           - $     78,899 $   414 
Mortgage-backed securities 40,988 623 - - 40,988 623 
State and municipal securities 5,179 126 - - 5,179 126 
Agency-backed securities 17,353 9   17,353 9 
Corporate notes 162 4 - - 162 4 
Total temporarily-impaired securities $   142,581 $1,176     $           - $           - $   142,581 $1,176     
       
At December 31, 2011:       
       
U.S. government agency securities $     5,452 $        9 $           - $           - $      5,452 $          9 
Mortgage-backed securities 41,598 341 17,826 30 59,424 371 
State and municipal securities 1,967 17 1,205 5 3,172 22 
Corporate notes - - - - - - 
Total temporarily-impaired securities $   49,017 $    367 $ 19,031 $        35 $    68,048 $      402 

 
The applicable date for determining when securities are in an unrealized loss position is December 31, 2012 and 2011.  As such, it 

is possible that a security had a market value less than its amortized cost on other days during the twelve-month period ended 
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, but is not in the “Investments with an Unrealized Loss of less than 12 months” category 
above.   

As shown in the table above, at December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had unrealized losses of $1.2 million on $142.6 million of 
available-for-sale securities. The unrealized losses associated with these investment securities are primarily driven by changes in 
interest rates and are not due to the credit quality of the securities.  These securities will continue to be monitored as a part of our 
ongoing impairment analysis, but are expected to perform even if the rating agencies reduce the credit rating of the bond issuers.  
Management evaluates the financial performance of the issuers on a quarterly basis to determine if it is probable that the issuers can 
make all contractual principal and interest payments.  Because Pinnacle Financial currently does not intend to sell these securities and 
it is not more-likely-than-not that Pinnacle Financial will be required to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized cost 
bases, which may be maturity, Pinnacle Financial does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at 
December 31, 2012.   

Periodically, available-for-sale securities may be sold or the composition of the portfolio realigned to improve yields, quality or 
marketability, or to implement changes in investment or asset/liability strategy, including maintaining collateral requirements, raising 
funds for liquidity purposes and in the event of a bank merger where certain investment holdings acquired via the merger are outside 
of the firm’s investment policy. Additionally, if an available-for-sale security loses its investment grade, tax-exempt status, the 
underlying credit support is terminated or collection otherwise becomes uncertain based on factors known to management, Pinnacle 
Financial will consider selling the security, but will review each security on a case-by-case basis as it becomes known. The table 
below shows the fair value of securities that have been sold during 2012 and the amount of gain or loss recognized on those securities 
(in thousands):  

For the quarter ended,  
Fair Value of 
securities sold 

Gain 
recognized 

Loss 
recognized Net 

Other-than-
temporary 

impairment 

(OTTI) 

Gain(loss) 
on the sale 

of securities, 
net of OTTI 

March 31, 2012 $   14,360(1) $ 148 $ - $ 148 $ 34(2) $ 114 
June 30, 2012         18,273(3)  99  -  99  -  99 

September 30, 2012  2,791(4)  7  -  7  57(4)  (50) 
December 31, 2012  153,166(5)  2,068  -  2,068  80(6)  1,988 

  
(1) During the first quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial sold these securities due to their relatively short terms until maturity and a weighted average coupon of 

0.50%.  
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(2) During the first quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial determined four mortgage-backed securities were OTTI because of management’s intent to sell them in 
the second quarter of 2012. The decision to sell was based on their relative underperformance compared to expectations.   

(3) During the second quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial sold the four securities previously identified as OTTI in the first quarter. Additionally, two securities 
issued by municipalities in the state of California, which management believed could be adversely affected by state budgetary issues, were also sold during 
the second quarter.  

(4) During the third quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial determined one security was OTTI due to its distinct underperformance relative to the interest rate 
environment. Pinnacle Financial recognized approximately $57,000 in OTTI and the bond was subsequently sold for a gain of approximately $7,000. 

(5) During the fourth quarter of 2012, Pinnacle Financial decided to sell thirty bonds based on their relative underperformance compared to expectations.  
(6) During the fourth quarter, Pinnacle Financial determined four mortgage-backed securities were OTTI because of management’s intent to sell them in the 

fourth quarter. The decision to sell was based on their relative underperformance compared to expectations. 
 

The carrying values of Pinnacle Financial’s investment securities could decline in the future if the financial condition of issuers 
deteriorates and management determines it is probable that Pinnacle Financial will not recover the entire amortized cost bases of the 
securities.  As a result, there is a risk that other-than-temporary impairment charges may occur in the future. 
Note 6.  Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses 
 

For financial reporting purposes, Pinnacle Financial classifies its loan portfolio based on the underlying collateral utilized to 
secure each loan. These classifications are consistent with those utilized in the Quarterly Report of Condition and Income filed with 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).   

 
The information presented herein for December 31, 2011, has been reclassified from the presentation in our Annual Report on 

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 to conform to the December 31, 2012 presentation in that troubled debt 
restructurings previously included in accruing loans are now presented separately.  

 
Commercial loans receive risk ratings by the assigned financial advisor subject to validation by Pinnacle Financial’s independent 

loan review department.  Risk ratings are categorized as pass, special mention, substandard, substandard-impaired or doubtful-
impaired.  Pinnacle Financial believes that its categories follow those outlined by Pinnacle Bank’s primary regulators.  At December 
31, 2012, approximately 77% of our loan portfolio was analyzed as a commercial loan type with a specifically assigned risk rating in 
the allowance for loan loss assessment.  Consumer loans and small business loans are generally not assigned an individual risk rating 
but are evaluated as either accrual or nonaccrual based on the performance of the individual loans.  However, certain consumer real 
estate-mortgage loans and certain consumer and other loans receive a specific risk rating due to the loan proceeds being used for 
commercial purposes even though the collateral may be of a consumer loan nature.   

 
 Risk ratings are subject to continual review by the loan officer.  At least annually, our credit policy requires that every risk rated 
loan of $500,000 or more be subject to a formal credit risk review process. Each loan grade is also subject to review by our 
independent loan review department.  Currently, our independent loan review department targets reviews a significant portion of our 
risk rated portfolio annually.  Included in the coverage are independent loan reviews of loans in targeted higher-risk portfolio 
segments such as certain commercial and industrial loans, land loans and/or loan types in certain geographies.   

 
The following table presents our loan balances by primary loan classification and the amount within each risk rating category.  

Pass rated loans include all credits other than those included in special mention, substandard, substandard-nonaccrual and doubtful-
nonaccrual which are defined as follows:   

 
• Special mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention.  If left uncorrected, these potential 

weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset or in Pinnacle Financial’s credit position at some 
future date.   

• Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral 
pledged, if any.  Assets so classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize collection of the debt.  
Substandard loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that Pinnacle Financial will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not 
corrected.  

• Substandard-nonaccrual loans are substandard loans that have been placed on nonaccrual status.  
• Doubtful-nonaccrual loans have all the characteristics of substandard-nonaccrual loans with the added characteristic that the 

weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable 
and improbable.   
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The following table outlines the amount of each loan classification categorized into each risk rating category as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 

(in thousands):   
 

 

  
(1) Potential problem loans represent those loans with a well-defined weakness and where information about possible credit problems of borrowers has caused 

management to have doubts about the borrower’s ability to comply with present repayment terms.  This definition is believed to be substantially consistent 
with the standards established by Pinnacle Bank’s primary regulators for loans classified as substandard, excluding the impact of substandard nonperforming 
loans and substandard troubled debt restructurings. Potential problem loans, which are not included in nonperforming assets, amounted to approximately 
$105.4 million at December 31, 2012, compared to $135.4 million at December 31, 2011.   

(2) Troubled debt restructurings are presented as an impaired loan; however, they continue to accrue interest at contractual rates.  
 

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, all loans classified as nonaccrual were deemed to be impaired.  The principal 
balances of these nonaccrual loans amounted to $22.8 million and $47.9 million at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, 
respectively, and are included in the table above.  For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, the average balance of nonaccrual 
loans was $38.4 million as compared to $60.8 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011.  At the date such loans were 
placed on nonaccrual status, Pinnacle Financial reversed all previously accrued interest income against current year earnings.  Had 
these nonaccruing loans been on accruing status, interest income would have been higher by $1.4 million, $5.0 million and $7.1 
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  

December 31, 2012 

Commercial 
real estate - 
mortgage 

Consumer 
real estate - 
mortgage 

Construction 
and land 

development 
Commercial 

and industrial 
Consumer 
and other 

 

Total 
Accruing loans:             
        Pass $ 1,093,628 $ 649,571 $ 259,878 $ 1,390,207 $ 93,712 $ 3,486,996 
        Special Mention  12,670  4,242  29,472  23,133  -  69,517 
        Substandard (1)  42,343  13,896  19,622  29,513  -  105,374 
        Total   1,148,641  667,709  308,972  1,442,853  93,712  3,661,887 
Impaired loans:             
        Nonperforming loans             
                Substandard-nonaccrual  9,290  5,877  4,509  3,035  79  22,790 
                Doubtful-nonaccrual  1  29  -  3  -  33 
        Total nonperforming loans  9,291  5,906  4,509  3,038  79  22,823 
        Troubled debt restructurings(2)             
                Pass  4,705  3,623  71  502  119  9,020 
                Special Mention  -  -  -  -  -  - 
                Substandard  15,559  2,688  -  185  -  18,432 
         Total troubled debt restructurings  20,264  6,311  71  687  119  27,452 
Total impaired loans  29,555  12,217  4,580  3,725  198  50,275 
Total loans $ 1,178,196 $ 679,926 $ 313,552 $ 1,446,578 $ 93,910 $ 3,712,162 

December 31, 2011 

Commercial real 
estate - 

mortgage 

Consumer 
real estate - 
mortgage 

Construction 
and land 

development 
Commercial 

and industrial 
Consumer 
and other 

 

Total 
Accruing loans:             
        Pass $ 994,059 $ 643,924 $ 204,696 $ 1,098,898 $ 63,218 $ 3,004,795 
        Special Mention  19,403  15,225  27,553  17,029  649  79,859 
        Substandard (1)  72,160  18,235  28,957  16,073  1  135,426 
        Total  1,085,622  677,384  261,206  1,132,000  63,868  3,220,080 
Impaired loans:             
        Nonperforming loans             
                Substandard-nonaccrual  9,962  11,990  12,965  11,194  551  46,662 
                Doubtful-nonaccrual  -  497  -  696  -  1,193 
        Total nonperforming loans  9,962  12,487  12,965  11,890  551  47,855 
        Troubled debt restructurings(2)             
                Pass  193  3,631  77  949  242  5,092 
                Special Mention  -  -  -  -  -  - 
                Substandard  15,185  2,243  -  896  -  18,324 
         Total troubled debt restructurings  15,378  5,874  77  1,845  242  23,416 
Total impaired loans  25,340  18,361  13,042  13,735  793  71,271 
Total loans $ 1,110,962 $ 695,745 $ 274,248 $ 1,145,735 $ 64,661 $ 3,291,351 
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The following tables detail the recorded investment, unpaid principal balance and related allowance and average recorded 

investment of our nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 by loan classification and the amount of interest income 
recognized on a cash basis throughout the quarter and year-to-date period then ended, respectively, on these loans that remain on the 
balance sheets (in thousands):  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 At December 31, 2012 
 For the year ended  

December 31, 2012 

 
Recorded 

investment 

Unpaid 
principal 
balance 

Related 
allowance(1)  

 Average 
recorded 

investment 

Interest 
income 

recognized 
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 8,740 $ 11,187 $ -  $ 11,194 $ - 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  3,641  6,394  -   6,394  - 
    Construction and land development  1,546  2,062  -   2,063  - 
    Commercial and industrial  1,547  1,761  -   1,896  - 
    Consumer and other  -  -  -   -  - 

Total  $ 15,474 $ 21,404 $ -  $ 21,547 $ - 
            
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 551 $ 1,841 $ 154  $ 3,228 $ - 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  2,265  4,473  573   5,828  - 
    Construction and land development  2,963  4,701  201   5,102  - 
    Commercial and industrial  1,491  2,459  814   2,528  - 
    Consumer and other  79  179  22   180  - 

Total  $ 7,349 $ 13,653 $ 1,764  $ 16,866 $ - 
            

Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 22,823 $ 35,057 $ 1,764  $ 38,413 $ - 

 At December 31, 2011 

 For the year ended  
December 31, 2011 

 
Recorded 

investment 

Unpaid 
principal 
balance 

Related 
allowance(1) 

 Average 
recorded 

investment 

Interest 
income 

recognized 
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 9,345 $ 12,099 $ -  $ 12,450 $ 5 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  9,248  9,961  -   10,140  - 
    Construction and land development  6,917  9,093  -   9,288  37 
    Commercial and industrial  3,036  3,546  -   3,689  - 
    Consumer and other  -  -  -   -  - 

Total  $ 28,546 $ 34,699 $ -  $ 35,567 $ 42 
            
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 617 $ 661 $ 57  $ 792 $ - 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  3,239  4,902  301   5,005  - 
    Construction and land development  6,048  6,822  1,264   7,074  - 
    Commercial and industrial  8,854  11,041  2,767   11,497  - 
    Consumer and other  551  856  51   857  - 

Total  $ 19,309 $ 24,282 $ 4,440  $ 25,225 $ - 
            

Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 47,855 $ 58,981 $ 4,440  $ 60,792 $ 42 



2012 Annual Report 

Pinnacle Financial Partners 89

CoNSolIDaTeD FINaNCIal STaTeMeNTS
 

 

 
 

  
 
 
 

(1) Collateral dependent loans are typically charged-off to their net realizable value pursuant to requirements of our primary regulators and no specific 
allowance is carried related to those loans.  

 
Pinnacle Financial’s policy is that once a loan is placed on nonaccrual status each subsequent payment is reviewed on a case-by-

case basis to determine if the payment should be applied to interest or principal pursuant to regulatory guidelines. Pinnacle Financial 
recognized no interest income from cash payments received on nonaccrual loans during the year ended December 31, 2012 and 
$42,000 and $1.3 million of interest income during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

 
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were $27.5 million and $23.4 million, respectively, of troubled debt restructurings that 

were performing as of their restructure date and which are accruing interest. These troubled debt restructurings are considered 
impaired loans pursuant to U.S. GAAP. Troubled commercial loans are restructured by specialists within Pinnacle Bank’s Special 
Assets Group, and all restructurings are approved by committees and credit officers separate and apart from the normal loan approval 
process.  These specialists are charged with reducing Pinnacle Financial’s overall risk and exposure to loss in the event of a 
restructuring by obtaining some or all of the following:  improved documentation, additional guaranties, increase in curtailments, 
reduction in collateral release terms, additional collateral or other similar strategies.   
 

The following table outlines the amount of each troubled debt restructuring by loan classification made during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):   

 
 December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011 
 

Number 
of 

contracts 

Pre 
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

Post 
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment, 

net of related 
allowance  

Number 
of 

contracts 

Pre 
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

Post 
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment, 

net of related 
allowance 

Commercial real estate – mortgage 4 $ 11,539 $ 10,022  9 $ 15,378 $ 12,619 
Consumer real estate – mortgage 4  834  718  16  5,874  5,358 
Construction and land development -  -  -  2  77  65 
Commercial and industrial -  -  -  26  1,845  1,563 
Consumer and other 1  36  31  4  242  205 
 9 $ 12,409 $ 10,771  57 $ 23,416 $ 19,810 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, two commercial real estate loans totaling $3.2 million, eight commercial and 

industrial loans totaling $486,000 and two consumer loans totaling $153,000 which were previously classified as troubled debt 
restructurings subsequently defaulted.  For the year ended December 31, 2011, Pinnacle Financial did not have any troubled debt 
restructurings that subsequently defaulted, within twelve months of the restructuring. A default is defined as an occurrence which 
violates the terms of the receivable’s contract. 

 At December 31, 2010 

 For the year ended  
December 31, 2010 

 
Recorded 

investment 

Unpaid 
principal 
balance 

Related 
allowance(1) 

 Average 
recorded 

investment 

Interest 
income 

recognized 
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 10,585 $ 12,468 $ -  $ 12,478 $ 278 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  4,063  5,041  -   5,041  83 
    Construction and land development  31,106  35,525  -   35,631  188 
    Commercial and industrial  2,865  5,501  -   5,501  9 
    Consumer and other  272  368  -   368  - 

Total  $ 48,891 $ 58,903 $ -  $ 59,019 $ 558 
            
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:            
    Commercial real estate – mortgage $ 1,957 $ 2,328 $ 176  $ 2,328 $ 55 
    Consumer real estate – mortgage  4,972  5,869  3,998   5,875  143 
    Construction and land development  12,408  12,619  568   12,623  234 
    Commercial and industrial  11,875  13,005  3,825   12,996  324 
    Consumer and other  760  846  390   846  17 

Total  $ 31,972 $ 34,667 $ 8,957  $ 34,668 $ 773 
            

Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 80,863 $ 93,570 $ 8,957  $ 93,687 $ 1,331 



2012 Annual Report 

90 Pinnacle Financial Partners 

CoNSolIDaTeD FINaNCIal STaTeMeNTS

 

 

 
In addition to the loan metrics above, Pinnacle Financial analyzes its commercial loan portfolio to determine if a concentration of 

credit risk exists to any industries.  Pinnacle Financial utilizes broadly accepted industry classification systems in order to classify 
borrowers into various industry classifications.  Pinnacle Financial has a credit exposure (loans outstanding plus unfunded lines of 
credit) exceeding 25% of Pinnacle Bank’s total risk-based capital to borrowers in the following industries at December 31, 2012 with 
the comparative exposures for December 31, 2011 (in thousands):   

 
 At December 31, 2012  

 
Outstanding 

Principal Balances 
Unfunded 

Commitments Total exposure 

Total Exposure 
at December 31, 

2011 
         
Lessors of nonresidential buildings $ 382,238 $ 57,999 $ 440,237 $ 509,003 
Lessors of residential buildings  191,693  24,206  215,899  177,414 
Land subdividers  92,613  15,670  108,283  119,106 
 
 The table below presents past due balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011, by loan classification and segment allocated between 
performing and nonperforming status (in thousands):  
 

December 31, 2012 

30-89 days 
past due and 
performing 

90 days or 
more past 
due and 

performing 

Total past 
due and 

performing Nonperforming(1) 

Current  
and 

performing 
Total  
Loans 

Commercial real estate:             
    Owner-occupied $ 462 $ - $ 462 $ 8,091 $ 585,848 $ 594,401 
    All other  41  -  41  1,200  582,554  583,795 
Consumer real estate – mortgage  3,870  -  3,870  5,906  670,150  679,926 
Construction and land development  3,511  -  3,511  4,509  305,532  313,552 
Commercial and industrial  2,549  -  2,549  3,038  1,440,991  1,446,578 
Consumer and other  444  -  444  79  93,387  93,910 
 $ 10,877 $ - $ 10,877 $ 22,823 $ 3,678,462 $ 3,712,162 
       
December 31, 2011       
Commercial real estate:             
    Owner-occupied $ 2,489 $ - $ 2,489 $ 6,735 $ 572,746 $ 581,970 
    All other  3,260  -  3,260  3,227  522,505  528,992 
Consumer real estate – mortgage  2,589  254  2,843  12,487  680,415  695,745 
Construction and land development  1,572  -  1,572  12,965  259,711  274,248 
Commercial and industrial  648  604  1,252  11,890  1,132,593  1,145,735 
Consumer and other  526  -  526  551  63,584  64,661 
 $ 11,084 $ 858 $ 11,942 $ 47,855 $ 3,231,554 $ 3,291,351 
  

(1) Approximately $9.4 million and $25.5 million of nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are currently performing pursuant to their 
contractual terms.   

 
The following table shows the allowance allocation by loan classification for accruing and nonperforming loans at December 31, 

2012 and 2011 (in thousands):   
 

  Impaired Loans  
 

Accruing Loans Nonaccrual Loans 
Troubled Debt 

Restructurings(1) 
Total Allowance 
for Loan Losses 

 
December 31, 

2012 
December 31, 

2011 
December 31, 

2012 
December 31, 

2011 
December 31, 

2012 
December 31, 

2011 

 
December 31, 

2012 

 
December 31, 

2011 
Commercial real estate –mortgage $ 16,642 $ 20,581 $ 154 $ 57 $ 2,838 $ 2,759 $ 19,634 $ 23,397 
Consumer real estate – mortgage  7,336  9,485  573  301  853  516  8,762  10,302 
Construction and land development  8,953  10,764  201  1,264  10  12  9,164  12,040 
Commercial and industrial  23,829  17,740  814  2,767  95  282  24,738  20,789 
Consumer and other  1,055  1,037  22  51  17  37  1,094  1,125 
Unallocated  -  -  -  -  -  -  6,025  6,322 

 $ 57,815 $ 59,607 $ 1,764 $ 4,440 $ 3,813 $ 3,606 $ 69,417 $ 73,975 
  

(1) Troubled debt restructurings of $27.5 million and $23.4 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are classified as impaired loans pursuant to 
U.S. GAAP; however, these loans continue to accrue interest at contractual rates. 
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 The following table details the changes in the allowance for loan losses from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 to 
December 31, 2012 by loan classification (in thousands): 
 

 

Commercial 
real estate –  

mortgage 

Consumer 
real estate 
– mortgage 

Construction 
and land 

development 

Commercial 
and 

industrial 
Consumer 
and other Unallocated Total 

               
               
Balances, December 31, 2009 $ 22,505 $ 10,725 $ 23,027 $ 26,332 $ 2,456 $ 6,914 $ 91,959 
    Charged-off loans  (9,041)  (6,769)  (27,526)  (23,555)  (652)  -  (67,543) 
    Recovery of previously charged-off loans  343  377  2,618  874  252  -  4,464 
    Provision for loan losses  5,445  5,565  21,003  17,775  (182)  4,089  53,695 
Balances, December 31, 2010 $ 19,252 $ 9,898 $ 19,122 $ 21,426 $ 1,874 $ 11,003 $ 82,575 
    Charged-off loans  (3,044)  (5,076)  (10,157)  (15,360)  (1,213)  -  (34,850) 
    Recovery of previously charged-off loans  116  495  1,530  2,167  144  -  4,452 
    Provision for loan losses  7,073  4,985  1,545  12,556  320  (4,681)  21,798 
Balances, December 31, 2011 $ 23,397 $ 10,302 $ 12,040 $ 20,789 $ 1,125 $ 6,322 $ 73,975 
    Charged-off loans  (4,667)  (6,731)  (2,530)  (4,612)  (1,117)  -  (19,657) 
    Recovery of previously charged-off loans  285  818  1,155   7,175(1)  97  -  9,530 
    Provision for loan losses  619  4,373  (1,501)  1,386  989  (297)  5,569 
Balances, December 31, 2012 $ 19,634 $ 8,762 $ 9,164 $ 24,738 $ 1,094 $ 6,025 $ 69,417 
_________________ 
 (1)

 
Includes the 2012 $5.6 million recovery of a loan previously charged off in 2009.

 

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is assessed at the end of each calendar quarter.  The level of the allowance is based 
upon evaluation of the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, current asset quality trends, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, 
adverse situations that may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay (including the timing of future payment), the estimated value of any 
underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, historical loss experience, industry and peer bank loan 
quality indications and other pertinent factors, including regulatory recommendations.  

 
At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans and other extensions of credit amounting to approximately $8.8 

million to current directors, executive officers, and their related entities, of which $8.1 million had been drawn upon.  At December 
31, 2011, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans and other extensions of credit amounting to approximately $10.8 million to directors, 
executive officers, and their related entities, of which approximately $9.6 million had been drawn upon.  These loans and extensions 
of credit were made on substantially the same terms customary for other persons similarly situated for the type of loan involved.   
None of these loans to directors, executive officers, and their related entities were impaired at December 31, 2012 or 2011.  

 
Residential Lending 
 

At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had approximately $41.2 million of mortgage loans held-for-sale compared to 
approximately $35.4 million at December 31, 2011.  Pinnacle Financial generally has an agreement for the subsequent sale of the 
mortgage loan prior to the loan being closed with the borrower.  Pinnacle Financial sells loans to third-party investors on a loan-by-
loan basis and has not entered into any forward commitments with investors for future bulk loan sales.  All of these loan sales transfer 
servicing rights to the buyer.  During the three years ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial recognized $6.7 million, $4.1 
million and $4.1 million, respectively, in gains on the sale of these loans, net of commissions paid. 

 
These mortgage loans held-for-sale are originated internally and are primarily to borrowers in Pinnacle Bank’s geographic 

markets. These sales are typically on a best efforts basis to investors that follow conventional government sponsored entities (GSE) 
and the Department of Housing and Urban Development/U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (HUD/VA) guidelines. Generally, loans 
sold to the HUD/VA are underwritten by Pinnacle Bank while the majority of the loans sold to other investors are underwritten by the 
purchaser of the loans.  

 
Each purchaser has specific guidelines and criteria for sellers of loans, and the risk of credit loss with regard to the principal 

amount of the loans sold is generally transferred to the purchasers upon sale. While the loans are sold without recourse, the purchase 
agreements require Pinnacle Bank to make certain representations and warranties regarding the existence and sufficiency of file 
documentation and the absence of fraud by borrowers or other third parties such as appraisers in connection with obtaining the loan. If 
it is determined that the loans sold were in breach of these representations or warranties, Pinnacle Bank has obligations to either 
repurchase the loan for the unpaid principal balance and related investor fees or make the purchaser whole for the economic benefits 
of the loan.  
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From inception of Pinnacle Bank’s mortgage department in January 2003 through December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank originated 
and sold approximately 13,000 mortgage loans totaling $2.821 billion to third-party purchasers.  Of the approximately 13,000 
mortgage loans, Pinnacle Bank underwrote approximately 3,300 conventional loans at an 80% or less loan-to-value that were sold to 
other investors and underwrote 2,800 loans that were sold to the HUD/VA.  To date, repurchase activity pursuant to the terms of these 
representations and warranties has been insignificant to Pinnacle Bank. The remaining mortgage loans were underwritten by the 
purchasers of those loans, but funded by Pinnacle Bank until settlement with the purchaser.   

 
Based on information currently available, management believes that it does not have material exposure to losses that may arise 

relating to the representations and warranties that it has made in connection with its mortgage loan sales.  
 

 Due to the current focus on foreclosure practices of financial institutions nationwide, Pinnacle Bank evaluated its foreclosure 
process related to home equity and consumer mortgage loans within its loan portfolio. At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank has 
$679.9 million of home equity and consumer mortgage loans which are secured by first or second liens on residential properties. 
Foreclosure activity in this portfolio has been minimal. Any foreclosures on these loans are handled by designated Pinnacle Bank 
personnel and external legal counsel, as appropriate, following established policies regarding legal and regulatory requirements. 
Pinnacle Bank has not imposed any freezes on foreclosures. Based on information currently available, management believes that it 
does not have material exposure to faulty foreclosure practices.  
 
Note 7.  Premises and Equipment and Lease Commitments  
 

Premises and equipment at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 
 

 Range of Useful Lives 2012 2011 

Land Not applicable $  19,256 $  19,206 
Buildings 15 to 30 years 47,918 46,155 
Leasehold improvements 15 to 20 years 19,031 18,820 
Furniture and equipment 3 to 15 years 50,711 47,483 
  136,916 131,664 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (61,111) (54,537) 
  $  75,805 $  77,127 
 

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $6.6 million, $6.6 million, and $7.4 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
 Pinnacle Financial has entered into various operating leases, primarily for office space and branch facilities.  Rent expense related 
to these leases for 2012, 2011 and 2010 totaled $4.1 million, $3.8 million and $4.3 million, respectively.  At December 31, 2012, the 
approximate future minimum lease payments due under the aforementioned operating leases for their base term are as follows (in 
thousands):    

2013 $   3,665 
2014 3,629 
2015 3,520 
2016 3,602 
2017 3,469 
Thereafter 30,191 
 $  48,076 

 
Note 8.  Deposits 
 

At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows (in thousands): 
 

2013 $ 439,470 
2014 82,911 
2015 36,950 
2016 24,229 
2017 22,896 
Thereafter - 
 $ 606,456 

 



2012 Annual Report 

Pinnacle Financial Partners 93

CoNSolIDaTeD FINaNCIal STaTeMeNTS

 

 

Additionally, at December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately $87.2 million and $104.3 million, respectively, of time deposits had 
been issued in denominations of $250,000 or greater. 

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Pinnacle Financial had $1.0 million and $1.7 million, respectively, of deposit accounts in 
overdraft status and thus have been reclassified to loans on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Note 9.  Federal Home Loan Bank Advances  

Pinnacle Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLB) and as a result, is eligible for advances from 
the FHLB pursuant to the terms of various borrowing agreements, which assist Pinnacle Bank in the funding of its home mortgage and 
commercial real estate loan portfolios.  Pinnacle Bank has pledged certain qualifying residential mortgage loans and, pursuant to a 
blanket lien, certain qualifying commercial mortgage loans with an aggregate carrying value of approximately $683.3 million as 
collateral under the borrowing agreements with the FHLB.  

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Pinnacle Financial had received advances from the FHLB totaling $75,609,000 and 
$225,750,000, respectively.  Additionally, Pinnacle Financial recognized a discount on FHLB advances in conjunction with previous 
acquisitions.  The remaining discount was $241,000 and $319,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  At December 31, 
2012, the scheduled maturities of these advances and interest rates are as follows (in thousands):   

 
Scheduled 
Maturities 

Weighted average 
interest rates 

   
2013 $  25,000 0.21% 
2014 35,000 1.79% 
2015 - 0.00% 
2016 15,000 2.87% 
2017 - 0.00% 
Thereafter 609 2.48% 

 $  75,609  
Weighted average interest rate  1.49% 

 
During 2012, Pinnacle Bank restructured approximately $60.0 million of FHLB advances to reduce our ongoing funding costs.  

This restructuring was undertaken to reduce the weighted average interest rates on those FHLB advances of 1.91%.  The terms of the 
replacement advances are similar to those of the advances restructured, other than interest rate.  This restructuring resulted in a one-
time charge of $2.1 million during the fourth quarter of 2012.  

At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank had accommodations which allow it to borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta’s 
discount window and purchase Federal funds from several of its correspondent banks on an overnight basis at prevailing overnight 
market rates.  These accommodations are subject to various restrictions as to their term and availability, and in most cases, must be 
repaid within less than a month.  At December 31, 2012, there was no balance owed to the Federal Reserve Bank or other 
correspondents under these agreements. At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had approximately $1.5 billion in borrowing 
availability with the FHLB, the Federal Reserve Bank discount window, and other correspondent banks with whom Pinnacle Bank has 
arranged lines of credit.  At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank was not carrying any balances under these arrangements. 

Note 10.  Investments in Affiliated Companies and Subordinated Debt  

On August 5, 2008, Pinnacle Bank entered into a $15 million subordinated term loan with a regional bank. During the third quarter 
of 2012, Pinnacle Bank repaid this subordinated term loan.  

 
Beginning on December 29, 2003, Pinnacle Financial established Trusts that were created for the exclusive purpose of issuing 30-

year capital trust preferred securities and used the proceeds to acquire junior subordinated debentures (Subordinated Debentures) 
issued by Pinnacle Financial.  The sole assets of the Trusts are the Subordinated Debentures.  The $2,476,000 investment in the Trusts 
is included in other investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the $82,476,000 obligation is reflected as 
subordinated debt. The details of the Trusts established are as follows: 

 
Date 

Established Maturity  
Common 
Securities 

Trust Preferred 
Securities 

Floating Interest 
Rate 

Interest Rate at 
December 31, 2012 

Trust I December 29, 2003 December 30, 2033 $  310,000 $  10,000,000 Libor + 2.80% 3.11% 
Trust II September 15, 2005 September 30, 2035   619,000 20,000,000 Libor + 1.40% 1.71% 
Trust III September 7, 2006 September 30, 2036   619,000 20,000,000 Libor + 1.65% 1.96% 
Trust IV October 31, 2007 September 30, 2037   928,000 30,000,000 Libor + 2.85% 3.16% 
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Distributions are payable quarterly.  The Trust Preferred Securities are subject to mandatory redemption upon repayment of the 
Subordinated Debentures at their stated maturity date or their earlier redemption in an amount equal to their liquidation amount plus 
accumulated and unpaid distributions to the date of redemption.  Pinnacle Financial guarantees the payment of distributions and 
payments for redemption or liquidation of the Trust Preferred Securities to the extent of funds held by the Trusts.  Pinnacle Financial’s 
obligations under the Subordinated Debentures together with the guarantee and other back-up obligations, in the aggregate, constitute 
a full and unconditional guarantee by Pinnacle Financial of the obligations of the Trusts under the Trust Preferred Securities.  

The Subordinated Debentures are unsecured, bear interest at a rate equal to the rates paid by the Trusts on the Trust Preferred 
Securities and mature on the same dates as those noted above for the Trust Preferred Securities.  Interest is payable quarterly.  We may 
defer the payment of interest at any time for a period not exceeding 20 consecutive quarters provided that the deferral period does not 
extend past the stated maturity.  During any such deferral period, distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities will also be deferred 
and our ability to pay dividends on our common shares will be restricted.  

The Trust Preferred Securities may be redeemed prior to maturity at our option.  The Trust Preferred Securities may also be 
redeemed at any time in whole (but not in part) in the event of unfavorable changes in laws or regulations that result in (1) the Trust 
becoming subject to federal income tax on income received on the Subordinated Debentures, (2) interest payable by the parent 
company on the Subordinated Debentures becoming non-deductible for federal tax purposes, (3) the requirement for the Trust to 
register under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or (4) loss of the ability to treat the Trust Preferred Securities as 
“Tier I capital” under the Federal Reserve capital adequacy guidelines. 

 
Under current Federal Reserve capital adequacy guidelines, the Trust Preferred Securities are treated as Tier I capital so long as 

Pinnacle Financial has less than $15 billion in assets.  The Federal Reserve proposed regulations in June 2012 that would gradually 
phase out Tier I capital treatment over ten years commencing December 2013, for trust preferred securities by bank holding 
companies with less than $15 billion in assets.   
 

Combined summary financial information for the Trusts follows (in thousands): 
Combined Summary Balance Sheets 

 
December 31, 

2012 
December 31, 

2011 
Asset – Investment in subordinated debentures issued by Pinnacle Financial $  82,476 $  82,476 
   
Liabilities $            - $            - 
   
Stockholder’s equity – Trust preferred securities 80,000 80,000 

Common securities (100% owned by Pinnacle Financial) 2,476 2,476 
Total stockholder’s equity 82,476 82,476 

Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity $  82,476 $  82,476 

 

                    Combined Summary Income Statements 
 Year ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 2010 
Income – Interest income from subordinated debentures issued by 

Pinnacle Financial $2,218 $ 2,082 $ 2,749 
Net Income $2,218 $ 2,082 $ 2,749 
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Note 11.  Income Taxes  
 

ASC 740, Income Taxes, defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial statements as 
“more-likely-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing authority.  This section also provides guidance on the derecognition, 
measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties, and includes guidance 
concerning accounting for income tax uncertainties in interim periods. As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had no 
unrecognized tax benefits related to Federal or State income tax matters and does not anticipate any material increase or decrease in 
unrecognized tax benefits relative to any tax positions taken prior to December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle 
Financial has accrued no interest and no penalties related to uncertain tax positions. 
 

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations for each of the years ended December 31 is as follows (in 
thousands):  

 2012 2011 2010 
Current tax expense (benefit):    

Federal $    19,096 $     8,157 $ (13,412) 
State - - - 

Total current tax expense (benefit)  $    19,096 8,157    (13,412) 
Deferred tax expense (benefit):    

Federal 485 (19,646) 13,482 
State 1,063 (3,749) 4,340 

Total deferred tax expense (benefit)  1,548 (23,395) 17,822 
        Total income tax expense (benefit)  $    20,644 $  (15,238) $     4,410 

 

 
Combined Summary Statements of Stockholder’s Equity 

 

Trust 
Preferred  
Securities 

Total 
Common 

Stock 
Retained 
Earnings 

Stockholder’s 
Equity 

Balances, December 31, 2009 $  80,000 $  2,476 $          - $  82,476 
Net income - - 2,749 2,749 
Issuance of trust preferred securities - - - - 
Dividends:     

Trust preferred securities - - (2,669) (2,669) 
Common- paid to Pinnacle Financial - - (80) (80) 

Balances, December 31, 2010 $  80,000 $  2,476 $          - $  82,476 
Net income - - 2,082 2,082 
Issuance of trust preferred securities - - - - 
Dividends:     

Trust preferred securities - - (2,017) (2,017) 
Common- paid to Pinnacle Financial - - (65) (65) 

Balances, December 31, 2011 $  80,000 $  2,476 $          - $  82,476 
Net income - - 2,218 2,218 
Issuance of trust preferred securities - - - - 
Dividends:     

Trust preferred securities - - (2,151) (2,151) 
Common- paid to Pinnacle Financial - - (67) (67) 

Balances, December 31, 2012 $  80,000 $  2,476 $          - $  82,476 
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Pinnacle Financial's income tax expense (benefit) differs from the amounts computed by applying the Federal income tax 

statutory rates of 35% to income (loss) before income taxes. A reconciliation of the differences for each of the years in the three-year 
period ended December 31, 2012 is as follows (in thousands): 

 
 2012 2011 2010 
    
Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate $ 21,885 $        9,975 $  (6,962) 

State excise tax expense (benefit), net of federal tax effect 1,063  (255) (2,305) 
Tax-exempt securities (2,517) (2,655) (3,017) 
Federal tax credits - - (360) 
Bank owned life insurance (322) (406) (320) 
Insurance premiums (243) (151) (301) 
Other items 778 734 600 
Deferred tax valuation allowance  - (22,480) 17,075 

Income tax expense (benefit)  $20,644 $  (15,238) $   4,410 
 

Pinnacle Financial's effective tax rate for 2012 and 2011 differs from the Federal income tax statutory rate of 35% primarily due 
to a state excise tax expense (benefit), investments in bank qualified municipal securities, bank owned life insurance, and tax savings 
from our captive insurance subsidiary, PNFP Insurance, Inc.  Also in fiscal 2011, Pinnacle Financial reversed the beginning of year 
valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets.  
 

The components of deferred income taxes included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 
31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands): 

 
 2012 2011 
Deferred tax assets:   

Loan loss allowance $ 26,777 $  28,684 
Loans 423 783 
Insurance 691 664 
Accrued liability for supplemental retirement agreements 510 476 
Restricted stock and stock options 3,777 3,525 
Net operating loss carryforward 3,593 4,753 
Alternative minimum tax carryforward - 3,341 
Other real estate owned 3,222 2,076 
Other deferred tax assets 1,430 1,152 

Total deferred tax assets 40,423 45,454 
   
Deferred tax liabilities:   

Depreciation and amortization 7,110 7,522 
Core deposit intangible asset 1,700 2,735 
Securities 12,024 14,675 
REIT dividends 371 1,179 
FHLB related liabilities 1,724 3,016 
Other deferred tax liabilities 554 489 

Total deferred tax liabilities 23,483   29,616 
Net deferred tax assets $ 16,940 $  15,838 

 
A valuation allowance is recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more-likely-than-

not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In making such judgments, significant weight is given to evidence 
that can be objectively determined. Primarily as a result of credit losses, Pinnacle Financial entered into a three-year cumulative pre-
tax loss position in 2010. A three-year cumulative loss position is considered significant negative evidence in assessing the 
realizability of a deferred tax asset which is difficult to overcome and accordingly, Pinnacle Financial established a valuation 
allowance against the net deferred tax asset at June 30, 2010. Subsequently, Pinnacle Financial reported increasing profitability in 
subsequent fiscal quarters, demonstrated an improved ability to produce reliable results, and realized an improvement in overall asset 
quality and related credit metrics. Due to these factors, other positive trends and the relatively short period of time in which Pinnacle 
Financial forecasted to exit a three-year cumulative pre-tax loss position and utilize our net deferred tax asset, Pinnacle Financial 
determined during the quarter ended September 30, 2011 that sufficient positive evidence, both subjective and objective, existed to 
reverse the beginning of the year deferred tax valuation allowance.  
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Note 12.  Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 
 

In the normal course of business, Pinnacle Financial has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments which include 
commitments to extend credit (i.e., including unfunded lines of credit) and standby letters of credit. Commitments to extend credit are 
usually the result of lines of credit granted to existing borrowers under agreements that the total outstanding indebtedness will not 
exceed a specific amount during the term of the indebtedness.  Typical borrowers are commercial concerns that use lines of credit to 
supplement their treasury management functions, thus their total outstanding indebtedness may fluctuate during any time period based 
on the seasonality of their business and the resultant timing of their cash flows.  Other typical lines of credit are related to home equity 
loans granted to consumers.  Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee.  At December 31, 2012, these commitments amounted to $1.03 billion, of which approximately $166 million 
related to home equity lines of credit. 

 
Standby letters of credit are generally issued on behalf of an applicant (customer) to a specifically named beneficiary and are the 

result of a particular business arrangement that exists between the applicant and the beneficiary.  Standby letters of credit have fixed 
expiration dates and are usually for terms of two years or less unless terminated beforehand due to criteria specified in the standby 
letter of credit.  A typical arrangement involves the applicant routinely being indebted to the beneficiary for such items as inventory 
purchases, insurance, utilities, lease guarantees or other third party commercial transactions.  The standby letter of credit would permit 
the beneficiary to obtain payment from Pinnacle Financial under certain prescribed circumstances.  Subsequently, Pinnacle Financial 
would then seek reimbursement from the applicant pursuant to the terms of the standby letter of credit.  At December 31, 2012, these 
commitments amounted to $74.7 million.  

 
Pinnacle Financial follows the same credit policies and underwriting practices when making these commitments as it does for on-

balance sheet instruments.  Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the amount of collateral 
obtained, if any, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.  Collateral held varies but may include cash, real estate 
and improvements, marketable securities, accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, and personal property. 

 
The contractual amounts of these commitments are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements and would only be 

reflected if drawn upon.  Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the contractual amounts 
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  However, should the commitments be drawn upon and should our customers 
default on their resulting obligation to us, Pinnacle Financial's maximum exposure to credit loss, without consideration of collateral, is 
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.  At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial had accrued $1,898,000 for 
the inherent risks associated with off balance sheet commitments.   
 

During the fourth quarter of 2011, a customer of Pinnacle Bank filed a putative class action lawsuit (styled John Higgins, et al, v. 
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., d/b/a Pinnacle National Bank) in Davidson County, Tennessee Circuit Court against Pinnacle Bank 
and Pinnacle Financial, on his own behalf, as well as on behalf of a purported class of Pinnacle Bank’s customers within the State of 
Tennessee alleging that Pinnacle Bank’s method of ordering debit card transactions had caused customers of Pinnacle Bank to incur 
higher overdraft charges than had a different method been used.  In support of his claims, the plaintiff asserts theories of breach of 
contract, breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment of unconscionability.  The plaintiff is seeking, 
among other remedies, an award of unspecified compensatory damages, pre-judgment interest, costs and attorneys’ fees.  Pinnacle 
Financial and Pinnacle Bank are vigorously contesting this matter.  On January 17, 2012, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank filed a 
motion to dismiss the complaint. The motion to dismiss was granted without prejudice as to Pinnacle Financial and denied as to 
Pinnacle Bank on April 13, 2012, and Pinnacle Bank filed an answer on May 30, 2012.  Based on our current knowledge, Pinnacle 
Financial does not believe that any liability arising from this legal matter will have a material adverse effect on Pinnacle Financial’s 
consolidated financial condition, operating results or cash flows.  
 

Various legal claims also arise from time to time in the normal course of business.   In the opinion of management, the resolution 
of these routine claims outstanding at December 31, 2012 will not have a material impact on Pinnacle Financial’s consolidated 
financial condition, operating results or cash flows. 
 
Note 13.  Salary Deferral Plans  

Pinnacle Financial has a 401(k) retirement plan (the 401k Plan) covering all employees who elect to participate, subject to certain 
eligibility requirements. The Plan allows employees to defer up to 50% of their salary subject to regulatory limitations with Pinnacle 
Financial matching 100% of the first 4% of employee self-directed contributions during 2012, 2011, and 2010. Pinnacle Financial’s 
expense associated with the matching component of the plan(s) for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
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2012 was approximately $2,185,000, $1,887,000 and $1,931,000, respectively, and is included in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations in salaries and employee benefits expense.   

Prior to the merger with Pinnacle Financial on March 15, 2006, Cavalry had adopted nonqualified noncontributory supplemental 
retirement agreements (the Cavalry SRAs) for certain directors and executive officers of Cavalry.  Cavalry invested in and, as a result 
of the Cavalry merger, Pinnacle Financial is the owner of single premium life insurance policies on the life of each participant and is 
the beneficiary of the policy value.  When a participant retires, the accumulated gains on the policy allocated to such participant, if 
any, will be distributed to the participant in equal installments for 15 years (the Primary Benefit).  In addition, any annual gains after 
the retirement date of the participant will be distributed on an annual basis for the lifetime of the participant (the Secondary Benefit).  
As a result of the merger with Pinnacle Financial, all participants became fully vested in the Cavalry SRAs.  No new participants have 
been added to the Cavalry SRAs following the merger with Pinnacle Financial. 

  
The Cavalry SRAs also provide the participants with death benefits, which is a percentage of the net death proceeds for the 

policy, if any, applicable to the participant.  The death benefits are not taxable to Pinnacle Financial or the participant’s beneficiary. 
 
Pinnacle Financial recognized approximately $201,000, $330,000, and $63,000 in compensation expense in each year of the 

three-year period ended December 31, 2012 related to the Cavalry SRAs.  During 2007, Pinnacle Financial offered a settlement to all 
participants in the Cavalry SRAs with eleven participants accepting the settlement.  Two individuals remain as participants in the 
Cavalry SRAs.  At December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, included in other liabilities is $1,301,000, $1,200,000, and $994,000, 
respectively, which represents the net present value of the future obligation owed the two remaining participants in the Cavalry SRAs 
using a discount rate of 5% at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. 
 
Note 14.  Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Shares and Salary Stock Units  
 

Pinnacle Financial has two equity incentive plans under which it has granted stock options to its employees to purchase common 
stock at or above the fair market value on the date of grant and granted restricted share, restricted stock unit and salary stock unit 
awards to employees and directors.  As a result of an amendment to the 2004 Plan approved by stockholders on April 17, 2012, total 
shares remaining available for issuance under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan were increased, and at December 31, 2012, totaled 
approximately 764,000.  

 
During the first quarter of 2006 and in connection with its merger with Cavalry, Pinnacle Financial assumed a third equity 

incentive plan, the 1999 Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plan (the Cavalry Plan).  All options granted under the Cavalry Plan were 
fully vested prior to Pinnacle Financial’s merger with Cavalry and expired at various dates between January 2011 and June 2012.  In 
connection with the merger, all options to acquire Cavalry common stock were converted to options to acquire Pinnacle Financial 
common stock at the 0.95 exchange ratio.  The exercise price of the outstanding options under the Cavalry Plan was adjusted using the 
same exchange ratio.  All other terms of the Cavalry options were unchanged.  At December 31, 2012, all shares of Pinnacle Financial 
common stock which could be acquired by the participants in the Cavalry Plan had been exercised and none remained outstanding.  

 
On November 30, 2007 and in connection with its merger with Mid-America, Pinnacle Financial assumed several equity incentive 

plans, including the Mid-America Bancshares, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the Mid-America Plans).  All options and 
stock appreciation rights granted under the Mid-America Plans were fully vested prior to Pinnacle Financial’s merger with Mid-
America and expire at various dates between June 2011 and July 2017.  In connection with the merger, all options and stock 
appreciation rights to acquire Mid-America common stock were converted to options or stock appreciation rights, as applicable, to 
acquire Pinnacle Financial common stock at the 0.4655 exchange ratio.  The exercise price of the outstanding options and stock 
appreciation rights under the Mid-America Plans were adjusted using the same exchange ratio with the exercise price also being 
reduced by $1.50 per share.  All other terms of the Mid-America options and stock appreciation rights were unchanged.  At December 
31, 2012, there were 138,570 Pinnacle shares which could be acquired by the participants in the Mid-America Plans at exercise prices 
that ranged between $12.89 per share and $20.41 per share.  At December 31, 2012, there were approximately 84,000 shares available 
for issue under the Mid-America Plans to associates of Pinnacle Financial that were associates of Mid-America or its affiliates at the 
time of the merger. 

 
Common Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights 

 
As of December 31, 2012, of the approximately 1,311,000 stock options and 7,300 stock appreciation rights outstanding, 470,000 

options were granted with the intention to be incentive stock options qualifying under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code for 
favorable tax treatment to the option holder while 840,000 options would be deemed non-qualified stock options or stock appreciation 
rights and thus not subject to favorable tax treatment to the option holder.  Favorable treatment generally refers to the recipient of the 
award not having to report ordinary income at the date of exercise.  All stock options granted under the Pinnacle Financial equity 
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incentive plans vest in equal increments over five years from the date of grant and are exercisable over a period of ten years from the 
date of grant.  All stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the Cavalry Plan and Mid-America Plans were fully-
vested at the date of those mergers.  

 
A summary of stock option and stock appreciation right activity within the equity incentive plans during each of the years in the 

three-year period ended December 31, 2012 and information regarding expected vesting, contractual terms remaining, intrinsic values 
and other matters was as follows: 

 

 Number 

Weighted- 
Average  
Exercise  

Price 

Weighted- 
Average  

Contractual  
Remaining Term  

(in years) 

Aggregate  
Intrinsic  
Value (1)  
(000’s) 

Outstanding at December 31, 2009 2,149,774 $  17.54   
Granted - -   
Stock options exercised (316,014) 6.45   
Stock appreciation rights exercised (2) (13) 15.60   
Forfeited (37,962) 21.89   

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,795,785 $  19.49   
Granted - -   
Stock options exercised (163,829) 6.20   
Stock appreciation rights exercised (2) - 15.60   
Forfeited (50,918) 23.44   

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 1,581,038 $  20.81   
Granted - -   
Stock options exercised (245,201) 6.78   
Stock appreciation rights exercised (2) (28) 15.60   
Forfeited (17,108) 25.90   

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,318,701 $  23.36 3.14 $  2,203 
Outstanding and expected to vest at December 31, 2012 1,318,701 $  23.36 3.14 $  2,203 
Options exercisable at December 31, 2012 1,286,030 $  23.40 3.10 $  2,203 

  
(1) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of 

Pinnacle Financial common stock of $18.84 per common share at December 31, 2012 for the 331,571 options and stock appreciation rights 
that were in-the-money at December 31, 2012.  

(2) The 232 stock appreciation rights exercised during 2010 settled in 13 shares of Pinnacle Financial common stock. There were no stock 
appreciation rights exercised during 2011. The 348 stock appreciation rights exercised during 2012 settled in 28 shares of Pinnacle 
Financial common stock. 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, approximately 97,155 option awards vested at an average exercise price of $27.58.  
Those awards which vested had no intrinsic value.  During each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, the 
aggregate intrinsic value of options and stock appreciation rights exercised under Pinnacle Financial’s equity incentive plans was 
$2,501,000, $1,330,000 and $1,919,000, respectively, determined as of the date of option exercise.  

 
As of December 31, 2012, there was approximately $12,470 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock 

options granted under our equity incentive plans. That cost will be recognized during the first quarter of 2013. 
 

Pinnacle Financial adopted ASC 718-20 Compensation using the modified prospective transition method on January 1, 2006. 
Accordingly, during the three-years ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial recorded stock-based compensation expense using 
the Black-Scholes valuation model for awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of January 1, 2006 and for all stock-based awards 
granted after January 1, 2006, based on fair value estimates using the Black-Scholes valuation model.  For these awards, Pinnacle 
Financial has recognized compensation expense using a straight-line amortization method. As ASC 718-20 requires that stock-based 
compensation expense be based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest, stock-based compensation for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. The impact on the results of operations (compensation 
and employee benefits expense) and earnings per share of recording stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718-20 
(related to stock option awards) for the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 was as follows: 
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Awards granted 
with 

 the intention to be 
classified 

 as incentive stock 
options 

Non-qualified stock 
 option awards Totals 

For the year ended December 31,2012:    
Stock-based compensation expense $               - $     394,466 $     394,466 
Deferred income tax benefit - 154,749 154,749 
Stock-based compensation expense after deferred income tax 

benefit $               - $     239,717 $     239,717 
Impact on per share results from stock-based compensation:    

Basic  $   0.00 $  0.01 $  0.01 
Fully diluted  $   0.00 $  0.01 $  0.01 

    
For the year ended December 31,2011:    
Stock-based compensation expense $               - $  1,196,059 $  1,196,059 
Deferred income tax benefit - 469,214 469,214 
Stock-based compensation expense after deferred income tax 

benefit $               - $    726,845 $  726,845 
Impact on per share results from stock-based compensation:    

Basic  $   0.00 $   0.02 $   0.02 
Fully diluted  $   0.00 $   0.02 $   0.02 

    
For the year ended December 31,2010:    
Stock-based compensation expense $     46,058 $  1,631,235 $  1,677,293 
Deferred income tax benefit - 639,933 639,933 
Stock-based compensation expense after deferred income tax 

benefit $     46,058 $    991,302 $  1,037,360 
Impact on per share results from stock-based compensation:    

Basic  $   0.00 $   0.03 $   0.03 
Fully diluted  $   0.00 $   0.03 $   0.03 
    

  
There have been no options granted by Pinnacle Financial since 2009.   

 
Restricted Shares   

 
Additionally, Pinnacle Financial’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan provides for the granting of restricted share awards and other 

performance or market-based awards.  There were no market-based awards or stock appreciation rights outstanding as of December 
31, 2012 under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.  During the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial awarded 
315,069 shares in 2010, 361,966 shares in 2011 and 156,645 shares in 2012 of restricted common stock awards to certain Pinnacle 
Financial associates and outside directors.    
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A summary of activity for unvested restricted share awards for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 follows: 
 

 Number 
Grant Date Weighted-

Average Cost 
    Unvested at December 31, 2009 480,884 $  21.03 

Shares awarded 315,069 14.35 
Restrictions lapsed and shares released to associates/directors (80,028) 18.60 
Shares forfeited (75,431) 22.37 

    Unvested at December 31, 2010 640,394 $  17.63 
Shares awarded 361,966 13.38 
Restrictions lapsed and shares released to associates/directors (90,406) 17.62 
Shares forfeited (62,251) 20.66 

    Unvested at December 31, 2011 849,703 $  15.61 
Shares awarded 156,645 16.48 
Restrictions lapsed and shares released to associates/directors (211,913) 16.28 
Shares forfeited (54,526) 18.23 

    Unvested at December 31, 2012 739,909 $  15.45 
 
Pinnacle Financial grants restricted share awards to associates, executive management and outside directors with a combination of 

time and performance vesting criteria. The following tables outline restricted stock grants that were made by grant year, grouped by 
similar vesting criteria, during the three year period ended December 31, 2012. The table below reflects the life-to-date activity for 
these awards:  

Grant 
Year Group(1) 

Vesting 
Period in 

years 
Shares 

awarded 

Restrictions 
Lapsed and 

shares released to 
participants(1) 

Shares 
Withheld  

for taxes by 
participants(1) 

Shares 
Forfeited by 
participants 

Shares 
Unvested 

Time Based Awards (2) 
2010 Associates 5 140,849 41,537 10,621 18,108 70,583 
2011 Associates 5 144,145 21,463 6,246 12,297 104,139 
2012 Associates 5 141,665 - - 7,400 134,265 

Performance Based Awards  (3)  
2010 Leadership team (4) 10 59,568 11,392 3,280 - 44,896 
2010 Leadership team (5) 3 39,250 - - - 39,250 
2010 Leadership team (6) 2 58,203 42,110 16,093 - - 
2011 Leadership team (4) 10 152,093 7,005 2,103 - 142,985 
2011 Leadership team (5) 3 29,595 - - - 29,595 
2011 Leadership team (5) 3 21,097 5,581 1,465 - 14,051 

Outside Director Awards (7) 
2010 Outside directors  1 17,199 14,882 2,317 - - 
2011 Outside directors 1 15,036 10,339 2,191 2,506 - 
2012 Outside directors 1 14,980 - - - 14,980 

  
(1) Groups include our employees (referred to as associates above), our executive managers (referred to as our Leadership Team above) and our outside 

directors.  Included in the Leadership Team awards noted above are awards to our named executive officers. When the restricted shares are awarded, a 
participant receives voting rights with respect to the shares, but is not able to transfer the shares other than to Pinnacle Financial in satisfaction of 
withholding tax obligations until the later of the date that the forfeiture restrictions have lapsed and the date we redeemed the remaining outstanding shares 
of Series A preferred stock.  Once the forfeiture restrictions lapse, the participant is taxed on the value of the award and may elect to sell shares to pay the 
applicable income taxes associated with the award or have these shares remitted to Pinnacle Financial.   

(2) These shares vest in equal annual installments on the first five anniversary dates of the grant.  
(3) The forfeiture restrictions on these restricted share awards lapse in separate equal installments should Pinnacle Financial achieve certain earnings and 

soundness targets over each year of the subsequent vesting period (or alternatively, the cumulative vesting period), excluding the impact of any merger 
related expenses.  For those grants with a 10 year vesting period, the vesting period for an individual award is equal to ten years or the number of years 
remaining before an associate reaches the age of 65, whichever is less. 

(4) These awards include a provision that the shares do not vest if Pinnacle Financial is not profitable for the fiscal year immediately preceding the vesting date.  
(5) The forfeiture restrictions on these restricted share awards lapse in installments as follows: 66.6% on the second anniversary date should Pinnacle Financial 

achieve certain earnings and soundness targets, and 33.4% on the third anniversary date should Pinnacle Financial achieve certain earnings and soundness 
targets in each of these periods (or, alternatively, the cumulative three-year period).   

(6) The forfeiture restrictions on these restricted share awards lapse in one lump sum on the second anniversary date of the grant so long as Pinnacle Financial is 
profitable for the fiscal year immediately preceding the vesting date. 

(7) Restricted share awards are issued to the outside members of the board of directors in accordance with their board compensation plan.  Restrictions lapsed on 
the one year anniversary date of the award based on each individual board member meeting his/her attendance goals for the various board and board 
committee meetings to which each member was scheduled to attend.  All board members who had been granted these restricted shares met their attendance 
goals with the exception of two board members during 2011 which resigned their board seats and forfeited their restricted share awards of 1,253 shares each. 
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Compensation expense associated with the performance based restricted share awards is recognized over the time period that the 

restrictions associated with the awards are anticipated to lapse based on a graded vesting schedule such that each traunche is amortized 
separately.  Compensation expense associated with the time based restricted share awards is recognized over the time period that the 
restrictions associated with the awards lapse on a straight-line basis based on the total cost of the award.   
 

A summary of compensation expense, net of the impact of income taxes, related to restricted stock awards for the three-year 
period ended December 31, 2012, follows: 

 2012 2011 2010 
    
Restricted stock expense (1) $ 3,270,028 $  3,239,677 $   2,303,720 
Income tax benefit 1,282,832 1,270,925 903,749 
Restricted stock expense, net of income tax benefit $ 1,987,196 $  1,968,752 $   1,399,971 
Impact on per share results from restricted stock expense:    

Basic  $  0.06 $  0.06 $  0.04 
Fully diluted  $  0.06 $  0.06 $  0.04 

  
(1) During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, $149,000 in previously expensed compensation associated with certain tranches of performance-based 

restricted share awards was reversed when Pinnacle Financial determined that the performance targets required to vest the awards, which were previously 
expected to be met, were unlikely to be achieved. 

 
Restricted Stock Units 
 

Pinnacle Financial granted 144,350 restricted share units to the senior executive officers and the Leadership Team in the first 
quarter of 2012.  These restricted share units will be settled with the issuance of 130,875 restricted shares upon the filing of Pinnacle 
Financial’s 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Further, following the redemption of the preferred stock issued to the U.S. Treasury as 
a part of the CPP, the Human Resources and Compensation Committee (HRCC) also granted 82,429 restricted stock units to our 
senior executive officers in the second quarter of 2012. These restricted share units will be settled with the issuance of 68,828 
restricted share awards upon the filing of Pinnacle Financial’s 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The number of restricted shares 
that will be issued in settlement of the restricted share units was determined based upon the achievement of certain predetermined 
profitability goals for 2012 that were established on January 13, 2012 by the HRCC.  The number of restricted shares issuable in 
settlement of these restricted share units ranged between 0% and 100% based on the level of 2012 profitability.   Once converted to 
restricted share awards with a grant date in 2013, the forfeiture restrictions on the number of restricted shares issued in settlement of 
these restricted share units will lapse in 20% increments over the following five years based on the achievement of soundness 
thresholds to be set by the HRCC in January of each respective fiscal year.     
 
Salary Stock Unit Awards 

 
During 2011, the HRCC of Pinnacle Financial adopted and approved the issuance of Salary Stock Units (SSU) to Pinnacle 

Financial’s named executive officers. The SSUs were designed to comply with the Treasury’s Interim Final Rule on TARP Standards 
for Compensation and Corporate Governance issued on June 15, 2009.  SSUs were accrued and earned by the named executive 
officers over the course of the year during each payroll period, subject to such executive officer’s continued employment with 
Pinnacle Financial. The SSUs granted to named executive officers in 2012 were immediately vested (and therefore not subject to 
forfeiture) and were payable in shares of Pinnacle Financial’s common stock on, or as soon as administratively practical following, 
December 30, 2012 (Settlement Date), but in no event later than two and one-half months following the Settlement Date. Following 
the redemption of all of the remaining outstanding preferred stock issued to the Treasury as part of the CPP, the HRCC terminated 
issuances of SSUs to these named executive officers effective June 30, 2012.  No share issuance and no expense was recorded 
following this termination.  For the year ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial issued 57,508 SSUs and recognized 
approximately $1,000,000 in compensation costs attributable to the SSUs compared to 54,526 and approximately $777,000 for the 
year ended December 31, 2011. Effective December 31, 2012, the 57,508 SSUs issued in 2012 were settled into 44,133 shares of 
Pinnacle Financial common stock, net of the 13,375 shares which were withheld for taxes compared to 42,688 shares, net of 11,838 
shares which were withheld for taxes which were settled effective December 31, 2011 in relation to the 54,526 SSUs granted in 2011. 
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Note 15.  Derivative Instruments  

 
Financial derivatives are reported at fair value in other assets or other liabilities.  The accounting for changes in the fair value of a 

derivative depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.  For derivatives not designated as 
hedges, the gain or loss is recognized in current earnings.   

 
Beginning in 2007, Pinnacle Financial entered into interest rate swaps (swaps) to facilitate customer transactions and meet their 

financing needs.  Upon entering into these instruments to meet customer needs, Pinnacle Financial enters into offsetting positions in 
order to minimize the risk.  These swaps qualify as derivatives, but are not designated as hedging instruments. All of the derivatives 
held at December 31, 2012 and 2011 related to these customer swaps.   
 

Interest rate swap contracts involve the risk of dealing with counterparties and their ability to meet contractual terms.  As such, 
Pinnacle Financial has recorded a credit valuation adjustment for counter-party credit risk. When the fair value of a derivative 
instrument contract is positive, this generally indicates that the counter party or customer owes Pinnacle Financial, and results in credit 
risk to Pinnacle Financial.  When the fair value of a derivative instrument contract is negative, Pinnacle Financial owes the customer 
or counterparty and therefore, Pinnacle Financial has no credit risk. 
 

A summary of Pinnacle Financial’s interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2012 is included in the following table (in thousands): 
 

 At December 31, 2012  At December 31, 2011 

 
Notional 
Amount  

Estimated Fair 
Value 

 Notional 
Amount  

Estimated 
Fair Value 

Interest rate swap agreements:        
Pay fixed / receive variable swaps $ 236,377  $  16,132  $ 257,639  $  17,937 
Pay variable / receive fixed swaps 236,377  (16,366)  257,639  (18,147) 
Total $ 472,754  $      (234)  $ 515,278  $      (210) 

 
Note 16.  Employment Contracts  
 

Pinnacle Financial has entered into, and subsequently amended, four continuously automatic-renewing three-year employment 
agreements with four of its senior executives: the President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief 
Administrative Officer and the Chief Financial Officer.  These agreements, as amended, will always have a three-year term unless any 
of the parties to the agreements gives notice of intent not to renew the agreement.  The agreements specify that in certain defined 
“Terminating Events,” Pinnacle Financial will be obligated to pay each of the five senior executives certain amounts, which vary 
according to the Terminating Event, which is based on their annual salaries and bonuses.  These Terminating Events include disability, 
cause, without cause and other events.  After redemption of the preferred shares issued as part of Pinnacle Financial’s participation in 
the CPP, Pinnacle Financial entered into, and subsequently amended, a change of control agreement with its Senior Credit Officer. 
 
Note 17.  Related Party Transactions 

 
A local public relations company, of which one of Pinnacle Financial’s directors is a principal, provides various services for 

Pinnacle Financial.  For each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial incurred 
approximately $78,000, $242,000, and $234,000, respectively, in expense for services rendered by this public relations company.  A 
former director is an officer of insurance firm that serves as an agent in securing insurance in such areas as Pinnacle Financial’s 
property and casualty insurance and other insurance policies. The insurance firm is wholly-owned by another bank holding company.  
 

Also see Note 6- “Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses”, concerning loans and other extensions of credit to certain directors, 
officers, and their related entities and individuals and Note 13 – Salary Deferral Plans regarding supplemental retirement agreement 
obligations to two directors who were formerly directors of Cavalry. 
 
Note 18.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments  
 

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value in U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  The definition of fair value focuses on the exit price, 
i.e., the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date, not the entry price, i.e., the price that would be paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability at 
the measurement date.  The statement emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement; not an entity-specific measurement.  
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Therefore, the fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing 
the asset or liability.   
 
Valuation Hierarchy 

 
FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is 

based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined 
as follows: 
 

• Level 1 – inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 
• Level 2 – inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.  
• Level 3 – inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 
 
A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to 

the fair value measurement.  Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 
 
Assets 
 

Securities available-for-sale – Where quoted prices are available for identical securities in an active market, securities are 
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities include highly liquid government securities and certain other 
financial products. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use observable 
inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain 
cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation and more complex pricing models or 
discounted cash flows are used, securities are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.  

 
Nonperforming loans – A loan is considered to be nonperforming when it is probable Pinnacle Financial will be unable to collect 

all principal and interest payments due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Nonperforming loans are 
measured based on the present value of expected payments using the loan’s original effective rate as the discount rate, the loan’s 
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral less selling costs if the loan is collateral dependent. If the recorded 
investment in the nonperforming loan exceeds the measure of fair value, a valuation allowance may be established as a component of 
the allowance for loan losses or the expense is recognized as a charge-off. Nonperforming loans are classified within Level 3 of the 
hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs used in determining their fair value such as collateral values and the borrower’s underlying 
financial condition. 

 
Alternative investments – Included in other investments are alternative investments in certain nonpublic private equity funds and 

start-up companies.  The valuation of nonpublic private equity investments requires significant management judgment due to the 
absence of observable quoted market prices, inherent lack of liquidity and the long-term nature of such assets. These investments are 
valued initially based upon transaction price. The carrying values of other investments are adjusted either upwards or downwards from 
the transaction price to reflect expected exit values as evidenced by financing and sale transactions with third parties, or when 
determination of a valuation adjustment is confirmed through ongoing reviews by senior investment managers. A variety of factors are 
reviewed and monitored to assess positive and negative changes in valuation including, but not limited to, current operating 
performance and future expectations of the particular investment, industry valuations of comparable public companies and changes in 
market outlook and the third-party financing environment over time. In determining valuation adjustments resulting from the 
investment review process, emphasis is placed on current company performance and market conditions. These investments are 
included in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy as these funds are not widely traded and the underling investments of such funds are 
often privately-held and/or start-up companies for which market-values are not readily available. 
 

Other real estate owned – Other real estate owned (OREO) represents real estate foreclosed upon, or acquired through deed in 
lieu of foreclosure, by Pinnacle Bank through loan defaults by customers.  Substantially all of these amounts relate to lots, homes and 
development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of construction for which Pinnacle Financial believes it has 
adequate collateral.  Upon foreclosure, the property is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value, based on appraised value, less selling 
costs estimated as of the date acquired with any loss recognized as a charge-off through the allowance for loan losses.  Additional 
OREO losses for subsequent valuation downward adjustments are determined on a specific property basis and are included as a 
component of noninterest expense along with holding costs.  Any gains or losses realized at the time of disposal are also reflected in 
noninterest expense, as applicable.  OREO is included in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy due to the lack of observable market 
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inputs into the determination of fair value.  Appraisal values are property-specific and sensitive to the changes in the overall economic 
environment. 

 
Other assets – Included in other assets are certain assets carried at fair value, including the cash surrender value of bank owned 

life insurance policies and interest rate swap agreements.  Pinnacle Financial uses financial information received from insurance 
carriers indicating the performance of the insurance policies and cash surrender values in determining the carrying value of the bank 
owned life insurance.  Pinnacle Financial reflects these assets within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs 
included in the valuation of these items. Pinnacle Financial does not consider the fair values of these policies to be materially sensitive 
to changes in these unobservable inputs.  The carrying amount of interest rate swap agreements is based on Pinnacle Financial’s 
pricing models that utilize observable market inputs.  Pinnacle Financial reflects these assets within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy 
as these assets are valued using similar transactions that occur in the market.  
 
Liabilities 

 
Other liabilities – Pinnacle Financial has certain liabilities carried at fair value including certain interest rate swap agreements.  

The fair value of these liabilities is based on Pinnacle Financial’s pricing models that utilize observable market inputs and is reflected 
within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.   
 

The following tables present the financial instruments carried at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, by caption on the 
consolidated balance sheets and by FASB ASC 820 valuation hierarchy (as described above) (in thousands): 

 

December 31, 2012 

Total carrying value 
in the consolidated 

balance sheet 

Quoted market 
prices in an 

active market 
(Level 1) 

Models with significant 
observable market 

parameters 
(Level 2) 

Models with significant 
unobservable market 

parameters 
(Level 3) 

Investment securities available-for-sale:         
    U.S. government agency securities $ 110,452 $ - $ 110,452 $ - 
    Mortgage-backed securities  375,651  -  375,651  - 
    State and municipal securities  191,727  -  191,727  - 
    Agency- backed securities  17,352    17,352   
    Corporate notes and other  11,396  -  11,396  - 
Total investment securities available-for-sale  706,578  -  706,578 $ - 
Alternative investments  4,214  -  -  4,214 
Other assets  16,599  -  16,132  467 
Total assets at fair value $ 727,391 $ - $ 722,710 $ 4,681 
         
Other liabilities $ 16,366 $ - $ 16,366 $ - 
Total liabilities at fair value $ 16,366 $ - $ 16,366 $ - 
         
December 31, 2011         
Investment securities available-for-sale:         
    U.S. government agency securities $ 42,313 $ - $ 42,313 $ - 
    Mortgage-backed securities  645,567  -  645,567  - 
    State and municipal securities  195,952  -  195,952  - 
    Corporate notes and other  11,130  -  11,130  - 
Total investment securities available-for-sale  894,962  -  894,962  - 
Alternative investments  3,400  -  -  3,400 
Other assets  18,436  -  17,937  499 
Total assets at fair value $ 916,798 $ - $ 912,899 $ 3,899 
         
Other liabilities $ 18,147 $ - $ 18,147 $ - 
Total liabilities at fair value $ 18,147 $ - $ 18,147 $ - 
 



2012 Annual Report 

106 Pinnacle Financial Partners 

CoNSolIDaTeD FINaNCIal STaTeMeNTS

 

 

 

December 31, 2012 

Total carrying value 
in the consolidated 

balance sheet 

Quoted 
market 

prices in an 
active 

market 
(Level 1) 

Models with 
significant 
observable 

market 
parameters 

(Level 2) 

Models with 
significant 

unobservable 
market 

parameters 
(Level 3)  

Total losses 
for the period 

ended 
 

Other real estate owned $ 18,580 $ - $ - $ 18,580  $ (5,428) 
Nonperforming loans, net (1)  21,059  -  -  21,059   (4,745) 
Total  $ 39,639 $ - $ - $ 39,639  $ (10,173) 
            
December 31, 2011            
Other real estate owned $ 39,714 $ - $ - $ 39,714  $ (6,890) 
Nonperforming loans, net (1)  43,415  -  -  43,415   (8,661) 
Total $ 83,129 $ - $ - $ 83,129  $ (15,551) 

   
(1) Amount is net of a valuation allowance of $1.8 million at December 31, 2012 and $4.4 million at December 31, 2011 as required by ASC 310-10, 

“Receivables.” 
 

In the case of the bond portfolio, Pinnacle Financial monitors the valuation technique utilized by various pricing agencies to 
ascertain when transfers between levels have been affected.  The nature of the remaining assets and liabilities is such that transfers in 
and out of any level are expected to be rare.  For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.   
 

The table below includes a rollforward of the balance sheet amounts for the year ended December 31, 2012 (including the change 
in fair value) for financial instruments classified by Pinnacle Financial within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy for assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. When a determination is made to classify a financial instrument within Level 3 
of the valuation hierarchy, the determination is based upon the significance of the unobservable factors to the overall fair value 
measurement. However, since Level 3 financial instruments typically include, in addition to the unobservable or Level 3 components, 
observable components (that is, components that are actively quoted and can be validated to external sources), the gains and losses in 
the table below include changes in fair value due in part to observable factors that are part of the valuation methodology (in 
thousands): 
 
 For the year ended December 31,  
 2012  2011 

 
Other  
assets 

Other 
liabilities  

Other  
assets 

Other 
liabilities 

Fair value, January 1 $ 3,899 $ -  $ 3,238 $ - 
Total net realized (losses) gains included in income  (101)  -   268  - 
Change in unrealized gains/losses included in other comprehensive income          
     for assets and liabilities still held at December 31  -  -   -  - 
Purchases, issuances and settlements, net  883  -   393  - 
Transfers out of Level 3  -  -   -  - 
Fair value, December 31 $ 4,681 $ -  $ 3,899 $ - 
Total realized (losses) gains included in income related to financial assets           

and liabilities still on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 $ (101) $ -  $ 268 $ - 
 
The following methods and assumptions were used by Pinnacle Financial in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 

instruments that are not measured at fair value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on 
estimates using discounted cash flow models. Those models are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount 
rates, estimates of future cash flows and borrower creditworthiness. The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent 
information available to management as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.   Such amounts have not been revalued for 
purposes of these consolidated financial statements since those dates and, therefore, current estimates of fair value may differ 
significantly from the amounts presented herein. 

 
Held-to-maturity securities - Estimated fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices where available.  

If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use observable inputs or 
quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics.  

 
Loans - The fair value of Pinnacle Financial’s loan portfolio includes a credit risk factor in the determination of the fair value of 

its loans.  This credit risk assumption is intended to approximate the fair value that a market participant would realize in a 
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hypothetical orderly transaction.  Pinnacle Financial’s loan portfolio is initially fair valued using a segmented approach. 
Pinnacle Financial divides its loan portfolio into the following categories: variable rate loans, impaired loans and all other 
loans. The results are then adjusted to account for credit risk.   

 
For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values approximate carrying 
values. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow models or based on the fair value of the 
underlying collateral.  For other loans, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow models, using current market 
interest rates offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The values derived from the 
discounted cash flow approach for each of the above portfolios are then further discounted to incorporate credit risk to 
determine the exit price.  

 
Mortgage loans held-for-sale - Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.  The estimate of fair 

value is based on pricing models and other information.   
 
Deposits, Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, Federal Home Loan Bank advances, Subordinated debt and 

other borrowings - The carrying amounts of demand deposits, savings deposits, securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase, floating rate advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank, floating rate subordinated debt and other borrowings, 
and floating rate loans approximate their fair values. Fair values for certificates of deposit, fixed rate advances from the 
Federal Home Loan Bank and fixed rate subordinated debt are estimated using discounted cash flow models, using current 
market interest rates offered on certificates, advances and other borrowings with similar remaining maturities.  For fixed rate 
subordinated debt, the maturity is assumed to be as of the earliest date that the indebtedness will be repriced. 

 
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments - The fair values of Pinnacle Financial's off-balance-sheet financial instruments are based on 

fees charged to enter into similar agreements. However, commitments to extend credit do not represent a significant value to 
Pinnacle Financial until such commitments are funded.  
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The following table presents the carrying amounts, estimated fair value and placement in the fair value hierarchy of Pinnacle 

Financial's financial instruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011.  This table excludes financial instruments for which the carrying 
amount approximates fair value.  For short-term financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amount is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value due to the relatively short time between the origination of the instrument and its expected realization.  For 
financial liabilities such as non-interest bearing demand, interest-bearing demand, and savings deposits, the carrying amount is a 
reasonable estimate of fair value due to these products having no stated maturity.  
 

(in thousands) 
December 31, 2012 

 

Carrying/ 
Notional 
Amount  

Estimated 
Fair Value 

(1)  

Quoted 
market 

prices in 
an active 
market 

(Level 1)  

Models with 
significant 
observable 

market 
parameters 

(Level 2)  

Models with 
significant 

unobservable 
market 

parameters 
(Level 3) 

Financial assets:           
Securities held-to-maturity $ 575 $ 583 $ - $ 583 $ - 
Loans, net  3,642,744  3,358,435  -  -  3,358,435 
Mortgage loans held-for-sale  41,195  42,425  -  42,425  - 

           
Financial liabilities:           

Deposits and securities sold under           
agreements to repurchase  4,129,855  4,084,314  -  -  4,084,314 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances   75,850  76,350  -  -  76,350 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings  106,158  83,862  -  -  83,862 
           

Off-balance sheet instruments:           
Commitments to extend credit (2)  1,030,723  1,594  -  -  1,594 
Standby letters of credit (3)  74,679  304  -  -  304 
           
           

December 31, 2011           
Financial assets:           

Securities held-to-maturity $          2,330 $       2,369 $ - $ 2,369 $ - 
Loans, net   3,217,376  2,893,526  -  -  2,893,526 
Mortgage loans held for sale  35,363  36,231  -  36,231  - 
           

Financial liabilities:           
Deposits and securities sold under            

agreements to repurchase     3,785,931     3,752,490  -  3,752,490  - 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances   226,069  226,460  -  -  226,460 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings  97,476  72,030  -  72,030  - 
           

Off-balance sheet instruments:           
Commitments to extend credit (2)      937,084       1,031  -  -       1,031 
Standby letters of credit (3)  76,176  259  -  -  259 
           

  
(1) Estimated fair values are consistent with an exit-price concept. The assumptions used to estimate the fair values are intended to 

approximate those that a market-participant would realize in a hypothetical orderly transaction.  
(2) At the end of each quarter, Pinnacle Financial evaluates the inherent risks of the outstanding off-balance sheet commitments.  In 

making this evaluation, Pinnacle Financial evaluates the credit worthiness of the borrower, the collateral supporting the 
commitments and any other factors similar to those used to evaluate the inherent risks of our loan portfolio.  Additionally, Pinnacle 
Financial evaluates the probability that the outstanding commitment will eventually become a funded loan.  As a result, at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, Pinnacle Financial included in other liabilities $1.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, 
representing the inherent risks associated with these off-balance sheet commitments. 

(3) At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of Pinnacle Financial’s standby letters of credit was $304,000 and $259,000, 
respectively.  This amount represents the unamortized fee associated with these standby letters of credit, which were priced at 
market when issued, and is included in the consolidated balance sheet of Pinnacle Financial and is believed to approximate fair 
value.  This fair value will decrease over time as the existing standby letters of credit approach their expiration dates. 
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Note 19.  Other borrowings 

On June 15, 2012, Pinnacle Financial entered into a loan agreement with a bank for $25 million (the Loan Agreement). 
Borrowings under the Loan Agreement, combined with available cash, were used for the redemption, on June 20, 2012, of the 
remaining 71,250 shares of preferred stock owned by the Treasury that had been issued under the CPP. 

Pinnacle Financial’s borrowings under the Loan Agreement bear interest at rates that, at Pinnacle Financial’s option, can be 
either:  
  

  
•   A base rate generally defined as the sum of (i) the highest of (x) the lender’s “base” or “prime” rate, (y) the average 

overnight federal funds effective rate plus one-half percent (0.50%) per annum or (z) one-month LIBOR plus one percent 
(1%) per annum and (ii) an applicable margin as noted below; or  

  

  
•   A LIBOR rate generally defined as the sum of (i) the average of the offered rates of interest quoted in the London Inter-

Bank Eurodollar Market for U.S. Dollar deposits with prime banks (as published by Reuters or other commercially 
available source) for one, two or three months (all as selected by the Company), and (ii) an applicable margin.  

The applicable margin under the Loan Agreement ranges from 2.25% (225 basis points) to 3.00% (300 basis points) depending 
on the total aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Loan Agreement. The initial applicable margin for both base rate and 
LIBOR rate loans is 3.00% (300 basis points).  At December 31, 2012, the interest rate paid on this debt was 3.00%.  

Pinnacle Financial is required to make quarterly principal payments of $625,000 beginning on September 30, 2012, and the loan 
matures on June 15, 2017. Pinnacle Financial is permitted to prepay all or a portion of the principal amount outstanding under the 
Loan Agreement without penalty (in minimum aggregate amounts of $100,000) at any time so long as no event of default or 
unmatured event of default has occurred and is continuing.  

The Loan Agreement includes negative covenants that limit, among other things, certain fundamental transactions, additional 
indebtedness, transactions with affiliates, liens, sales of assets and dividends. The Loan Agreement specifically restricts transfers or 
encumbrances of the shares of the capital stock of Pinnacle Financial’s bank subsidiary. The Loan Agreement also includes financial 
covenants related to Pinnacle Financial’s, and in some cases, Pinnacle Bank’s, capitalization, levels of risk-based capital, ratio of 
nonperforming assets to tangible primary capital and ratio of allowance for loan and lease losses to nonperforming loans. The Loan 
Agreement also includes a fixed charge coverage ratio requiring the sum of Pinnacle Financial’s net income plus the amount of any 
goodwill amortization expense and contractually due interest divided by the sum of Pinnacle Financial’s contractually due interest and 
principal amounts (assuming annual principal amortization of $2.5 million under the Loan Agreement), to be not less than 125% on a 
rolling four quarter basis starting December 31, 2012.  

The Loan Agreement also contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants, representations, warranties and events 
of default, which include but are not limited to, payment defaults, breaches of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, 
events of bankruptcy and insolvency, and the institution of certain regulatory enforcement actions against Pinnacle Financial or 
Pinnacle Bank. If an event of default occurs and is continuing, Pinnacle Financial may be required immediately to repay all amounts 
outstanding under the Loan Agreement.  

Debt issuance costs associated with the Loan Agreement of approximately $162,000 consisting primarily of professional fees 
are included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  These debt issuance costs are being amortized over three 
years using the straight-line method which approximates the interest method that is required by U.S. GAAP.  
 
Note 20.  Variable Interest Entities 
 

Under ASC 810, Pinnacle Financial is deemed to be the primary beneficiary and required to consolidate a variable interest entity 
(VIE) if it has a variable interest in the VIE that provides it with a controlling financial interest. For such purposes, the determination 
of whether a controlling financial interest exists is based on whether a single party has both the power to direct the activities of the 
VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE or the right to 
receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. ASC 810 requires continual reconsideration of 
conclusions reached regarding which interest holder is a VIE’s primary beneficiary and disclosures surrounding those VIE’s which 
have not been consolidated. The consolidation methodology provided in this footnote as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 has been 
prepared in accordance with ASC 810. 



 

 

 
Non-consolidated Variable Interest Entities 
 

At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial did not have any consolidated variable interest entities to disclose but did have the 
following non-consolidated variable interest entities: low income housing partnerships, trust preferred issuances, troubled debt 
restructuring commercial loans, and managed discretionary trusts.   

 
Since 2003, Pinnacle Financial has made equity investments as a limited partner in various partnerships that sponsor affordable 

housing projects. The purpose of these investments is to achieve a satisfactory return on capital and to support Pinnacle Financial’s 
community reinvestment initiatives. The activities of the limited partnerships include the identification, development, and operation of 
multi-family housing that is leased to qualifying residential tenants generally within Pinnacle Financial’s primary geographic region. 
These partnerships are considered VIEs because Pinnacle Financial, as the holder of the equity investment at risk, does not have the 
ability to direct the activities that most significantly affect the success of the entity through voting rights or similar rights. While 
Pinnacle Financial could absorb losses that are significant to these partnerships as it has a risk of loss for its initial capital 
contributions and funding commitments to each partnership, it is not considered the primary beneficiary of the partnerships as the 
general partners whose managerial functions give them the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the 
partnerships’ economic performance and who are exposed to all losses beyond Pinnacle Financial’s initial capital contributions and 
funding commitments are considered the primary beneficiaries.  

 
Pinnacle Financial has previously issued subordinated debt totaling $82.5 million to PNFP Statutory Trust I, II, III, and IV.  These 

trusts are considered VIEs because Pinnacle Financial’s capital contributions to these trusts are not considered “at risk” in evaluating 
whether the holders of the equity investments at risk in the trusts have the power through voting rights or similar rights to direct the 
activities that most significantly impact the entities’ economic performance. These trusts were not consolidated by Pinnacle Financial 
because the holders of the securities issued by the trusts absorb a majority of expected losses and residual returns. 

 
For certain troubled commercial loans, Pinnacle Financial restructures the terms of the borrower’s debt in an effort to increase the 

probability of receipt of amounts contractually due. However, Pinnacle Financial does not assume decision-making power or 
responsibility over the borrower’s operations. Following a debt restructuring, the borrowing entity typically meets the definition of a 
VIE as the initial determination of whether the entity is a VIE must be reconsidered and economic events have proven that the entity’s 
equity is not sufficient to permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support or a restructuring of the 
terms of its financing. As Pinnacle Financial does not have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact such 
troubled commercial borrowers’ operations, it is not considered the primary beneficiary even in situations where, based on the size of 
the financing provided, Pinnacle Financial is exposed to potentially significant benefits and losses of the borrowing entity. Pinnacle 
Financial has no contractual requirements to provide financial support to the borrowing entities beyond certain funding commitments 
established upon restructuring of the terms of the debt to allow for completion of activities which prepare the collateral related to the 
debt for sale.  
 

Pinnacle Financial serves as manager over certain discretionary trusts, for which it makes investment decisions on behalf of the 
trusts’ beneficiaries in return for a management fee. The trusts meet the definition of a VIE since the holders of the equity investments 
at risk do not have the power through voting rights or similar rights to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entities’ 
economic performance. However, since the management fees Pinnacle Financial receives are not considered variable interests in the 
trusts as all of the requirements related to permitted levels of decision maker fees are met, such VIEs are not consolidated by Pinnacle 
Financial because it cannot be the trusts’ primary beneficiary. Pinnacle Financial has no contractual requirements to provide financial 
support to the trusts. 
 

The following table summarizes VIE’s that are not consolidated by Pinnacle Financial as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands): 
 

 December 31, 2012 
 

December 31, 2011  

 
Type 

Maximum 
Loss 

Exposure 
Liability 

Recognized 

 Maximum 
Loss 

Exposure 
Liability 

Recognized 
 

Classification 
Low Income Housing Partnerships $ 6,096 $               -  $   5,917 $           -      Other Assets 
Trust Preferred Issuances N/A 82,476  N/A 82,476 Subordinated Debt 
Commercial Troubled Debt Restructurings 20,951 -  17,223 - Loans 
Managed Discretionary Trusts N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A 
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Note 21.  Regulatory Matters  
 

Under Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to Pinnacle Financial, which 
are similar to those applicable to national banks.  Pursuant to Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank may not, without the prior 
consent of the TDFI, pay any dividends to Pinnacle Financial in a calendar year in excess of the total of Pinnacle Bank’s net income 
for that year plus the retained net income for the preceding two years.  As of December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Bank could pay 
approximately $39.1 million of dividends to Pinnacle Financial without prior TDFI approval. Pinnacle Financial has not paid any cash 
dividends on its common stock since inception; however, its growth plan may provide the opportunity for it to consider a sustainable 
dividend program at some point in the future.  

 
 Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking 

agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions, 
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and 
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank must meet specific capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory 
accounting practices.  

 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank to 

maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets and for Pinnacle Bank of Tier I capital to 
average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2012, that Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank met all capital adequacy 
requirements to which they are subject.  To be categorized as well-capitalized under applicable banking regulations, Pinnacle 
Financial and Pinnacle Bank must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the 
following table and not be subject to a written agreement, order or directive to maintain a higher capital level.  Pinnacle Financial’s 
and Pinnacle Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table (in thousands): 
 

 Actual 
Minimum Capital  

Requirement 
Minimum 

To Be Well-Capitalized 
 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 
At December 31, 2012       
       
Total capital to risk weighted assets:       

Pinnacle Financial $ 552,021 13.0% $ 339,151 8.0% $ 425,748   10.0% 
Pinnacle Bank $ 545,615 12.9% $ 338,548 8.0% $ 425,005 10.0% 

Tier I capital to risk weighted assets:       
Pinnacle Financial $ 498,802 11.8% $ 169,575 4.0% $ 255,449     6.0% 
Pinnacle Bank $ 492,489 11.6% $ 169,274 4.0% $ 255,003 6.0% 

Tier I capital to average assets (*):       
Pinnacle Financial $ 498,802 10.6% $ 188,695 4.0% N/A N/A 
Pinnacle Bank $ 492,489 10.5% $ 187,981 4.0% $234,976 5.0% 

       
At December 31, 2011       
       
Total capital to risk weighted assets:       

Pinnacle Financial $ 579,877 15.3% $ 302,433 8.0% $ 380,799   10.0% 
Pinnacle Bank $ 528,436 14.0% $ 301,838 8.0% $ 380,063 10.0% 

Tier I capital to risk weighted assets:       
Pinnacle Financial $ 523,277 13.8%      $ 151,216 4.0% $ 228,479     6.0% 
Pinnacle Bank $ 471,928 12.5% $ 150,919 4.0% $ 228,038 6.0% 

Tier I capital to average assets (*):       
Pinnacle Financial $ 523,277 11.4% $ 184,138 4.0% N/A N/A 
Pinnacle Bank $ 471,928 10.3% $ 183,431 4.0% $ 229,289 5.0% 

  
(*) Average assets for the above calculations were based on the most recent quarter. 

 
As noted above, Pinnacle Bank had 10.5% of Tier 1 capital to average assets and 12.9% of total capital to risk-weighted assets at 

December 31, 2012.  At December 31, 2012, Pinnacle Financial has $13.7 million of cash available, if required, for further capital 
support of Pinnacle Bank. 
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Note 22.  Parent Company Only Financial Information  

 
The following information presents the condensed balance sheets, statements of operations, and cash flows of Pinnacle Financial 

as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012: 
 

 CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 
 

 2012 2011 
Assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents $      13,657,278 $     36,496,508 
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 758,512,213 743,704,779 
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries:    

PNFP Statutory Trust I 310,000 310,000 
PNFP Statutory Trust II 619,000 619,000 
PNFP Statutory Trust III 619,000 619,000 
PNFP Statutory Trust IV 928,000 928,000 
Other investments 3,214,358 3,400,183 

Current income tax receivable 472,869 478,134 
Other assets 6,954,411 6,439,735 

 $    785,287,129 $   792,995,339 
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:   

Income taxes payable to subsidiaries $                        - $          309,118 
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 106,158,292 82,476,000 
Other liabilities 57,478 65,653 
Stockholders’ equity 679,071,359 710,144,568 

 $    785,287,129 $   792,995,339 
 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

 2012 2011 2010 
Revenues $     157,443 $ 1,228,999 $   1,054,997 
Expenses:    

Interest expense – subordinated debentures 2,689,197 2,082,836 2,749,085 
Stock-based compensation expense  3,664,494 4,435,739 3,981,013 
Other expense 778,947 669,560 702,728 

Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed income (loss) of 
subsidiaries (6,975,195) (5,959,136) (6,377,829) 
Income tax benefit (2,736,020) (7,641,435) (2,125,035) 

(Loss) income before equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 
and accretion on preferred stock discount (4,239,175) 1,682,299 (4,252,794) 

Equity in undistributed income (loss) of subsidiaries 46,123,056 42,055,068 (20,047,698) 
Net income (loss) 41,883,881 43,737,367 (24,300,492) 
    Preferred stock dividends 1,660,868 4,606,493 4,815,972 

Accretion on preferred stock discount 2,153,172 2,058,146 1,326,050 
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $38,069,841 $37,072,728 $(30,442,514) 
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 
 2012 2011 2010 
Operating activities:    

Net income (loss) $  41,883,881 $ 43,737,367 $(24,300,492) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used in) operating activities:    
Stock-based compensation expense 3,664,494 4,435,739 3,981,013 
Loss (gain) on other investments 138,020 (313,562) (272,116) 
Increase (decrease) in income tax payable, net 169,016 (5,351,564) 12,796,200 
(Increase) decrease in other assets (912,116) 124,239  (2,408,735) 
Decrease in other liabilities (8,176) (1,040) (19,339,542) 
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation  (36,071) (13,819) (16,776) 
Deferred tax (expense) benefit  (75,427) (636,040)  842,292 
Equity in undistributed (income) loss of subsidiaries (46,123,056) (42,055,068) 20,047,698 

Net cash used in operating activities (1,299,435) (73,748) (8,670,458) 
Investing activities:    

Investment in consolidated subsidiaries:    
Banking subsidiaries 27,210,000 - (25,000,000) 
Other subsidiaries - - (200,000) 

Investments in other entities 47,804 (393,304) (422,076) 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 27,257,804 (393,304) (25,622,076) 

Financing activities:    
Net increase in borrowings from line of credit 23,682,291 - - 
(Repurchase) exercise of common stock warrants (755,000) - 285,000 
Exercise of common stock options 1,616,643 1,447,362 3,037,064 
Preferred dividends paid (2,127,604) (4,891,840) (4,750,000) 
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation 

arrangements 36,071 13,819 16,776 
Repurchase of preferred shares outstanding (71,250,000) (23,750,000) - 
Net cash used in financing activities (48,797,599) (27,180,659) (1,411,160) 

Net decrease in cash (22,839,230) (27,647,711) (35,703,694) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 36,496,508 64,144,219 99,847,913 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  13,657,278 $ 36,496,508 $  64,144,219 

 
Pinnacle Bank is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to Pinnacle Financial under Tennessee banking laws.  Pinnacle 

Bank paid dividends of $27,210,000 to Pinnacle Financial in 2012. Pinnacle Bank did not pay any dividends to Pinnacle Financial 
during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Pinnacle Financial paid a $25.0 million dividend to Pinnacle Bank in 2010. 



 

 

 
Note 23.  Quarterly Financial Results (unaudited) 
 

A summary of selected consolidated quarterly financial data for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2012 follows: 
 

 First Second Third Fourth 
(in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 
     
2012     

Interest income $  45,824 $  45,953 $  46,441 $  47,203 
Net interest income 39,504 40,185 40,932 42,243 
Provision for loan losses 1,034 634 1,413 2,488 
Net income before taxes 12,599 15,545 16,371 18,012 
Net income  8,365 10,440 11,349 11,730 
Net income available to common stockholders 7,206 7,785 11,349 11,730 

Basic net income per share available to common stockholders  $      0.21 $       0.23 $       0.33 $      0.35 
Diluted net income per share available to common stockholders $      0.21 $       0.23 $       0.33 $      0.34 

     
2011     

Interest income $  47,224 $   47,789 $  46,888 $  46,446 
Net interest income 29,882 31,208 34,723 33,854 
Provision for loan losses 6,139 6,587 3,632 5,439 
Net income before taxes 3,505 6,660 9,128 9,207 
Net income  3,505 6,372 26,101 7,760 
Net income available to common stockholders 2,011 4,844 24,537 5,681 

Basic net income per share available to common stockholders  $    0.06 $     0.14 $     0.74 $    0.17 
Diluted net income per share available to common stockholders $    0.06 $     0.14 $     0.72 $    0.17 

     
2010     

Interest income $  52,690 $  50,929 $  50,650 $  49,079 
Net interest income 36,560 35,697 36,060 36,056 
Provision for loan losses 13,226 30,509 4,789 5,171 
Net (loss) income before taxes (4,347) (20,734) 2,091 3,098 
Net (loss) income  (3,822) (26,364) 2,091 3,796 
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders (5,368) (27,871) 549 2,248 

Basic net (loss) income per share available to common stockholders  $    (0.16) $    (0.85) $    0.02 $    0.07 
Diluted net (loss) income per share available to common stockholders $    (0.16) $    (0.85) $    0.02 $    0.07 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.: 

We have audited Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the 
accompanying Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2012, and our report dated February 22, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
consolidated financial statements. 

Nashville, Tennessee 
February 22, 2013 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (the Company) as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Pinnacle 
Financial Partners, Inc’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and 
our report dated February 22, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting. 

Nashville, Tennessee 
February 22, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

 
The management of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting.  Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the 
Company’s management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.  All 
internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be 
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. 
 
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2012.  In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.   
 
Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is 
effective based on those criteria.   
 
The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting.   

 

 

  
 
 
 

INVESTOR INFORMATION 
 

Pinnacle Financial’s common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “PNFP” and has traded on that 
market since July 3, 2006. The following table shows the high and low closing sales price information for Pinnacle Financial’s 
common stock for each quarter in 2012 and 2011 as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.  
 

 Price Per Share 
 High Low 
2012:   

First quarter $  18.44 $  15.25 
Second quarter 19.51 16.64 
Third quarter  20.38 18.88 
Fourth quarter  20.45 18.09 

2011:   
First quarter $  16.60 $  13.55 
Second quarter 16.82 14.15 
Third quarter  16.21 10.52 
Fourth quarter  16.65 10.28 

 
As of February 18, 2013, Pinnacle Financial had approximately 3,310 stockholders of record. 

 
Pinnacle Financial has not paid any cash dividends on our common stock since inception; however, its growth plans may provide the 
opportunity for it to consider a sustainable dividend program at some point in the future.  See “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Financial Condition – Dividends” above. 



 

 

 
STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GROWTH 

 
Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s 
Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and our peer group for the period commencing 
on December 31, 2007 and ending December 31, 2012 (the “Measuring Period”). The graph assumes that the value of the investment 
in the Company’s Common Stock and each index was $100 on December 31, 2007. The change in cumulative total return is measured 
by dividing the change in share price between the beginning and end of each Measuring Period by the share price at the beginning of 
the Measuring Period. As the Company paid no cash dividends, the impact of the dividends is not applicable to the Company’s total 
return. However, cash dividends may impact the cumulative returns of the two indices.  
 

 
 

 

 

(1) Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2007 in Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. Common Stock (PNFP) and the three 
indices noted above.  
 

(2) The peer group was developed by SNL and is a composite of 51 banking institutions headquartered in the Southeastern 
United States with assets of $1 billion to $5 billion. SNL Financial is a research firm focused on banking and other industries 
and is located in Charlottesville, Virginia.  
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